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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

O
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period from to
Commission File Number 0-17795
CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware 77-0024818
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
800 W. 6th Street Austin, Texas 78701
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (512) 851-4000
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class Trading Symbol Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock, $0.001 par value CRUS The NASDAQ Global Select Market
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes p No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes O No p

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes p No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and
post such files). Yes p No O
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
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Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer O
Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company O
Emerging growth company O

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial
reporting under Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (15 U.S.C. 7262(b)) by the registered public accounting firm that prepared or issued its audit report.

If securities are registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act, indicate by check mark whether the financial statements of the registrant included in the filing reflect the
correction of an error to previously issued financial statements. O

Indicate by check mark whether any of those error corrections are restatements that required a recovery analysis of incentive-based compensation received by any of the
registrant’s executive officers during the relevant recovery period pursuant to §240.10D-1(b). O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes O No p

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates was $2,621,830,483 $2,229,292,731 based upon the closing price
reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market as of September 24, 2022 September 23, 2023. Stock held by directors, officers and stockholders owning 5 percent or more of the
outstanding common stock were excluded as they may be deemed affiliates. This determination of affiliate status is not a conclusive determination for any other purpose.

As of May 17, 2023 May 22, 2024, the number of outstanding shares of the registrant's common stock, $0.001 par value, was 54,814,364.53,568,913.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Certain information contained in the registrant’s proxy statement for its annual meeting of stockholders to be held July 28, 2023 July 26, 2024 is incorporated by reference in Part
Il — Item 5 and Part IIl of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART |
Forward—Looking Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report on Form 10-K and certain information incorporated herein by reference contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act").
All statements included or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, other than statements that are purely historical, are forward-looking statements. In some
cases, forward-looking statements are identified by words such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “target,” “project,” “believe,” “goals,” “estimates,” “will,” “would,” “could,” “can,” “may,” “plan,”

and “intend”, and other similar types of words and expressions. Variations of these types of words and similar expressions are intended to identify these forward-looking statements.
Any statements that refer to our plans, beliefs, expectations, strategies or other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. Readers are
cautioned that these forward-looking statements are predictions based on management's expectations as of the date of this filing and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and
assumptions that are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. Factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated or implied by our forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Item 1A. Risk Factors
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and elsewhere in this report, as well as in the documents we file with the SEC, Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"), including our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and
Current Reports on Form 8-K.

We caution you not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and we undertake no
obligation, and expressly disclaim any duty, to revise or update this information, whether as a result of new information, events or circumstances after the filing of this report with the
SEC, except as required by law. We urge readers to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other documents we file
from time to time with the SEC that disclose risks and uncertainties that may affect our business. All forward-looking statements, expressed or implied, included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and attributable to Cirrus Logic, Inc. are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. This cautionary statement should also be considered
in connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements that we may make or persons acting on our behalf may issue.

ITEM 1. Business

Cirrus Logic, Inc. (“Cirrus Logic,” “We,” “Us,” “Our,” or the “Company”) is a leader in low-power, high-precision mixed-signal processing solutions that create innovative user
experiences for the world’s top mobile and consumer applications.

We were incorporated in California in 1984, became a public company in 1989 and were reincorporated in the State of Delaware in February 1999. Our primary facility, which
houses engineering, sales and marketing, and administrative functions, is located in Austin, Texas. We also have offices in various other locations in the United States, United
Kingdom, the People’s Republic of China, South Korea, Japan, Singapore, and Taiwan. Our common stock, which has been publicly traded since 1989, is listed on the NASDAQ's
Global Select Market under the symbol CRUS.

We maintain a website with the address www.cirrus.com. We are not including the information contained on our website as a part of, or incorporating it by reference into, this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. We make available free of charge through our website our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish such material to, the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). SEC. We also routinely post other important information on our website, including information specifically addressed to investors. We intend for
the investor relations section of our website to be a recognized channel of distribution for disseminating information to the securities marketplace for purposes of complying with our
disclosure obligations under SEC Regulation Fair Disclosure. To receive a free copy of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, please forward your written request to Cirrus Logic, Inc.,
Attn: Investor Relations, 800 W. 6t Street, Austin, Texas 78701, or via email at Investor@cirrus.com. In addition, the SEC maintains a website at www.sec.gov that contains reports,
proxy and information statements filed electronically with the SEC by Cirrus Logic.

Company Strategy

Cirrus Logic targets growing markets where we can leverage our expertise in low-power, high-precision mixed-signal processing to solve complex problems that span the
analog to digital analog-to-digital divide. The Company is committed to our three-pronged strategy for growing our business: first, maintaining our leadership position in smartphone
audio; second, increasing high-performance mixed-signal ("HPMS") content in smartphones; and third, leveraging our strength in audio and HPMS to expand into additional
applications and markets with both new and existing components. Our approach has been to develop custom and general market components that embody our latest innovations,
which we use to engage key players in a particular market or application.
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Cirrus Logic focuses on building strong engineering relationships with our customers’ product teams and works to develop developing highly differentiated components that
address their technical and price requirements across product tiers. Many of our products include programmable aspects and are comprised of our best-in-class hardware, which
incorporates software algorithms from some combination of our own intellectual property (“IP”), and our third-party partners' and customers’ IP. When we have been successful with
this approach, an initial design win can often lead to an opportunity to further increase our content with a customer over time through the incorporation of new features, the
integration of other system components into our products, and the addition of new products.

Markets and Products

The Company's product line categories are audio and HPMS. While we continue to see new opportunities for growth with audio products, in both smartphones and
applications beyond smartphones, we believe the largest opportunity to drive product diversification and fuel exciting avenues of growth in the coming years is with our HPMS
product line. See Note 10 - Revenues for disclosure of revenue by product line categories.

The following provides a detailed discussion regarding description of our audio and HPMS product lines.

Audio Products: Boosted amplifiers, Amplifiers, codecs, smart codecs, analog-to-digital converters, digital-to-analog converters and standalone digital signal processors.

HPMS Products: Camera controllers, haptics and sensing solutions, and battery and power ICs.

AUDIO PRODUCTS

Cirrus Logic is a leading supplier of low-power, low-latency, high-precision audio components that are used in a variety of applications including smartphones, tablets, laptops,
tablets, AR/VR headsets, wearables, home theater systems, automotive entertainment systems and professional audio systems. We have an extensive portfolio of products:
amplifiers; “codecs,” which are components that integrate analog-to-digital converters (“ADCs") and digital-to-analog converters (“DACs”) into a single integrated circuit ("IC"); “smart
codecs,” which are codecs with integrated digital signal processing; boosted amplifiers; and standalone digital signal processors (“‘DSPs”). Additionally, the Company’s SoundClear®
technology consists of a broad portfolio of tools, software and algorithms that help to differentiate our customers’ products by improving the user experience with features such as
louder, high-fidelity sound, high-quality audio playback, voice capture, and hearing augmentation.

HPMS PRODUCTS

Drawing on our extensive mixed-signal design and low-power processing expertise, Cirrus Logic has expanded beyond our traditional audio domain into new categories where
we to now also provide a range of HPMS products, including such as camera controllers, haptic and sensing solutions, and battery and power ICs. These products are primarily used
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in smartphones to help deliver a more immersive and compelling user experience while also improving battery health and performance. This product line also includes legacy
industrial and energy applications such as digital utility meters, power supplies, energy control, energy measurement and energy exploration.

Customers, Marketing, and Sales

We offer products worldwide through both direct and indirect sales channels. Our major customers are among the world’s leading electronics manufacturers. We target both
large existing and emerging customers that obtain value from our expertise in advanced analog and mixed-signal design processing, systems-level integrated circuit engineering
and embedded software development. We derive our revenues from both domestic and international sales. Our domestic sales force includes direct sales offices located primarily in
California and Texas. International sales offices and staff are located in Japan, People’s Republic of China, Singapore, South Korea, Taiwan, and the United Kingdom. We
supplement our direct sales force with external sales representatives and distributors. We have technical support centers in China, South Korea, Taiwan and the United States. Our
worldwide sales force provides geographically specific support to our customers and specialized selling of product lines with unique customer bases. See Note 20—Segment
Information, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8 for further detail and for additional disclosure regarding sales and property, plant and equipment,
net, by geographic locations.

Since the components we produce are largely proprietary and generally not available from secondary sources, we generally consider our end customer to be the entity
specifying the use of our component in their design. These end customers may then purchase our products directly from us, through distributors, or indirectly from third-party
manufacturers contracted to produce their designs. For fiscal year 2024, 2023 and each of fiscal years 2022, and 2021, our ten largest end customers, represented approximately
95 percent, 92 percent and 93 percent of our sales, respectively. For fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, we had one end customer, Apple, Inc., who purchased through
multiple contract manufacturers and represented approximately 87 percent, 83 percent, and 79 percent, and 83
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percent, of the Company'’s total sales, respectively. No other customer or distributor represented more than 10 percent of net sales in fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, or 2021. 2022.
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Manufacturing

As a fabless semiconductor company, we contract with third parties for wafer fabrication and product assembly and test. We use a variety of foundries in the production of
wafers, primarily supplied by GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc., (“GlobalFoundries”) and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, Limited (“TSMC"). In fiscal year 2022, the
Company entered a Capacity Reservation and Wafer Supply Commitment Agreement with GlobalFoundries to reserve capacity and set wafer pricing for products purchased
pursuant to the agreement through calendar year 2026. See Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional details.
The Company’s primary assembly and test houses include Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc., Amkor Technology, Inc., STATS ChipPAC Pte. Ltd., Amkor Technology, Inc.,
SFA Semicon Co., Ltd., and Siliconware Precision Industries Co., Ltd. Our outsourced manufacturing strategy allows us to concentrate on our design strengths and minimize fixed
costs and capital expenditures while giving us access to advanced manufacturing facilities. It also provides the flexibility to source multiple leading-edge technologies through
strategic relationships. After wafer fabrication by the foundry, third-party assembly vendors package the wafer die. The finished products are then tested before shipment to our
customers. While we believe we are able to mitigate certain risks in the fabrication processes by using multiple outside foundries, an interruption of supply by one or more of these
foundries could materially impact the Company. We maintain business interruption insurance to help reduce the risk of wafer supply interruption; however, the impact of an
interruption could exceed our insurance. Our supply chain management organization is responsible for the management of all aspects of the fabrication, assembly, and testing of our
products, including process and package development, test program development, and production testing of products in accordance with our ISO-certified quality management
system.

Although our products are made from basic materials (principally silicon, metals and plastics), all of which are available from a number of suppliers, capacity at wafer foundries
sometimes becomes constrained. The limited availability of certain materials may impact our suppliers’ ability to meet our demand needs or impact the price we are charged. The
prices of certain other basic materials, such as metals, gases and chemicals used in the production of circuits can increase as demand grows for these basic commodities. In most
cases, we do not procure these materials ourselves; nevertheless, we are reliant on such materials for manufacturing our products because our outside foundry and package and
test subcontractors must procure them. To help mitigate risks associated with constrained capacity, we use multiple foundries and assembly and test sources.

Patents, Licenses and Trademarks

We rely on patent, copyright, trademark, and trade secret laws to protect our intellectual property, products, and technology. As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, we held
approximately 4,300 3,880 pending and issued patents worldwide, which include approximately 1,430 1,500 granted U.S. patents, 430360 U.S. pending patent applications and
various international patents and applications. Our U.S. patents expire in calendar years 2023 2024 through 2042.2045. While our patents are an important element of our success,
our business as a whole is not dependent on any one patent or group of patents. We do not anticipate any material effect on our business due to any patents expiring in 2023, 2024,
and we continue to obtain new patents through our ongoing research and development.

We have maintained U.S. federal trademark registrations for CIRRUS LOGIC, CIRRUS, Cirrus Logic logo designs, and SoundClear, among others. These U.S. registrations
may be renewed as long as the marks continue to be used in interstate commerce. We have also filed or obtained foreign registration for these marks in other countries or
jurisdictions where we conduct, or anticipate conducting, international business. To complement our own research and development efforts, we have also licensed and expect to
continue to license, a variety of intellectual property and technologies important to our business from third parties.

Segments

We determine our operating segments in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidelines. Our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) has been identified
as the chief operating decision maker ("CODM") as defined by these guidelines.

The Company operates and tracks its results in one reportable segment, but reports revenue performance in two product lines: Audio and HPMS. Our CEO receives and uses
enterprise-wide financial information to assess financial performance and allocate resources, rather than detailed information at a product line level. Additionally, our resources. Our
product lines have similar characteristics and customers. They customers and share operations support functions such as sales, public relations, supply chain management, various
research and development and engineering support, in addition to the general and administrative functions of human resources, legal, finance and information technology.
Therefore, there is no discrete financial information maintained for these product lines.
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See Note 10 - Revenues of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8 for further details including sales by product line. See Note 20 — Segment
Information, for details on sales and property, plant and equipment, net, by geographic locations.
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Research and Development

We concentrate our research and development efforts on the design and development of new products for each of our principal markets. We also fund certain advanced-
process technology development, as well as other emerging product opportunities. Our future success is highly dependent upon our ability to develop complex new products,
transfer new products to volume production, introduce them into the marketplace in a timely fashion, and have them selected for design into products of systems manufacturers. Our
future success may also depend on assisting our customers with integration of our components into their new products, including providing support from the concept stage through
design, launch and production ramp.

Competition

Markets for our products are highly competitive, and we expect that competition will continue to increase. Our ability to compete effectively and to expand our business will
depend on our ability to continue to recruit key engineering talent, execute on new product developments, partner with customers to create compelling products for their applications
and provide cost efficient versions of existing products. We compete with other semiconductor suppliers that offer standard semiconductors, application-specific standard products
and fully customized ICs, including embedded software, chip and board-level products.

While no single company competes with us across all our product lines, we face significant competition in all markets where our products are available. Cirrus Logic is a
leading supplier of audio and high-performance mixed-signal processing solutions including boosted amplifiers, codecs, smart codecs, camera controllers, haptic and sensing
solutions, and battery and power ICs. We expect to face additional competition from new entrants in our markets, which may include both large domestic and international IC
manufacturers, as well as smaller, emerging companies. Our primary competitors include, but are not limited to, AKM Semiconductor Inc., Analog Devices Inc., Goodix Technology,
Infineon Technologies, Monolithic Power Systems, Inc., Realtek Semiconductor Corporation, Renesas Electronics Corporation, Shanghai Awinic Technology Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
Goodix Technology Co, Ltd., Skyworks Solutions Inc., Southchip Semiconductor Technology (China), ST Microelectronics N.V., Synaptics Incorporated and Texas Instruments, Inc.

The principal competitive factors in our markets include: time to market; quality of hardware/software design and end-market systems expertise; price; product performance,
features, quality and compatibility with standards; access to advanced process and packaging technologies at competitive prices; and sales and technical support, which includes
assisting our customers with integration of our components into their new products and providing support from the concept stage through design, launch and production ramp.

Product life cycles may vary greatly by product category. For example, many consumer products have shorter design-in cycles; therefore, our competitors have increasingly
frequent opportunities to achieve design wins in next-generation systems. Conversely, this also provides us frequent opportunities to displace competitors in products that have
previously not utilized our design.

Backlog

Sales are made primarily pursuant to short-term purchase orders for delivery of products. The quantity actually ordered by the customer, as well as the shipment schedules,
are frequently revised, without significant penalty, to reflect changes in the customer’s needs. The majority of our backlog is typically requested for delivery within six months. In
markets where the end system life cycles are relatively short, customers typically request delivery in six to twelve weeks. We believe a backlog analysis at any given time gives little
indication of our future business except on a short-term basis, principally within the next 60 days.

We utilize backlog as an indicator to assist us in production planning. However, backlog is influenced by several factors including market demand, pricing, and customer order
patterns in reaction to product lead times. Quantities actually purchased by customers, as well as prices, are subject to variations between booking and delivery because of changes
in customer needs or industry conditions. As a result, we believe that our backlog at any given time is an incomplete indicator of future sales.

Governmental Regulations

Our business and operations around the world are subject to government regulation at the national, state or local level addressing, among other matters, applicable
environmental laws, health and safety laws and regulations, and laws relating to export controls and economic sanctions.

We believe that our properties and operations comply in all material respects with applicable laws protecting the environment and worker health and safety. As a fabless
semiconductor company, we do not manufacture our own products but do maintain research and laboratory space at certain of our facilities to facilitate the development, evaluation,
and testing of our
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products. These laboratories may maintain small quantities of hazardous materials. While we believe we are in material compliance with applicable law concerning the safeguarding

of these materials and with respect to other matters relating to health, safety and the environment, the risk of liability relating to hazardous conditions or materials cannot be
eliminated completely. To date, we have not incurred significant expenditures relating to environmental compliance at our facilities.
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In addition to environmental and worker health and safety laws, our business is subject to various rules and regulations and executive orders relating to export controls and
trade sanctions. Certain of our products are subject to the Export Administration Regulations ("EAR"), which are administered by the United States Department of Commerce's
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Bureau of Industry and Security ("BIS"), and we may from time to time be required to obtain an export license before we can export certain products or technology to specified
countries or customers. In addition, the EAR imposes broad controls on entities listed on sanctioned persons lists, including the BIS Entity List. If one of our customers is listed on
the BIS Entity List or another U.S. government sanctioned persons' list, we may be precluded from doing business with that customer. For example, certain of our Chinese
customers, or their affiliated entities, have been added to the BIS Entity List, in the last couple of years, which limits our ability to support these customers. We cannot guarantee that
export control restrictions or sanctions imposed in the future will not prevent, or materially limit, our ability to conduct business with certain customers or in certain countries. Any
failure to comply with these laws could result in governmental enforcement actions, including substantial monetary penalties and denial of export privileges.

For further discussion relating to the potential effects that compliance with government regulation may have upon our business, refer to "ltem 1A. Risk Factors."

Human Capital

Our long-term success depends, in part, on attracting and retaining highly qualified technical, marketing, engineering and administrative talent. At Cirrus Logic, our goal is to
maintain an employee-centric culture that encourages innovation, teamwork, and individual growth. The Company strives to cultivate an inclusive workplace where all employees
feel they belong, diverse backgrounds and perspectives are valued, and everyone has an opportunity to reach their full potential. Additionally, we value our employees' feedback
and regularly seek their input. This enables us to collect information that helps to identify and address challenges and continuously improve.

We believe that we offer competitive compensation, learning and development programs, and health and wellness benefits, designed to improve the quality of our employees’
lives. Cirrus Logic prides itself on providing continuous learning and development opportunities, such as, technical training and professional development programs to support our
employees’ growth. Our comprehensive benefits, such as health insurance coverage and emotional well-being support are tailored for each country. Our benefits focus on family
care, including fertility coverage, paid parental leave, discounts subsidized daycare and backup care for childcare, backup care, children and elders, benefits for surrogacy and
adoption assistance programs, and programs for new parents. The Company also provides fitness facilities and classes at several locations, as well as other employee benefits
including health screenings, COVID-19 testing and vaccinations, flu shots, free confidential virtual mental health support, and ergonomic assessments. Cirrus Logic provides
retirement planning programs with matching contributions, such as a 401(k) plan in the United States and defined contribution pension plans for our employees in other countries.

We believe that these benefits, combined with our employee-centric culture, contribute to low voluntary employee turnover. In fiscal year 2023, 2024, our voluntary turnover rate
was 86 percent, below the technology industry benchmarks (2022 Aon/ (2023 Radford Salary Increase and Turnover Study).

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, we had 1,702 full-time 1,625 employees, 99 percent of whom 71 were full-time, 72 percent were engaged in research and product
development activities, 24 23 percent in sales, marketing, general and administrative activities, and 5 percent in manufacturing-related activities. As of March 25, 2023 March 30,
2024, 16 14 percent of our employees worldwide were foreign nationals and 64 percent of our total workforce reside in the U.S., with 36 percent residing offshore. We also employ
individuals on a temporary basis and use the services of contractors as necessary. We have never had a work stoppage, and the majority of our employees are not represented by
collective bargaining agreements.

We believe that diverse teams fuel innovation, and we are committed to creating an inclusive culture that supports all employees, regardless of gender, veteran status, race,
ethnicity, or ability. As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, our global workforce was 8281 percent male and 18 19 percent female, and based on self-reported identification, our
workforce in the United States was composed of 54 53 percent White, 33 35 percent Asian, 98 percent Hispanic or Latino, 2 percent Black or African American, and 2 percent Other.

Cirrus Logic is committed to promoting a safe, secure, and productive environment for our employees, customers, and visitors. Our global health and safety policy outlines our
commitment to employees. Employees working in our research facilities receive specialized, role-specific health and safety training. The Company takes measures to reduce
employee exposure to potential health hazards in our offices and research facilities and conducts regular inspections to maintain a safe and healthy work environment. A risk
management system also provides technicians with additional data and information on the potential hazards associated with certain chemicals. In fiscal year 2023, 2024, the
Company had no monetary losses as a result of legal proceedings associated with employee health and safety violations, and have not received any notices of violation related
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to health and safety at our facilities, nor have we ever had a work-related fatality. Additionally, in fiscal calendar year 2023, we reported zero recordable and lost-time incidents to the
U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

Table of Contents

Following the Covid-19 pandemic, our employees have returned to working in the office at least two days per week. We believe it is important to create opportunities for our
hybrid workforce to collaborate and to make connections with their colleagues, supporting our culture of innovation.

For more information on the commitment to our employees and other Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") topics visit https://www.cirrus.com/company/esg. We are
not including the information contained on our website as a part of, or incorporating it by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

Our business faces significant risks. The risk factors set forth below may not be the only risks that we face and there is a risk that we may have failed to identify all possible
risk factors. Additional risks that we are not aware of yet or that currently are not material may adversely affect our business operations. You should read the following cautionary
statements in conjunction with the factors discussed elsewhere in this and other Cirrus Logic filings with the SEC. These cautionary statements are intended to highlight certain
factors that may affect the financial condition and results of operations of Cirrus Logic and are not meant to be an exhaustive discussion of all of the risks that apply to companies
such as ours. may be associated with an investment in our securities.

Summary of Risk Factors

The following summarizes the principal factors that make an investment in the Company speculative or risky. This summary should be read in conjunction with the remainder
of this “Item 1A. Risk Factors” section and should not be relied upon as an exhaustive summary of the material risks facing our business.

Business & Operational Risks
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* Risks related to dependence on a limited number of customers and distributors and a lack of diversification in our revenue base, including risks related to the loss of, or a
significant reduction in orders from, or pricing on products sold to, any key customer or distributor

* Risks related to third-party manufacturing and supply chain relationships

* Risks related to our long-term capacity reservation and wafer supply agreement with GlobalFoundries

* Risks related to fluctuation in sales in the consumer electronics and smartphone markets

* Risks related to global economic conditions, including economic downturns or recessions and the effects of inflationary pressures

* Risks related to our international operations, including government trade policies and delays or disruptions to our international subcontractors, which may be impacted by
political/economic factors

* Risks related to system security, cyber-attacks, and data breaches

* Risks related to strong competition in the semiconductor market, including competition to attract, hire, and retain highly qualified personnel

¢ Risks related to our fabless business model

« Risks related to the use or application of emerging technologies, including artificial intelligence

¢ Risks related to acquiring other companies or technologies

* Risks related to product concentration, difficulty in forecasting sales due to customers' ability to cancel or reschedule orders, and declining average selling prices

Strategic & Industry Risks

* Risks related to joint development or other custom product collaborations, including the development of products for specific system architectures

« Risks related to the timely development, production, and acceptance of new and advanced technologies while complying with increasingly stringent environmental
regulations

* Risks related to increasing complexity of our products and the potential for security vulnerabilities or other product defects and difficulties in transitioning to advanced
manufacturing process technologies

« Risks related to changes in the system architecture of our customers' end products

* Risks related to our ability to protect our intellectual property rights

Financial Risks

* Risks related to exposure to tax liabilities and changes in tax laws
« Risks related to fluctuations in inventory, including risks related to our customers’ ability to cancel/reschedule orders on short notice
* Risks related to fluctuations in operating results, stock price, and foreign currency exposures
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* Risks related to debt obligations, including under our Second Amended Credit Agreement
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Legal & General Risks
* Risks related to intellectual property claims and litigation and export control regulations
* Risks related to certain provisions of Delaware law and our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws
« Risks related to corporate social responsibility initiatives and ESG matters
* Risks related to owning real property

Business and Operational Risks

We depend on a limited number of customers and distributors for a substantial portion of our sales, and the loss of, or a significant reduction in orders from, or pricing
on products sold to, any key customer or distributor could significantly reduce our sales and our profitability.

While we generate sales from a broad base of customers worldwide, the loss of any of our key customers, or a significant reduction in sales or selling prices to any key
customer, or reductions in selling prices made to retain key customer relationships, would significantly reduce our revenue, margins, and earnings and adversely affect our business.
For the twelve-month period periods ending March 30, 2024, March 25, 2023, and each of the twelve-month periods ending March 26, 2022, and March 27, 2021 our ten largest end
customers represented approximately 95 percent, 92 percent and 93 percent of our sales, respectively. For the twelve-month periods ending March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March
26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27, 2021 March 26, 2022, we had one end customer, Apple Inc., who purchased through multiple contract manufacturers and represented
approximately 87 percent, 83 percent 79 percent and 83 79 percent of the Company’s total sales, respectively.

We may not be able to maintain or increase sales to certain of our key customers for a variety of reasons, including:
- most of our customers can stop incorporating our products into their own products with limited notice to us and suffer little or no penalty;
- our agreements with our customers typically do not require them to purchase a minimum quantity of our products;

- many of our customers have pre-existing or concurrent relationships with our current or potential competitors that may affect the customers’ decisions to purchase our products;
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- many of our customers have sufficient resources to internally develop technology solutions and semiconductor components that could replace the products that we currently supply
in our customers’ end products;

- our customers face intense competition from other manufacturers that do not use our products;

- our customers may be subject to investigations and litigation that could result in injunctive or other relief that negatively impacts sales of their products, which in turn would result in
a decrease in demand for our products;

- our customers regularly evaluate alternative sources of supply in order to diversify their supplier base, which increases their negotiating leverage with us and their ability to either
obtain or dual source dual-source components from other suppliers. suppliers; and

- our current customers may be hesitant in some cases to award new business to us based on their desire to manage their supply chain risks around any potential over-dependence
on a supplier or supply chain.

In addition, our dependence on a limited number of key customers may make it easier for them to demand favorable commercial terms or to pressure us on price reductions or to
not accept price increases resulting from unexpected or additional cost increases or fees associated with our suppliers. We have experienced pricing pressure from certain key
customers, and we expect that the average selling prices ("ASPs") for certain of our products will decline from time to time, potentially reducing our revenue, margins, and earnings.
Our key customer relationships often require us to develop new products that may involve significant technological challenges. Our customers frequently place considerable
pressure on us to meet tight development schedules. In addition, we have entered, and may again enter in the future, into customer agreements providing for exclusivity periods
during which we may only sell specified products or technology to a specific customer. Even without exclusivity periods, the products that we develop are often specific to our

customer's system architecture and frequently cannot be sold to other customers. Accordingly, we have in the past and may in the future devote a substantial amount of resources
to strategic relationships, which could detract from or delay our completion of other important development projects or the development of next generation next-generation products
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and technologies, and notwithstanding our efforts, our customers may not be obligated to purchase new products that we develop for them, which could impact our operating
results, financial condition, and cash flows. For example, in April 2023, we were informed that a new product that we had developed for a key customer for introduction in the fall of
calendar 2023 was no longer expected to come to market as planned.

Our reliance on certain customers may continue to increase, which could heighten the risks associated with having key
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customers, including making us more vulnerable to significant reductions in revenue, margins, and earnings, earnings; pricing pressure, pressure; and other adverse effects on our
business.

We are dependent on third-party manufacturing and supply chain relationships for all of our products. Our reliance on third-party foundries and suppliers involves
certain risks that may result in increased costs, delays in meeting our customers’ demand, and loss of revenue.

We do not own or operate a semiconductor fabrication facility and do not have the resources to manufacture our products internally. We use third parties to fabricate, assemble,
package, and test the vast majority of our products. As a result, we are subject to risks associated with these third parties, including:

- insufficient capacity available to meet our demand on time;

- inability for of our suppliers to obtain the equipment or replacement parts necessary to fully operate their facilities or expand available manufacturing capacity;

- inadequate manufacturing yields and excessive costs;

- inability of these third parties to obtain an adequate supply of raw materials;

- extended lead times on supplies used in the manufacturing of our products;

- difficulties selecting and integrating new subcontractors;

- limited warranties on products supplied to us;

- potential increases in prices (including the cost of freight); and

- increased exposure to potential misappropriation of our intellectual property.

Outside of our long-term supply agreement for wafer fabrication supply with GlobalFoundries, our outside foundries and assembly and test suppliers generally manufacture our

products on a purchase order basis, and we have few other long-term supply arrangements with these suppliers. Therefore, our third-party manufacturers and suppliers are not

obligated to supply us with products for any specific period of time, quantity, or price, except as may be provided in any particular purchase order or in relation to an existing supply
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agreement. A manufacturing or supply disruption experienced by one or more of our outside suppliers or a disruption of our relationship with an outside foundry could negatively
impact the production of certain of our products for a substantial period of time.

We have experienced the effects of industry-wide manufacturing capacity constraints. These supply challenges have impacted, and may continue to impact, our ability to fully satisfy
increases in demand for some of our products. We do not typically manufacture the majority of these products at more than one foundry or more than one assembly and test
subcontractor, and the costs and effort associated with the potential transfer of any portion of our supply chain to a backup supplier would likely be substantial. Therefore, if one or
more of our third-party manufacturers and suppliers are not able to provide us sufficient capacity to meet our current demand, we may not be able to ship our products to customers
on time and in the quantity requested, which could cause an unanticipated decline in our sales and damage our existing customer relationships and our ability to establish new
customer relationships. Capacity constraints could further result in increased prices in our supply chain, which, if we are unable to increase our selling prices or if we have previously
committed to pricing, could result in lower revenues and margins that could adversely affect our financial results.

In addition, difficulties associated with adapting our technology and product design to the proprietary process technology and design rules of outside foundries can lead to reduced
yields of our products. Since low yields may result from either design or process technology failures, yield problems may not be effectively determined or resolved until an actual
product exists that can be analyzed and tested to identify process sensitivities relating to the design rules that are used. As a
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result, yield problems may not be identified until well into the production process, and resolution of yield problems may require cooperation between our manufacturer and us. This
risk could be compounded by the offshore location of certain of our manufacturers, increasing the effort and time required to identify, communicate, and resolve manufacturing yield
problems. Manufacturing defects that we do not discover during the manufacturing or testing process may lead to costly product recalls. These risks may lead to increased costs or
delayed product delivery, which would harm our profitability and customer relationships.
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In some cases, our requirements may represent a small portion of the total production of the third-party suppliers. As a result, we are subject to the risk that a producer will cease
production of an older or lower-volume process that it uses to produce our parts. We cannot provide any assurance that our external foundries will continue to devote resources to
the production of parts for our products or continue to advance the process design technologies on which the manufacturing of our products are based. Each of these events could
increase our costs, lower our gross margin, and cause us to hold more inventories, or materially impact our ability to deliver our products on time.

We have a long-term capacity reservation and wafer supply agreement with GlobalFoundries, which includes obligations to purchase wafers from GlobalFoundries
through calendar year 2026. If our requirements are different from the number of wafers that we have committed to purchase from GlobalFoundries, or if
GlobalFoundries is not able to satisfy our manufacturing requirements, our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely impacted.

In 2021, in an effort to alleviate some of our future expected supply constraints, the Company entered into a Capacity Reservation and Wafer Supply Commitment Agreement with
GlobalFoundries on July 28, 2021 to reserve capacity and set wafer pricing for products purchased pursuant to the agreement through 2026.

Although we believe this agreement is a good use of our financial resources and secures capacity for certain products through 2026, the agreement with GlobalFoundries involves
certain risks that may result in excess inventory, place us at a competitive disadvantage, have a negative impact on our liquidity, or adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company is required to purchase, and GlobalFoundries is required to supply, a certain number of wafers on a quarterly basis.
Customers, on occasion, cancel, reschedule orders, or change future product plans on short notice, which can lead to our actual wafer requirements being less than the number of
wafers required to meet the applicable wafer purchase requirements, potentially resulting in excess inventory or higher inventory unit costs, both of which may adversely impact our
gross margin and our results of operations.

Additionally, the agreement sets forth pricing for wafer purchases pursuant to the agreement through 2026. If market conditions change and wafer prices in the market decrease
significantly below what is contemplated in the agreement, the agreement may put us at a competitive disadvantage relative to our competitors.

Even with a long-term supply agreement, we are still subject to risks that GlobalFoundries will be unable to meet their supply commitments, achieve anticipated manufacturing
yields, manufacture our products on a timely basis, or provide additional wafer capacity beyond its current contractual commitments sufficient to meet our customers' product
demands. If so, we may experience delays in product launches or supply shortages for certain products, which could cause an unanticipated decline in our sales and damage our
existing customer relationships and our ability to establish new customer relationships. In addition, if GlobalFoundries experiences financial difficulties or goes into bankruptcy, it
could be difficult or impossible, or may require substantial time and expense, for us to recover any or all of our prepayments made as part of the agreement.

Any of the foregoing could materially harm our liquidity, financial condition and results of operations and could put us at a disadvantage relative to our competitors.

Changes in government trade policies, including the imposition of tariffs and export restrictions, could have an adverse impact on our business operations and sales.
The United States or foreign governments may enact changes in government trade policies that could adversely impact our ability to sell products in certain countries. For example,
the U.S. government has imposed tariffs on certain Chinese imports and, in return, the Chinese government has imposed or proposed tariffs on certain U.S. products. Additionally,
export restrictions imposed by the U.S. government, including the addition of licensing requirements by the United States Department of Commerce's Bureau of Industry and

Security ("BIS") through the addition of companies to the BIS Entity List, as well as trade restrictions imposed by the U.S. related to goods imported from regions in China with
records of forced labor and other human rights issues, may require us to suspend our business with certain international customers and/or manufacturing entities
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if we conclude or are notified by the U.S. government that such business presents a risk of noncompliance with U.S. regulations.

We cannot predict what actions may be taken with respect to tariffs or trade relations, what products may be subject to such actions, or what actions may be taken by other
countries in response. It also may not be possible to anticipate the timing or duration of such tariffs, export restrictions, or other regulatory actions. These government trade policies
may materially adversely affect our sales and operations with current customers as well as impede our ability to develop relationships with new customers.

While we have received licenses from the U.S. government to export certain items to companies on the BIS Entity List, there can be no assurances that we will be able to continue
to obtain or maintain licenses for the manufacture or sale of future products or for other entities if the U.S government adds other companies to the BIS Entity List and/or subjects
them to additional trade restrictions. Despite our receipt of licenses, BIS Entity List restrictions may also encourage foreign customers to seek a greater supply of similar or
substitute products from competitors or other third parties who are not subject to these restrictions or to develop their own solutions, especially as the Chinese government develops
its domestic semiconductor industry. If export restrictions and tariffs are sustained for a long period of time, or increased, or if other export restrictions are imposed in the future, our
long-term competitiveness as a supplier, particularly in China, will likely be impacted.

There is a risk of further escalation and retaliatory actions between the U.S. and other foreign governments. If significant tariffs or other restrictions are placed on goods exported
from China or any related counter-measures are taken, our revenue and results of operations may be materially harmed. These tariffs may also make our customers' products more
expensive for consumers, which may reduce consumer demand.

The U.S. government also may seek to implement more protective trade measures, not just with respect to China but with respect to other countries as well. This could include new
or higher tariffs and even more restrictive trade barriers, such as prohibiting certain types of, or all, sales of certain products or products sold by certain parties into the U.S. Any
increased trade barriers or restrictions on global trade could have a materially adverse impact on our business and financial results.

Our results may be affected by fluctuation in sales in the consumer electronics and smartphone markets.

Because we sell products primarily in the consumer electronics and smartphone markets, we are likely to be affected by any decrease in demand or unit volumes, seasonality in the
sales of our products, and the cyclical nature of these markets. We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, slowing growth in a maturing smartphone market, due
to, among other factors, market saturation in developed countries, lengthening replacement cycles, and a growing market for refurbished devices. Further, a decline in consumer
confidence and consumer spending relating to economic conditions, inflationary pressures, terrorist attacks, armed conflicts, oil prices, global health conditions, natural disasters,
and/or the political stability of countries in which we operate or sell products could have an adverse effect on consumer demand in these markets, which would likely impact our
business, operating results, and financial condition.

We may be adversely impacted by global economic conditions. As a result, our financial results and the market price of our common shares may decline.

We have been and may continue to be adversely impacted by global economic conditions. Global economic conditions could make it difficult for our customers, our suppliers, and
us to accurately forecast and plan future business activities and could cause global businesses to defer or reduce spending on our products, or increase the costs of manufacturing
our products.
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During challenging economic times our customers and distributors may face issues gaining timely access to sufficient credit, which could impact their ability to make timely
payments to us. If that were to occur, we may be required to increase our allowance for doubtful accounts and our days sales outstanding would increase. Additionally, if our own
supply chain or others from whom our customers source are financially impacted and ultimately unable to deliver their required component(s), then our customers may delay or
cancel their orders from us.

We cannot predict the timing, strength, or duration of any economic slowdown or subsequent economic recovery. However, recently, inflation has been a significant continues to be
an issue in the U.S. and overseas, resulting in rising transportation, wages, and other costs. Inflation has and may continue to increase our cost of labor, manufacturing, and other
costs. If our costs continue to be subject to significant inflationary pressures, we may not be able to fully offset such higher costs with increased prices or revenues. Our inability or
failure to do so could harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, inflationary pressures could also result in a decline in consumer confidence and
spending, potentially impacting demand for our customers' end products in the consumer electronics and smartphone markets. Any such decline would likely impact our business,
operating results, and financial condition.
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Moreover, we regularly maintain cash balances at third-party financial institutions in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurance limit or at financial
institutions located outside the U.S. where FDIC insurance does not apply. If a depository institution fails to return our deposits or if a depository institution is subject to other adverse
conditions in the financial or credit markets, there is no guarantee that we have access to such uninsured deposits, which could restrict access to our cash or cash equivalents and
could adversely impact our operating liquidity, financial condition, and results of operations.

The lack of diversification in our revenue and customer base increases the risk of an investment in our company, and our consolidated financial condition, results of
operations, and stock price may deteriorate if we fail to diversify.
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Although we continue to investigate, invest in, and try to develop continuously explore opportunities to diversify our revenue and customer base, our sales, marketing, and
development efforts have historically been focused on a limited number of customers and opportunities. Many companies have the ability to manage their risk by product, market,
and customer diversification. However, we lack diversification, in terms of both the nature and scope of our business, which increases the risk of an investment in our company. If we
cannot diversify our customer and revenue opportunities, our financial condition and results of operations could deteriorate.

Changes in government trade policies, including the imposition of tariffs and export restrictions, could have an adverse impact on our business operations and sales.

The United States or foreign governments may enact changes in government trade policies that could adversely impact our ability to sell products in certain countries. For example,
the U.S. government has imposed tariffs on certain Chinese imports and, in return, the Chinese government has imposed or proposed tariffs on certain U.S. products. Additionally,
export restrictions imposed by the U.S. government, including the addition of licensing requirements by the United States Department of Commerce's Bureau of Industry and
Security ("BIS") through the addition of companies to the BIS Entity List, as well as trade restrictions imposed by the U.S. related to goods imported from regions in China with
records of forced labor and other human rights issues, may require us to suspend our business with certain international customers and/or manufacturing entities if we conclude or
are notified by the U.S. government that such business presents a risk of noncompliance with U.S. regulations. For example, on October 7, 2022, BIS issued export controls
requiring licenses for the export of advanced computing items along with licensing requirements for U.S. persons associated with the support, development, and production of
certain semiconductor items in China.

We cannot predict what actions may be taken with respect to tariffs or trade relations, what products may be subject to such actions, or what actions may be taken by other
countries in response. It also may not be possible to anticipate the timing or duration of such tariffs, export restrictions, or other regulatory actions. These government trade policies
may materially adversely affect our sales and operations with current customers as well as impede our ability to develop relationships with new customers.

While we have received licenses from the U.S. government to export certain items to companies on the BIS Entity List, there can be no assurances that we will be able to continue
to obtain or maintain licenses for the manufacture or sale of future products or for other entities if the U.S government adds other companies to the BIS Entity List and/or subjects
them to additional trade restrictions. Despite our receipt of licenses, BIS Entity List restrictions may also encourage foreign customers to seek a greater supply of similar or
substitute products from competitors or other third parties who are not subject to these restrictions or to develop their own solutions, especially as the Chinese government develops
its domestic semiconductor
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industry. If export restrictions and tariffs are sustained for a long period of time, or increased, or if other export restrictions are imposed in the future, our long-term competitiveness
as a supplier, particularly in China, will likely be impacted.

There is a risk of further escalation and retaliatory actions between the U.S. and other foreign governments. If significant tariffs or other restrictions are placed on goods exported
from China or any related counter-measures are taken, our revenue and results of operations may be materially harmed. These tariffs may also make our customers' products more
expensive for consumers, which may reduce consumer demand.

The U.S. government also may seek to implement more protective trade measures, not just with respect to China but with respect to other countries as well. This could include new
or higher tariffs and even more restrictive trade barriers, such as prohibiting certain types of, or all, sales of certain products or products sold by certain parties into the U.S. Any
increased trade barriers or restrictions on global trade could have a materially adverse impact on our business and financial results.

System security and data breaches, cyber-attacks and other related cyber security incidents could disrupt our internal operations and/or supply chain, result in the
loss of our, our customers', and our suppliers' proprietary and confidential information, adversely impact our reputation and business, and result in potentially
significant expenses, costs, liabilities and other negative consequences, any or all of which could adversely affect results of operations and our stock price.

Despite implementing security measures, we are subject to risk, both at Cirrus Logic and through our supply chain, of attack from malicious threat actors, which could include agents
of organized crime or nation-state or nation-state supported actors. We manage and store various proprietary information and sensitive or confidential data relating to our business
and our employees. In addition, we manage and store a significant amount of proprietary and sensitive or confidential information from third parties, such as our customers and
suppliers. Unauthorized insiders and/or third-party threat actors may be able to penetrate our security measures, evade our controls, or exploit vulnerabilities in our systems or our
third-party providers' systems and misappropriate or compromise our, our customers' or our suppliers' proprietary and confidential information, including intellectual property and
personal information of our current and former employees, create system disruptions, or cause shutdowns. Threat actors also may be able to develop and deploy viruses, worms,
phishing attempts, ransomware, and other malicious software that attack our websites, computer systems, access to critical information, products, or otherwise exploit security
vulnerabilities. The sophistication, scale and frequency of cyber-attacks has continued to increase and evolve at a rapid pace, and the risk of attack may be heightened when our
employees are working remotely remotely. The risk of state-sponsored or geopolitical-related cybersecurity incidents has also increased recently due to geopolitical tensions or
incidents, such as a result of geopolitical events, including Russia's invasion of Ukraine. the war in Ukraine or the Israel-Hamas war. Our prioritization of security measures and
remediation of known vulnerabilities may prove inadequate and we may be unable to anticipate or protect against attacks. If an incident occurs, we may be unable to detect it for an
extended period of time.

Any breach of our security measures or the loss, inadvertent disclosure, or unapproved dissemination of proprietary information or sensitive or confidential data about us, our
customers, our suppliers or our employees, including the potential loss or disclosure of such information or data, could result in numerous risks and adverse consequences. Such
consequences include remediation costs, litigation and potential liability for us, including as a result of U.S. or foreign governmental investigations or enforcement actions, penalties
for violation of applicable laws or regulations, including laws and regulations in the United States and other jurisdictions relating to the collection, use and security of user and other
personally identifiable information and data, damage to our brand and reputation, the loss of sales and customer or supplier relationships, negative impacts to our employee
recruiting and retention, loss of intellectual property protection, risk of inadequate insurance coverage and increased insurance premiums, and numerous other financial, legal and
business risks, any or all of which could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations and result in significant stock price volatility. In addition to our own systems,
our business also is reliant upon the security of various third parties in our supply chain, and any breach of their systems and securities could result in our being subjected to the
numerous risks and adverse consequences noted above.
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We have significant international sales, and risks associated with these sales could harm our operating results.

International sales represented 97 percent of our net sales in fiscal year 2023 and 98 percent in each of fiscal years 2022 and 2021.
We expect international sales to continue to represent a significant portion of product sales. This reliance on international sales subjects us to certain risks, including risks
associated with political and economic instability, global health conditions, currency controls, exchange rate fluctuations, changes in import/export regulations, and tariff and freight

rates. For example, the political or economic instability in a given region may have an adverse impact on the financial position of end users in the region, which could affect future
orders and harm our results of operations. Our international sales operations involve a number of other risks including, but not limited to:
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- unexpected changes in government regulatory requirements;

- sales, VAT, or other indirect tax regulations and treaties and potential changes in regulations and treaties in the United States and in and between countries in which we
manufacture or sell our products;

- changes to countries’ banking and credit requirements;
- changes in diplomatic and trade relationships, including as a result of geopolitical conflict;
- delays resulting from difficulties in obtaining export licenses for technology, particularly in China;

- any changes in U.S. trade policy, including potential adoption and expansion of trade restrictions, higher tariffs, or cross border taxation by the U.S. government involving other
countries, particularly China, that might impact overall customer demand for our products or affect our ability to manufacture and/or sell our products overseas;

- tariffs and other barriers and restrictions, particularly in China;

- competition with non-U.S. companies or other domestic companies entering non-U.S. markets in which we operate;

- longer sales and payment cycles;

- problems in collecting accounts receivable;

- the burdens of complying with a variety of non-U.S. laws; and

- changes to economic, social, or political conditions in countries such as China, where we have significant operations.

In addition, our competitive position may be affected by the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar against other currencies. While our sales are predominately denominated in U.S.
dollars, increases in the value of the dollar would increase the price in local currencies of our products in non-U.S. markets and make our products relatively more expensive. We

cannot provide assurances that regulatory, political, and other factors will not adversely affect our operations in the future or require us to modify our current business practices.

In general, our customers may cancel or reschedule orders on short notice without incurring significant penalties; therefore, our sales and operating results in any
quarter are difficult to forecast.

In general, we rely on customers issuing purchase orders to buy our products rather than long-term supply contracts. Customers on occasion cancel, reschedule, or change future
product plans on short notice without incurring significant penalties. Additionally, while the industry is experiencing manufacturing capacity constraints, it is possible that some
customers may place orders for our products that exceed their actual demand and may cancel all or portions of their order if circumstances change. Cancellations, reductions, or
delays of orders from any significant customer could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations and may require us to recognize excess
inventory write-off charges.

Because our expense levels to a large extent are fixed in the short term, we likely will be unable to adjust spending on a timely basis to compensate for any unexpected shortfall in
sales and our operating results could be harmed in any particular quarter.

Our sales could be materially impacted by the failure of other component suppliers to deliver required parts needed in the final assembly of our customers’ end
products.

The products we supply our customers are typically a portion of the many components provided from multiple suppliers to complete the final assembly of an end product. If other
component suppliers are unable to deliver their required component(s) for the final end product to be assembled, our customers may delay, or ultimately cancel, their orders from us.
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If we fail to attract, hire and retain qualified personnel, we may not be able to develop, market, or sell our products or successfully manage our business.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 14/141

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Competition for highly qualified personnel in our industry, particularly for employees with technical backgrounds, is intense. The number of technology companies in the geographic
areas in which we operate is greater than it has been historically. In addition, some companies in our industry have announced plans to adopt flexible remote work arrangements
that further increase competition for talent. Accordingly, we expect competition for qualified personnel to intensify because there are only a limited number of individuals in the job
market with the skills that we require.

There also is a risk that changes in immigration laws and regulations, or their administration or enforcement, can impair our ability to attract and retain qualified engineering
personnel. In the U.S., where a significant portion of our research and development teams are located, tightening of immigration controls may adversely affect the employment
status of non-U.S. engineers and other key technical employees or further impact our ability to hire new non-U.S. employees. Moreover, certain immigration policies in the U.S. may
make it more difficult for us to recruit and retain highly skilled foreign national graduates of universities in the U.S., additionally limiting the pool of available talent.

There are significant costs to the Company associated with attracting and retaining qualified personnel in key technology positions. Recruiting and employee costs, such as cash
and stock-based compensation, have increased relative to historic levels and may continue to increase, which could adversely affect our results of operations. Further, the loss of
the services of key personnel or our inability to hire new personnel with the requisite skills or to assimilate talent could restrict our ability to develop new products or timely enhance
existing products, sell products to our customers, or manage our business effectively.

Strong competition in the semiconductor market may harm our business.

Our industry is intensely competitive and is frequently characterized by rapid technological change, price erosion, technological obsolescence, and a push towards integrated circuit
("IC") component integration. Because of shortened product life cycles and even shorter design-in cycles in a number of the markets that we serve, our competitors have
increasingly frequent opportunities to achieve design wins in next-generation systems. As markets mature and components become
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commoditized, competitors that can tolerate lower margins/operating income pose a risk to our profitability and growth. In the event that competitors succeed in supplanting our
products, our market share may not be sustainable and our net sales, gross margin and operating results would be adversely affected.

We compete in a number of markets. Our principal competitors in these markets include AKM Semiconductor Inc., Analog Devices Inc., Goodix Technology, Infineon Technologies,
Monolithic Power Systems, Inc., Realtek Semiconductor Corporation, Renesas Electronics Corporation, Shanghai Awinic Technology Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Goodix Technology Co,
Ltd., Skyworks Solutions Inc., Southchip Semiconductor Technology (China), ST Microelectronics N.V., Synaptics Incorporated and Texas Instruments, Inc.

Many of these competitors have greater financial, engineering, manufacturing, marketing, technical, distribution, and other resources; broader product lines; and broader intellectual
property portfolios. We also expect intensified competition from emerging companies and from customers who develop their own IC products or other technologies. In addition,
some of our current and future competitors maintain their own fabrication facilities, which could benefit them in connection with cost, capacity, and technical issues.

We cannot provide assurances that we will be able to compete successfully in the future or that competitive pressures will not adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations. Competitive pressures could reduce market acceptance of our products, reduce selling prices, and increase expenses, which could adversely affect our business and
financial condition.

Because we operate a fabless business model, we may not be eligible for certain U.S. government incentives and tax credits offered to promote domestic
semiconductor production.

From time to time, governments may provide subsidies or make other investments that could give competitive advantages to certain semiconductor companies. For example, in
2022, the U.S. government passed the Creating Helpful Incentives to Produce Semiconductors & Sciences Act to provide $52.7 billion of funding to U.S.-based semiconductor
companies to promote domestic production. Because we operate a fabless business model, we may not be eligible for such incentives from the U.S. government at this time.
However, many of our current and future competitors maintain their own

Table of Contents

fabrication facilities and may secure such funding, which could benefit them in connection with cost, capacity, and technical issues. Additionally, to remain competitive with top talent,
we may need to incur additional costs to provide certain additional benefits even though we are not receiving subsidies or other government funding. These competitive pressures
could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We If we fail to attract, hire and retain qualified personnel, we may acquire other companies not be able to develop, market, or technologies, which may create additional
risks, including risks associated with sell our ability to products or successfully integrate these acquisitions into manage our business.

We Competition for highly qualified personnel in our industry, particularly for employees with technical backgrounds, is intense. Some companies in our industry have adopted
flexible remote work arrangements providing more flexibility than ours that further increase competition for talent. Accordingly, we expect competition for qualified personnel to
intensify because there are only a limited number of individuals in the job market with the skills that we require.

There also is a risk that changes in immigration laws and regulations, or their administration or enforcement, can impair our ability to attract and retain qualified engineering
personnel. In the U.S., where a significant portion of our research and development teams are located, tightening of immigration controls may adversely affect the employment
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status of non-U.S. engineers and other key technical employees or further impact our ability to hire new non-U.S. employees. Moreover, certain immigration policies in the U.S. may
make it more difficult for us to recruit and retain highly skilled foreign national graduates of universities in the U.S., additionally limiting the pool of available talent.

There are significant costs to the Company associated with attracting and retaining qualified personnel in key technology positions. Recruiting and employee costs, such as cash
and stock-based compensation, have increased relative to historic levels and may continue to consider future acquisitions increase, which could adversely affect our results of
operations. Further, the loss of the services of key personnel or our inability to hire new personnel with the requisite skills or to assimilate talent could restrict our ability to develop
new products or timely enhance existing products, sell products to our customers, or manage our business effectively.
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Our sales could be materially impacted by the failure of other companies, or their technologies or products, component suppliers to improve our market position,
broaden our technological capabilities, and expand our product offerings. Acquiring companies or technologies involves a number of risks, including, but not limited
to:

-deliver required parts needed in the potential disruption final assembly of our ongoing business; customers’ end products.

- unexpected costs or incurring unknown liabilities;
- the diversion of management resources from other strategic and operational issues;

- the inability to retain the employees
The products we supply our customers are typically a portion of the acquired businesses;

- difficulties relating many components provided from multiple suppliers to integrating complete the operations and personnelfinal assembly of the acquired businesses;
- adverse effects on our existing customer relationships or the existing customer relationships of acquired businesses;

- the potential incompatibility of the acquired business or their business customers;

- adverse effects associated with entering into markets and acquiring technologies in areas in which we have little experience; and

- acquired intangible assets, including goodwill, becoming impaired as a result of technological advancements or worse-than-expected performance of the acquired business. For
example, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023, we revalued the acquired intangible assets from the acquisition of Lion Semiconductor and recorded an impairment charge of
$85.8 million related to the acquired intangible assets. For further detail, see Note 7, "Intangibles, net and Goodwill."

end product. If we other component suppliers are unable to successfully address any of these risks, deliver their required component(s) for the final end product to be assembled,
our business could customers may delay, or ultimately cancel, their orders from us. For example, shipping routes in the Middle East have been and may in the future be
harmed. disrupted, lengthening the time for shipments to reach their destinations.

Because we depend on subcontractors internationally to perform key manufacturing functions for us, we are subject to political, economic, climate and natural disaster
risks that could disrupt the fabrication, assembly, packaging, or testing of our products.

We depend on third-party subcontractors, primarily in Asia, for the fabrication, assembly, packaging, and testing of most of our products. International operations may be subject to a
variety of risks, including political instability, global health conditions, currency controls, exchange rate fluctuations, changes in import/export regulations, tariff and freight rates, as
well as the risks of natural disasters such as earthquakes, tsunamis, and floods. The potential physical impacts of climate change, including high heat events, power or water
shortages, fires, rising sea levels, changes in storm patterns or intensities, or other extreme weather conditions, are uncertain and could impact operations at our subcontractors.
Any disruption to our manufacturing cycle could adversely affect our operations and financial results.

Although we seek to reduce our dependence on any one subcontractor, the substantial majority of our semiconductor wafers are manufactured by TSMC at fabs in Taiwan, and
GlobalFoundries in Singapore and Germany. This concentration of subcontractors and manufacturing operations, subjects us to the risks of conducting business internationally,
including associated political and economic conditions. If we experience manufacturing problems at a particular location, or a supplier is unable to continue operating due to financial
difficulties, natural disasters, political or economic turmoil or conflict, or other reasons, we would be required to transfer manufacturing to a backup supplier. Transferring from a
primary supplier to another facility would likely result in increased production costs and a delay in production. Further, such a transition may not be possible, particularly in a supply
constrained environment. There are only a few foundries that are currently available for certain advanced processing technologies that we utilize or may utilize. As a result, delays in
our production or shipping by the parties to whom we outsource these functions could reduce our sales, damage our customer relationships, and damage our reputation in the
marketplace, any of which could harm our business, results of operations, and financial condition.
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For example, we rely on several third-party suppliers located in Taiwan. Any deterioration in the social, political, or economic conditions in Taiwan, particularly as it relates to China-
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Taiwan relations, may disrupt our business operations and materially and adversely affect our results of operations. Similarly, our operations also could be harmed, and our costs
could increase, if Russia’s invasion of the war in Ukraine results in a shortage of materials that our suppliers require to manufacture our products.

In addition, we are currently working with a supplier that is headquartered in Israel on the development of additional manufacturing alternatives. The declaration of war by Israel
against Hamas, the rising tensions in the Middle East, and the resulting actions that may be taken by governments in response to the war could potentially impact or delay the

supplier's ability to provide timely engineering support that may be required to advance our efforts to develop future manufacturing alternatives.

Risks relating to the adoption, use or application of emerging technologies, including artificial intelligence may impact financial results and could result in reputational
and financial harm and liability.

Artificial intelligence ("Al") is a rapidly developing field that presents both risks and opportunities. For example, our business operations and research and development tasks may
benefit from the use of Al tools. It is possible that we may not leverage this technological change as effectively as our competitors. Additionally, while we have developed internal
policies to govern the use of Al, risks exist relating to the protection of data (including the potential exposure of our or our customers’ proprietary and confidential information), the

misuse of third-party intellectual property, or our failure to identify and correct deficiencies or inaccuracies generated by Al. Our failure to utilize Al responsibly may impact our
reputation and could have a negative impact our business, operating results, and financial condition.
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In general, our customers may cancel or reschedule orders on short notice without incurring significant penalties; therefore, our sales and operating results in any
quarter are difficult to forecast.

In general, we rely on customers issuing purchase orders to buy our products rather than long-term supply contracts. Customers on occasion cancel, reschedule, or change future
product plans on short notice without incurring significant penalties. Additionally, it is possible that some customers may place orders for our products that exceed their actual
demand and may cancel all or portions of their order if circumstances change. Cancellations, reductions, or delays of orders from any significant customer could have an adverse

effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations and may require us to recognize excess inventory write-off charges.

Because our expense levels to a large extent are fixed in the short term, we likely will be unable to adjust spending on a timely basis to compensate for any unexpected shortfall in
sales and our operating results could be harmed in any particular quarter.

Our products may be subject to average selling prices that decline over time. If we are unable to maintain or increase average selling prices for existing products,
increase our volumes, introduce new or enhanced products with higher selling prices, or reduce our costs, our business and operating results could be harmed.

Historically in the semiconductor industry, average selling prices of products have decreased over time. Moreover, our dependence on a limited number of key customers may make
it easier for key customers to pressure us to reduce prices. Further, we have made commitments not to exceed certain pricing with some key customers on some of our products,
and as a result, we may not be able to pass on any unexpected or additional cost increases or fees associated with our suppliers.

If the average selling price of any of our products declines or we are unable to pass on increased supply costs to our customers, and we are unable to increase our unit volumes,
introduce new or enhanced products with higher margins, and/or reduce manufacturing costs to offset anticipated decreases in the prices of our existing products, our operating

results may be adversely affected.

In addition, because of procurement lead times, we are limited in our ability to reduce total costs quickly in response to any reductions in prices or sales shortfalls. Because of these
factors, we may experience adverse fluctuations in our future operating results on a quarterly or annual basis.

We are subject to risks relating to product concentration.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenues from a limited number of products, and we expect these products to represent a large percentage of our revenues in the near term.
Customer acceptance of these products is critical to our future success. Our business, operating results, financial condition and cash flows could therefore be adversely affected by:

- a decline in demand for any of our more significant products;

- a decline in the average selling prices of our more significant products;

- failure of our products to achieve continued market acceptance;

- competitive products;

- new technological standards or changes to existing standards that we are unable to address with our products;
- manufacturing or supply issues that prevent us from meeting our customers’ demand for these products;

- a failure to release new products or enhanced versions of our existing products on a timely basis;

- the failure of our new products to achieve market acceptance; and

- any changes to a customer's future product plans.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 17/141

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Our products may be subject to average selling prices that decline over time. If we are unable to maintain or increase average selling prices for existing
products, increase our volumes, introduce new or enhanced products with higher selling prices, or reduce our costs, our business and operating results could be
harmed.

Historically in the semiconductor industry, average selling prices

prices. Further, we have made commitments not to exceed certain pricing with some key customers on some of our products, and as a result, we may not be able to pass on any.

unexpected or additional costs increases or fees associated with our suppliers.

If the average selling_price of any_of our products declines or we are unable to pass on increased supply_costs to our customers, and we are unable to increase our unit volumes,
introduce new or enhanced products with higher margins, and/or reduce manufacturing_costs to offset anticipated decreases in the prices of our existing_products, our operating
results may be adversely affected.

factors, we may experience adverse fluctuations in our future operating results on a quarterly or annual basis. Contents

Our international operations subject our business to additional political and economic risks that could have an adverse impact on our business.
In addition to international sales constituting a large portion of our net sales, we maintain international operations, sales, and technical support personnel. International expansion
has required, and will continue to require, significant management attention and resources. There are risks inherent in expanding our presence into non-U.S. regions, including, but

not limited to:

- difficulties in staffing and managing non-U.S. operations, including compliance with local employment regulations;
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- failure in non-U.S. regions to adequately protect our intellectual property, patent, trademarks, copyrights, know-how, and other proprietary rights and the risk of potential theft or
compromise of our intellectual property;

- global health conditions and potential natural disasters, including those resulting from climate change;
- power or water shortages or other operational disruptions, including those resulting from extreme weather conditions;
- political, social and economic instability in international regions, including wars;
- international currency controls and exchange rate fluctuations;
- financial accounting and reporting burdens and complexities;
- vulnerability to terrorist groups targeting U.S. interests abroad;
- legal uncertainty regarding liability and compliance with non-U.S. laws and regulatory requirements; and
- changing U.S. regulation of foreign operations, including potential sanctions.
If we are unable to successfully manage the demands of our international operations, it may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.
We have significant international sales, and risks associated with these sales could harm our operating results.
International sales represented 99 percent, 97 percent, and 98 percent of our net sales in fiscal year 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.
We expect international sales to continue to represent a significant portion of product sales. This reliance on international sales subjects us to certain risks, including risks
associated with political and economic instability, global health conditions, currency controls, exchange rate fluctuations, changes in import/export regulations, and tariff and freight
rates. For example, the political or economic instability in a given region may have an adverse impact on the financial position of end users in the region, which could affect future
orders and harm our results of operations. Our international sales operations involve a number of other risks including, but not limited to:

- unexpected changes in government regulatory requirements;

- sales, VAT, or other indirect tax regulations and treaties and potential changes in regulations and treaties in the United States and in and between countries in which we
manufacture or sell our products;

- changes to countries’ banking and credit requirements;
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- changes in diplomatic and trade relationships, including as a result of geopolitical conflict;
- delays resulting from difficulties in obtaining export licenses for technology, particularly in China;

- any changes in U.S. trade policy, including potential adoption and expansion of trade restrictions, higher tariffs, or cross border taxation by the U.S. government involving other
countries, particularly China, that might impact overall customer demand for our products or affect our ability to manufacture and/or sell our products overseas;
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- tariffs and other barriers and restrictions, particularly in China;

- competition with non-U.S. companies or other domestic companies entering non-U.S. markets in which we operate;

- longer sales and payment cycles;

- problems in collecting accounts receivable;

- the burdens of complying with a variety of non-U.S. laws; and

- changes to economic, social, or political conditions in countries such as Taiwan and China, where we have significant operations.

In addition, our competitive position may be affected by the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar against other currencies. While our sales are predominately denominated in U.S.
dollars, increases in the value of the dollar would increase the price in local currencies of our products in non-U.S. markets and make our products relatively more expensive. We

cannot provide assurances that regulatory, political, and other factors will not adversely affect our operations in the future or require us to modify our current business practices.

We may acquire other companies or technologies, which may create additional risks, including risks associated with our ability to successfully integrate these
acquisitions into our business.

We continue to consider future acquisitions of other companies, or their technologies or products, to improve our market position, broaden our technological capabilities, and expand
our product offerings. Acquiring companies or technologies involves a number of risks, including, but not limited to:

- the potential disruption of our ongoing business;

- unexpected costs or incurring unknown liabilities;

- the diversion of management resources from other strategic and operational issues;

- the inability to retain the employees of the acquired businesses;

- difficulties relating to integrating the operations and personnel of the acquired businesses;

- adverse effects on our existing customer relationships or the existing customer relationships of acquired businesses;

- the potential incompatibility of the acquired business or their business customers;

- adverse effects associated with entering into markets and acquiring technologies in areas in which we have little experience; and

- acquired intangible assets, including goodwill, becoming impaired as a result of technological advancements or worse-than-expected performance of the acquired business. For
example, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023, we revalued the acquired intangible assets from the acquisition of Lion Semiconductor and recorded an impairment charge of

$85.8 million related to the acquired intangible assets. For further detail, see Note 7, "Intangibles, net and Goodwill."

If we are unable to successfully address any of these risks, our business could be harmed.
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Strategic and Industry Risks

We have entered into, and may enter into in the future, joint development agreements, custom product arrangements, and strategic relationships with some of our
largest customers. These arrangements subject us to a number of risks, and any failure to execute on any of these arrangements could have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

We have entered into, and may enter into in the future, joint development, product collaboration and technology licensing arrangements with some of our largest customers, and we
expect to enter into new strategic arrangements of these kinds from time to time in the future. Such arrangements can magnify several risks for us, including loss of control over the
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development and development timeline of jointly developed products, risks associated with the ownership of the intellectual property developed pursuant to such arrangements, and
increased risk that our joint development activities may result in products that are not commercially successful or that are not available in a timely fashion. In addition, any third party
with whom we enter into a joint development, product collaboration, or technology licensing arrangement may fail to commit sufficient resources to the project, change its policies or
priorities, or abandon or fail to perform its obligations related to such arrangement. We have previously and may in the future enter into customer product arrangements that provide
for exclusivity periods during which we may only sell specified products or technologies to that particular customer. Any failure to timely develop commercially successful products
through our joint development activities as a result of any of these and other challenges could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial
condition.

Our failure to develop and ramp new products into production in a timely manner could harm our operating results.

Our success depends upon our ability to develop new products for new and existing customers, and to introduce these products in a timely and cost-effective manner. The
development of new products involves significant investment and is highly complex. From time-to-time, we have experienced delays in developing and introducing these new
products. Successful product development and introduction depend on a number of factors including, but not limited to:

- proper new product definition;
- timely completion of design and testing of new products;

- assisting our customers with integration of our components into their new products, including providing support from the concept stage through design, launch and production
ramp;
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- successfully developing and implementing software necessary to integrate our products into our customers’ products;
- achievement of acceptable manufacturing yields;

- availability of wafer fabrication, assembly, and test capacity; and

- market acceptance of our products and the products of our customers.

Both sales and/or margins may be materially affected if new product introductions are delayed, or if our products are not designed into successive generations of new or existing
customers’ products. Our failure to develop and introduce new products successfully could harm our business and operating results.

In addition, difficulties associated with adapting our technology and product design to the proprietary process technology and design rules of new foundries can lead to
complications resulting in delays and/or reduced yields of our products. Since low yields may result from either design or process technology failures, yield problems may not be
effectively determined or resolved until an actual product exists that can be analyzed and tested to identify process sensitivities relating to the design rules that are used. As a result,
yield problems may not be identified until well into the production process, and resolution of yield problems may require cooperation between our manufacturer and us. This risk
could be compounded by the offshore location of certain of our manufacturers, increasing the effort and time required to identify, communicate, and resolve manufacturing yield
problems. Manufacturing defects that we do not discover during the manufacturing or testing process may lead to costly product recalls. These risks may lead to increased costs or
delayed product delivery, which would harm our profitability and customer relationships.

We continue to invest in research and development efforts for several new markets. If we are unable to commercialize these technologies, our future results and
profits could be negatively affected.

Our investments into new markets subject us to additional risks. We may have limited or no experience in these markets, and our customers may not adopt our
new offerings. These new offerings may present new and difficult challenges, including risks related to technology, customers, competitors, product cycles,
customer demand, terms and conditions and other industry specific issues which could negatively affect our operating results. These developing products and
market segments may not grow as significantly or as quickly as projected, or at all, and we may not realize an adequate return on our investments or may be
required to write-down the value

Table of certain tangible and intangible assets. Contents

Our products are increasingly complex and could contain defects, which could result in material costs to us.

Product development in the markets we serve is becoming more focused on the integration of multiple functions on individual devices. There is a general trend towards increasingly
complex products, including software or firmware developed by us and/or third parties. The greater integration of functions and complexity of operations of our products increases
the risk that we or our customers or end users could discover latent defects or subtle faults after volumes of product have been shipped. Quality and reliability issues could result in
material costs and other adverse consequences to us, including, but not limited to:

- reduced margins;

- damage to our reputation;

- replacement costs for product warranty and support;
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- payments to our customers related to recall claims, or the delivery of product replacements as part of a recall claim, as a result of various industry or business practices,
contractual requirements, or in order to maintain good customer relationships;

- an adverse impact to our customer relationships by the occurrence of significant defects;
- a delay in recognition or loss of revenues, loss of market share, or failure to achieve market acceptance;
- writing off or reserving the value of inventory of such products; and

- a diversion of the attention of our engineering personnel from our product development efforts.
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In addition, any defects or other problems with our products could result in financial losses or other damages to our customers who could seek damages from us for their losses. A
product liability or warranty claim brought against us, even if unsuccessful, would likely be time consuming and costly to defend. In particular, the sale of systems and components
that are incorporated into certain applications for the automotive industry involves a high degree of risk that such claims may be made.

While we believe that we are reasonably insured against some of these risks and that we have attempted to contractually limit our financial exposure with many of our customers, a
warranty or product liability claim against us in excess of our available insurance coverage and established reserves, or a requirement that we participate in a customer product
recall, could have material adverse effects on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

We may experience difficulties developing and transitioning to advanced manufacturing process technologies, which could materially adversely affect our results.

Our future success depends in part on our ability to expand our manufacturing capacity and transition our current development and production efforts to advanced manufacturing
process technologies. We are currently making a significant investment to transition our products and intellectual property to next-generation circuit geometries, for example 22
nanometers. If we are unable to reliably model behaviors required for circuit design and product requirements, then our product development may be adversely impacted. To the
extent that we do not timely develop or transition to smaller geometries, experience difficulties in shifting to smaller geometries, or have significant quality or reliability issues at these
smaller geometries, our results could be materially adversely affected. Further, if there are delays from such development or transition, we may have insufficient capacity to meet
customer demand, which may impact our future operating results.

Security vulnerabilities may exist in our products, which could expose us to significant costs and damage our business.

Our hardware and software products, including software tools deployed by our customers, may be vulnerable to cyber-attacks. An attack could disrupt the proper functioning of our
products, disrupt or cause errors in our customers' products, allow unauthorized access to our or our customers' proprietary information, or cause other destructive outcomes. A
failure to prevent or mitigate such an attack could harm our business reputation, diminish our competitive position in the market, and expose us to significant expense and liability.

The costs to eliminate or alleviate cyber or other security problems, bugs, viruses, worms, phishing attempts, ransomware, malicious software programs and security vulnerabilities
could be significant, and our efforts to address these problems may not succeed and could result in interruptions, delays, an inability to access information, cessation of service and
loss of existing or potential customers that may impede our sales, manufacturing, distribution or other critical functions.

We continue to invest in research and development efforts for several new markets. If we are unable to commercialize these technologies, our future results and profits
could be negatively affected.

Our investments into new markets subject us to additional risks. We may have limited or no experience in these markets, and our customers may not adopt our new offerings. These
new offerings may present new and difficult challenges, including risks related to technology, customers, competitors, product cycles, customer demand, terms and conditions and
other industry specific issues which could negatively affect our operating results. These developing products and market segments may not grow as significantly or as quickly as
projected, or at all, and we may not realize an adequate return on our investments or may be required to write-down the value of certain tangible and intangible assets.
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We may experience difficulties developing and transitioning to advanced manufacturing process technologies, which could materially adversely affect our results.

Our future success depends in part on our ability to expand our manufacturing capacity and transition our current development and production efforts to advanced manufacturing
process technologies. We continue to make a significant investment to transition our products and intellectual property to next-generation circuit geometries, for example 22
nanometers. If we are unable to reliably model behaviors required for circuit design and product requirements, then our product development may be adversely impacted. To the
extent that we do not timely develop or transition to smaller geometries, experience difficulties in shifting to smaller geometries, or have significant quality or reliability issues at these
smaller geometries, our results could be materially adversely affected. Further, if there are delays from such development or transition, we may have insufficient capacity to meet
customer demand, which may impact our future operating results.

We frequently develop our products for the specific system architecture of our customers’ end products. If our customers were to change system architectures,
develop competing technologies and integrated circuits, incorporate some of the functionality of our products into other parts of the system, or eliminate certain
functionality that our products provide in their future end products, we risk the potential loss of revenue and reduced average selling prices.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 21/141
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Our customers, particularly in the portable market, could potentially transition to different audio and system architectures, develop their own competing technologies and ICs,
integrate the functionality that our ICs and software have historically provided into other components in their systems, or eliminate certain functionality that our products provide in
their future end products. For example, some Some of the audio and voice functionality and/or some of our high-performance mixed-signal functionality that we have historically
provided in smartphones could be performed outside of our customers’ end product. components. If our customers were to transition to these different system architectures or to
eliminate certain functionality in their future end products, our results of operations could be adversely affected, resulting in reduced average selling prices for our components and
loss of revenue.

New and/or more stringent environmental laws, rules, regulations, and/or customer expectations may impact our product design and manufacturing processes, which
could increase our costs and adversely impact our future operating results.

There has been an increase in the number of new and/or more stringent environmental laws, rules, and regulations introduced in various jurisdictions related to controlling the
transportation, storage, use, and discharge of certain chemicals and materials used in the process of manufacturing semiconductors. Additionally, our customers have certain
requirements and expectations related to the potential environmental impacts of their products and the processes used to manufacture them.

For example, a number of domestic and foreign jurisdictions regulate, or may seek to regulate, the use of a class of chemicals known as per- and poly-fluoroalkyl substances
(“PFAS"), which are currently used in our products or the manufacture of some of our products. Additionally, the European Union Restriction of Hazardous Substances (“RoHS")
Directive restricts the use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment while the Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals
(“REACH") regulation addresses the production and use of chemical substances.

To comply with these regulations, and to meet customer requirements, we have in the past worked, and may in the future, need to work, with our supply chain to eliminate certain
substances from the manufacturing processes used to produce our products. There may be instances where alternative substances will not be available or commercially feasible, or
may only be available from a single source, or may be significantly more expensive than their restricted counterparts — resulting in increased manufacturing costs. Additionally, if we
are unable to comply with the regulations, we may be subject to fines, penalties, and/or restrictions imposed by government agencies.

We expect that these and other rapidly changing laws, regulations, policies, interpretations, and expectations, as well as increased enforcement actions by various governmental
and regulatory agencies, will continue to increase the cost of our compliance and internal risk management programs, which could have an adverse effect on our business, results
of operations, and financial condition. Further, if our practices and disclosures do not meet the expectations and standards of our stockholders, customers, and other industry
stakeholders, our reputation and business activities may be negatively impacted and our appeal to certain investors may be reduced.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property rights.

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain patents and to preserve our other intellectual property rights covering our products. We seek patent protection for those
inventions and technologies for which we believe such protection is suitable and is likely to provide a competitive advantage to us. We also rely on trade secrets, proprietary
technology, non-disclosure non-
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disclosure and other contractual terms, and technical measures to protect our technology and manufacturing knowledge. We actively work to foster continuing technological
innovation to maintain and protect our competitive position. We cannot provide assurances that steps taken by us to protect our intellectual property will be adequate, that our
competitors will not independently develop or design around our patents, or that our intellectual property will not be misappropriated. In addition, the laws of some non-U.S.
countries may not protect our intellectual property as well as the laws of the United States.
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Any of these events could materially and adversely affect our business, operating results, or financial condition. Policing infringement of our technology is difficult, and litigation may
be necessary in the future to enforce our intellectual property rights. Any such litigation could be expensive, take significant time, and divert management’s attention.

Financial Risks
We could be subject to changes in tax laws, the adoption of new U.S. or international tax legislation or exposure to additional tax liabilities.

We are subject to taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions, including the United Kingdom, where a number of our subsidiaries are organized. Due to economic and
political conditions, tax laws in various jurisdictions may be subject to significant change. Changes For example, many countries have started to implement legislation and other
guidance to align their international tax rules with the Organization of Economic Cooperation and Development’s Base Erosion and Profit Shifting recommendations and action plan
that aim to standardize and modernize global corporate tax policy, including implementation of a global minimum tax (“Pillar Two”). These and other changes in tax laws and
regulations may impact both our international and domestic tax liabilities and result in increased complexity and costs. uncertainty and may adversely affect our provision for income
taxes. Our future effective tax rates could be affected by changes in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets
and liabilities, or changes in tax laws or their interpretation, including interpretation. If our effective tax rates were to increase, particularly in the U.S. and or the United

Kingdom. Kingdom, or if the ultimate determination of taxes owed is for an amount in excess of amounts previously accrued, our operating results, cash flows, and financial
condition could be adversely affected.

Significant judgment is required in the calculation of our tax provision and the resulting tax liabilities. Our estimates of future taxable income and the regional mix of this income can
change as new information becomes available. Any such changes in our estimates or assumptions can significantly impact our tax provision in a given period. For discussion of our
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income taxes, see Note 19, "Income Taxes."

We are also subject to the examination of our tax returns and other tax matters by the U.S Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and other tax authorities and governmental bodies. We
regularly assess the likelihood of an adverse outcome resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for taxes. There can be no assurance as to the
outcome of these examinations. If our effective tax rates were to increase, particularly in the U.S. or the United Kingdom, or if the ultimate determination of taxes owed is for an
amount in excess of amounts previously accrued, our operating results, cash flows, and financial condition could be adversely affected.

The Company’s fiscal year 2017, 2018, and 2019 federal income tax returns are under examination by the IRS. The IRS has proposed adjustments that would increase U.S. taxable
income related to transfer pricing matters with respect to our U.S. and U.K. affiliated companies and on May 17, 2022, the IRS issued a companies. The final Revenue Agent's
Report asserting asserted additional tax of approximately $170.5 million $168.3 million, plus excluding interest, and imposing penalties of approximately $63.7 million. We do not
agree with the IRS’s positions and we intend to are vigorously dispute defending against the proposed adjustments. We intend to pursue are pursuing resolution through the
administrative process with the IRS Independent Office of Appeals and, if necessary, through judicial remedies. We expect it could take a number of years to reach resolution on
these matters. Although the final resolution of these matters is uncertain, the Company believes adequate amounts have been reserved for any adjustments to the provision for
income taxes that may ultimately result. However, if the IRS prevails in these matters, the assessed tax, interest, and penalties, if any, could have an adverse impact on our financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows in future periods.

If certain tax credits or incentives we receive change or cease to be in effect or applicable for any reason, or if our assumptions and interpretations regarding tax laws
and incentives prove to be incorrect, our financial results could be adversely impacted.

Our operations are currently structured to benefit from various incentives available to us in various jurisdictions to encourage research and development investment. For example,
we receive a research and development expenditure credit in the United Kingdom ("RDEC"), which is recorded for accounting purposes as an offset to research and development
expenses in the Company’s consolidated income statement and resulted in a benefit of $26.2 million $40.9 million in fiscal year 2023.2024. The Company makes estimates of the
RDEC receivable as of each balance sheet date, based upon facts known at the time. Although the
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Company does not expect its estimates to be materially different from the amounts ultimately recognized, its estimates could differ from actual results. To date, there have not been
any material adjustments to the Company's prior estimates of RDEC receivables. Changes to the RDEC regime were recently enacted that increase the incentive rate for qualifying
expenditures beginning in our fiscal year 2024. If such credit is modified or rescinded, or we are no longer eligible for such credit, our financial results could be adversely impacted,
including increasing our R&D expenses, decreasing our profitability, and adversely affecting our cash flows. See further discussion of the research and development expenditure
credit in the U.K. in Note 2, "Government Assistance."
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Shifts in industry-wide capacity and our practice of ordering and purchasing our products based on sales forecasts may result in significant fluctuations in inventory
and our quarterly and annual operating results.

Shifts in industry-wide capacity from shortages to oversupply, or from oversupply to shortages, may result in significant fluctuations in our quarterly and annual operating results. In
addition, we may order wafers and build inventory in advance of receiving purchase orders from our customers. Because our industry is highly cyclical and is subject to significant
downturns resulting from excess capacity, overproduction, reduced demand, order cancellations, or technological obsolescence, there is a risk that we will forecast inaccurately and
produce excess inventories of particular products. Customers may on occasion cancel, reschedule orders, or change future product plans on short notice, leaving us with the
potential for excess inventory. In addition, if we experience supply constraints or manufacturing problems at a particular supplier, we may seek to switch suppliers or qualify
additional suppliers. Other suppliers may not be available at the time we seek to switch or qualify additional suppliers. Even if additional capacity is available elsewhere, the
switching and/or qualifying of additional suppliers could be an expensive process and could take as long as six to twelve months to complete, which could result in material adverse
fluctuations to our operating results.

Due to the product manufacturing cycle characteristic of IC manufacturing and the inherent imprecision in the accuracy of our customers’ forecasts, product inventories may not
always correspond to product demand, leading to shortages or surpluses of certain products. As a result of such inventory imbalances, future inventory write-downs and charges to
gross margin may occur due to lower of cost or market accounting, excess inventory, and inventory obsolescence.

We have historically experienced fluctuations in our operating results and expect these fluctuations to continue.

Our quarterly and annual operating results are affected by a wide variety of factors that could materially and adversely affect our net sales, gross margin, and operating results. If
our operating results fall below expectations of market analysts or investors, the market price of our common stock could decrease significantly. We are subject to business cycles
and it is difficult to predict the timing, length, or volatility of these cycles. These business cycles may create pressure on our sales, gross margin, and/or operating results and make
it difficult for us to predict operating results as between subsequent fiscal quarters.

Factors that could cause fluctuations and materially and adversely affect our net sales, gross margin and/or operating results include, but are not limited to:

- the volume and timing of orders received;

- changes in the mix of our products sold;

- market acceptance of our products and the products of our customers;
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- excess or obsolete inventory;

- pricing pressures from competitors and key customers;

- our ability to introduce new products on a timely basis;

- the timing and extent of our research and development expenses;
- the failure to anticipate changing customer product requirements;
- disruption in the supply of wafers, assembly, or test services;

- reduction of manufacturing yields;
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- certain production and other risks associated with using independent manufacturers, assembly houses, and testers; and

- product obsolescence, price erosion, competitive developments, and other competitive factors.
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Our stock price has been and is likely to continue to be volatile.

The market price of our common stock fluctuates significantly. This fluctuation has been or may be the result of numerous factors, including, but not limited to:
- actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

- announcements concerning our business or those of our competitors, customers, or suppliers;

- loss of a significant customer, or customers;

- changes in financial estimates by securities analysts or our failure to perform as anticipated by the analysts;

- news, commentary, and rumors emanating from the media relating to our customers, the industry, or us. These reports may be unrelated to the actual operating performance of the
Company, and in some cases, may be potentially misleading or incorrect;

- announcements regarding technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors;

- announcements by us of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, or capital commitments;

- announcements by us of significant divestitures or sale of certain assets or intellectual property;

- litigation arising out of a wide variety of matters, including, employment matters and intellectual property matters;

- departure of key personnel;

- a significant stockholder selling for any reason;

- general conditions in the IC industry; and

- general market conditions and interest rates.

Our foreign currency exposures may change over time as the level of activity in foreign markets grows and could have an adverse impact upon financial results.

As a global enterprise, we face exposure to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. Certain of our assets, including certain bank accounts, exist in non-U.S. dollar-
denominated currencies, which are sensitive to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The non-U.S. dollar-denominated currencies are principally the British Pound Sterling.
We also have a significant number of employees that are paid in foreign currency, the largest group being United Kingdom-based employees who are paid in British Pounds

Sterling.

If the value of the U.S. dollar weakens relative to these specific currencies, the cost of doing business in terms of U.S. dollars rises. With the growth of our international business,
our foreign currency exposures may grow and under certain circumstances, could harm our business.
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If we do not hedge against these risks, or our attempts to hedge against these risks are not successful, our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.
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Our debt obligations may be a burden on our future cash flows and cash resources.

On July 8, 2021, the Company entered into a second amended and restated credit agreement (the “Second Amended Credit Agreement”) which provides for a $300 million senior
secured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit Facility matures on July 8, 2026 (the “Maturity Date”). As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024,
the Company did not have an outstanding balance under the Revolving Credit Facility. To the extent the Company has an outstanding balance, our ability to repay the principal of, to

pay interest on, or to refinance our indebtedness, depends on our future performance, which is subject to economic, financial, competitive, regulatory, and other factors, some of
which are beyond our control. Our
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business may not generate cash flow from operations in the future sufficient to satisfy our obligations or to make necessary capital expenditures. If we are unable to generate such
cash flow, we may be required to adopt one or more alternatives, such as reducing or delaying investments or capital expenditures, selling assets, or refinancing or obtaining
additional equity capital on terms that may be onerous or highly dilutive. Our ability to refinance any indebtedness will depend on the capital markets and our financial condition at
such time. We may not be able to engage in any of these activities or engage in these activities on desirable terms, which could result in a default on the Second Amended Credit
Agreement.

Our Second Amended Credit Agreement contains restrictions that could limit our flexibility in operating our business.

Our Second Amended Credit Agreement contains various covenants that could limit our ability to engage in specified types of transactions under certain conditions. These
covenants could limit our ability to, among other things:

- pay dividends on, repurchase, or make distributions in respect of our capital stock or make other restricted payments;

- incur additional indebtedness or issue certain preferred shares;

- make certain investments;

- sell certain assets;

- create liens;

- consolidate, merge, sell, or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets; and

- enter into certain transactions with our affiliates.

A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default under the Second Amended Credit Agreement. In the event of a default under the Second Amended Credit Agreement,
the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding to be immediately due and payable. If our lenders accelerate the repayment of borrowings, we may not be able to repay

our debt obligations. If we were unable to repay amounts due to the lenders under our credit facility, those lenders could proceed against the collateral granted to them to secure
that indebtedness.

Legal and Regulatory Risks

We are subject to the export control regulations of the U.S. Department of State and the Department of Commerce. A violation of these export control regulations could
have a material adverse effect on our business or our results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.

The nature of our international business subjects us to the export control regulations of the U.S. Department of State and the Department of Commerce. Any changes regarding
such regulations or U.S. trade policy more generally, including potential adoption and expansion of trade restrictions or export controls, particularly with respect to China, may impact
overall customer demand for our products or affect our ability to manufacture and/or sell our products overseas. Additionally, in response to Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, the U.S.
government has imposed numerous export controls and sanctions related to Russia.

Although we currently have licenses to export certain products and technologies, particularly to China, and we have historically had limited sales to companies in Russia, any
alleged violation could expose us to significant cost, with any final determination of a violation of these export control regulations potentially resulting in monetary penalties and

denial of export privileges. Although we are not aware of any violation of any export control regulations, a failure to comply with any of these
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regulations could have an adverse effect on our business.
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Potential intellectual property claims and litigation could subject us to significant liability for damages and could invalidate our proprietary rights.

The IC industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. We may find it necessary to initiate lawsuits to assert our patent or other
intellectual property rights. These legal proceedings could be expensive, take significant time, and divert management’s attention. We cannot provide assurances that we will
ultimately be
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successful in any lawsuit, nor can we provide assurances that any patent owned by us will not be invalidated, circumvented, or challenged. We cannot provide assurances that
rights granted under our patents will provide competitive advantages to us, or that any of our pending or future patent applications will be issued with the scope of the claims sought
by us, if at all.

As is typical in the IC industry, our customers and we have, from time to time, received and may in the future receive, communications from third parties asserting patents, mask
work rights, or copyrights. In the event third parties were to make a valid intellectual property claim and a license was not available on commercially reasonable terms, our operating
results could be harmed. Litigation, which could result in substantial cost to us and diversion of our management, technical and financial resources, may also be necessary to
defend us against claimed infringement of the rights of others. An unfavorable outcome in any such litigation could have an adverse effect on our future operations and/or liquidity.

We have provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, and are subject to certain provisions of Delaware law, which could prevent, delay, or impede a
change of control of our company. These provisions could affect the market price of our stock.

Certain provisions of Delaware law and of our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if our stockholders support the
acquisition. These provisions include, but are not limited to:

- the inability of stockholders to call a special meeting of stockholders;
- a prohibition on stockholder action by written consent; and

- a requirement that stockholders provide advance notice of any stockholder nominations of directors or any proposal of new business to be considered at any meeting of
stockholders.

We are also subject to the anti-takeover laws of Delaware that may prevent, delay, or impede a third party from acquiring or merging with us, which may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock.

Our Bylaws include a forum selection provision that could increase costs to bring a claim, discourage claims, or limit the ability of the Company’s stockholders to bring
a claim in a judicial forum viewed by the stockholders as more favorable for disputes with the Company or the Company’s directors, officers, or other employees.

Our Bylaws provide, to the fullest extent permitted by law, that, unless the Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of
Delaware or, if the Court of Chancery does not have jurisdiction, a state court located within the State of Delaware or, if no state court located within the State of Delaware has
jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware, will, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, be the sole and exclusive forum for certain legal actions
between the Company and its stockholders. In addition, our Bylaws provide that the federal district courts of the United States of America shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
be the sole and exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The exclusive forum clauses
described above do not apply to suits brought to enforce a duty or liability created by the Exchange Act, or any other claim for which the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction.
Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of our capital stock will be deemed to have notice of, and consented to, the provisions of our Bylaws
described in the preceding sentences. The enforceability of similar choice of forum provisions in other companies’ certificates of incorporation or bylaws has been challenged in legal
proceedings and there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce such provisions. In addition, investors cannot waive compliance with the federal securities laws and the
rules and regulations thereunder. This forum selection provision may increase costs to bring a claim, discourage claims, or limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial
forum that such stockholder finds favorable for disputes with the Company or the Company'’s directors, officers, or other employees, which may discourage such lawsuits against the
Company
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or the Company’s directors, officers, and other employees. Alternatively, if a court were to find the forum selection provision contained in the Company’s Bylaws to be inapplicable or
unenforceable in an action, the Company could incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions.
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General Risks

Corporate social responsibility initiatives, specifically related to environmental, social and governance ("ESG") matters, may impose additional costs and expose us to
emerging areas of risk.

Providing public disclosures regarding ESG matters, for example sustainability reporting, is becoming more broadly expected by investors, shareholders, existing and potential
employees, customers, and other third parties. Certain organizations currently, and other organizations may in the future, use such disclosures to evaluate companies regarding
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ESG activities and publish scores or ratings based upon ESG or “sustainability” metrics. Potential and current investors may use the Company’s ESG ratings to guide their
investment strategies and may decrease or withdraw investment, or alternatively increase investment in our competitors, if our ESG performance is perceived to be lagging. The
qualitative and quantitative criteria regarding ESG may continue to evolve and we may need to modify our practices and/or incur additional or unexpected costs to satisfy these
expectations. We may communicate certain goals or initiatives regarding our ESG activities from time to time, including goals relating to our carbon footprint, and if we are unable to
meet those goals or they are perceived to be inadequate, we could be exposed to reputational damage and other emerging areas of risk.

In addition, one or more of our customers have also requested, has required, and other customers may in the future request, that we achieve certain carbon emission reductions
and/or commit to the use of renewable energy in the manufacture of our goods. Such requests may require us to modify our supply chain practices, make capital investments to
modify certain aspects of our operations, or increase our operating costs. There can be no assurance of the extent to which any of our climate goals or the goals of our customers
will be achieved or that any future investments that we make in furtherance of achieving our climate goals or the goals of our customers will produce the expected results or meet
increasing stakeholder environmental, social and governance expectations. If we do not meet these goals, we could incur adverse publicity and reaction or the loss of business from
certain of our customers, which could adversely impact our reputation, and in turn adversely impact our results of operations.

Further, we are subject to increased government laws, regulations, and other standards that impose operational and reporting requirements related to ESG matters, and we will
likely be subject to further evolving ESG reporting standards in the future. For example, the SEC has proposed rule changes adopted final rules that would require registrants to
include certain climate-related disclosures in their registration statements and periodic reports, including information about climate-related risks that are reasonably likely although
the SEC has issued an order to have a material impact on their business, results stay its rules pending the outcome of operations, or financial condition, and certain climate-related
financial statement metrics in a note to their audited financial statements. litigation challenging the rules. Collecting, measuring, and reporting ESG information and metrics in
response to these increased requirements can be costly, difficult, and time consuming. With these additional regulations and disclosures, we may see our legal compliance, financial
reporting, and auditing costs increase along with the emergence of risks associated with the collection, data assurance, and disclosure related to such ESG information.

As we carry only limited insurance coverage, uninsured or under-insured losses could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Our insurance policies may not be adequate to fully offset losses from covered incidents, and we do not have coverage for certain losses. For example, there is limited coverage
available with respect to the services provided by our third-party foundries and assembly and test subcontractors. Although we believe that our existing insurance coverage is
consistent with common practices of companies in our industry, our insurance coverage may be inadequate to protect us against product recalls, natural disasters (including those
related to changes in climate), cybersecurity and/or information security breaches, and other unforeseen catastrophes that could adversely affect our financial condition and results
of operations.

We are subject to the risks of owning real property.

We currently own our U.S. headquarters and research facility in Austin, Texas. The ownership of our U.S. properties subjects us to the risks of owning real property, which may
include:

- the possibility of environmental contamination and the costs associated with correcting any environmental problems;

- adverse changes in the value of these properties, due to interest rate changes, changes in the neighborhood in which the
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property is located, or other factors; and

- the risk of financial loss in excess of amounts covered by insurance, or uninsured risks, such as the loss caused by damage to
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the buildings as a result of fire, floods, or other natural disasters. disasters (including those related to changes in climate).

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

ITEM 1C. Cybersecurity

The Board of Directors’ overall risk oversight function includes receiving reports on the Company’s cybersecurity risks and our risk management processes, and assessing
whether our risk management strategies are reasonably designed to address such risks. The Board has delegated this oversight responsibility to our Audit Committee, which reports
periodically to the Board as appropriate.

Our Senior Vice President of Global Operations and our Director of Information Security are responsible for ongoing assessment and supervision of cybersecurity risks,
supported by a dedicated Information Security team who reports up to those individuals. Our Director of Information Security has primary oversight of material risks from
cybersecurity threats, has over 25 years of experience in cybersecurity-related roles and holds industry-recognized certifications. Our Senior Vice President of Global Operations
and Director of Information Security review and evaluate our cybersecurity readiness through internal cybersecurity measures and metrics, as well as third-party penetration tests
and control assessments against industry standards. We also employ various defensive and continuous monitoring techniques designed to escalate potential issues in a timely
manner to our Director of Information Security.

Our Director of Information Security meets with the Audit Committee at least twice a year to discuss our cybersecurity risks, strategy, and activities, including cybersecurity
incidents and responses, cybersecurity systems testing, third-party activities and related topics. In addition, we have governance and compliance structures that are designed to
elevate issues relating to cybersecurity to executive officers, and, as appropriate, to the Audit Committee and Board.
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ITEM 2. Properties

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, our principal facilities are located in Austin, Texas and Edinburgh, Scotland, United Kingdom. The Austin facilities, which we own,
consist of approximately 155,000 square feet of office space and are primarily occupied by research and development personnel and testing equipment. In addition, our failure
analysis and reliability facility occupies approximately 27,000 square feet.

Additionally, we have various leased facilities in Austin, Texas, consisting of approximately 281,000 square feet, which includes approximately 275,000 square feet of leased
space that houses a mixture of administrative personnel as well as research and development personnel.

Additionally, we lease approximately 110,000 square feet of office space and 27,000 square feet of high quality lab space in Edinburgh, Scotland, United Kingdom. See further
details below in Results of Operation.

Below is a detailed schedule that identifies our principal locations of occupied leased and owned property as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, with various contractual lease
terms through calendar year 2033.2034. We believe that these facilities are suitable and adequate to meet our current operating needs.

Design Centers Sales Support Offices — International
Austin, Texas Beijing, China
Mesa, Chandler, Arizona Shanghai, China
Cupertino, California Shenzhen, China
Greensboro, North Carolina Tokyo, Japan
Edinburgh, Scotland, United Kingdom Tokyo, Japan Singapore
Newbury, England, United Kingdom Singapore

Seoul, South Korea

Taipei, Taiwan
See Note 11 — Leases of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8 for further detail.
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ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in legal proceedings concerning matters arising in connection with the conduct of our business activities. We regularly evaluate the status of
legal proceedings in which we are involved to assess whether a loss is probable or there is a reasonable possibility that a loss or additional loss may have been incurred and to
determine if accruals are appropriate. We further evaluate each legal proceeding to assess whether an estimate of possible loss or range of loss can be made.

Based on current knowledge, management does not believe that there are any pending matters that could potentially have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, we are engaged in various legal actions in the normal course of business. While there can be no assurances in light of the
inherent uncertainties involved in any potential legal proceedings, some of which are beyond our control, an adverse outcome in any legal proceeding could be material to our
results of operations or cash flows for any particular reporting period.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

PART Il

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ's Global Select Market under the symbol CRUS.

As of May 17, 2023 May 22, 2024, there were approximately 344 324 holders of record of our common stock.
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The information under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the proxy statement to be delivered to stockholders in connection with our Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on July 28, 2023 (the “Proxy Statement”) is incorporated herein by reference.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any dividends on our capital stock. We do not anticipate declaring or paying in the foreseeable future any dividends on our capital stock. Any future
determination to pay dividends will be made at the discretion of our board of directors, subject to applicable laws, and will depend upon our results of operations, financial condition,
contractual restrictions, capital requirements, and other factors. Our future ability to pay dividends on our capital stock may be limited by the terms of any future debt that we may
incur or any preferred securities that we may issue in the future.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
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The following table provides information about purchases of equity securities that are registered by us pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act during the three months
ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Monthly Period

Total Number of Shares
Purchased

Average Price Paid Per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans or Programs

Approximate Dollar Value of
Shares That May Yet Be
Purchased Under the Plans or
Programs (1)

December 25, 2022 -
January 21, 2023

January 22, 2023 -
February 18, 2023

February 19, 2023 -
March 25, 2023

Total

— 3 = — 3 536,131
134 105.45 134 521,979
203 102.54 203 501,131
337 $ 103.70 337 $ 501,131

Total Number of Shares

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of Publicly

Approximate Dollar Value of
Shares That May Yet Be
Purchased Under the Plans or

Monthly Period Purchased Average Price Paid Per Share Announced Plans or Programs Programs (1)
December 31, 2023 -
January 27, 2024 — % — — $ 365,126
January 28, 2024 -
February 24, 2024 451 90.96 451 324,130
February 25, 2024 -
March 30, 2024 97 92.51 97 315,133
Total 548 $ 91.23 548 $ 315,133

(1) The Company currently has two one active share repurchase authorizations: $350 million in share repurchases authorized by the Board of Directors in January 2021

and authorization: $500 million in share repurchases authorized by the Board of Directors in July 2022. The repurchases are to be funded from existing cash and intended to
be effected from time to time in accordance with applicable securities laws through the open market, including pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan, or in privately negotiated
transactions. The timing of the repurchases and the actual amount purchased depend on a variety of factors including general market and economic conditions and other
corporate considerations. The program does not have an expiration date, does not obligate the Company to repurchase any particular amount of common stock, and may be
modified or suspended at any time at the Company's discretion. The
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Company repurchased 0.3 million 0.5 million shares of its common stock for $35.0 million $50.0 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023.2024. All shares of our
common stock that were repurchased were retired as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024.

On August 16, 2022, In fiscal year 2024, the U.S. government enacted Company's net stock repurchases were subject to a 1 percent excise tax under the Inflation Reduction
Act, which among other things, implemented are a 1 percentreduction to accumulated earnings (deficit) in the Consolidated Condensed Statements of Stockholders' Equity.

Disclosure of repurchased amounts and related average price paid per share in the table above excludes the impact of excise tax on net stock repurchases. Based on our
analysis of this provision, we do not believe that this legislation will have a material impact on our financial statements. taxes.
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Stock Price Performance Graph

The following graph and table show a comparison of the five-year cumulative total stockholder return ("TSR"), calculated on a dividend reinvestment basis, for Cirrus Logic, the
NASDAQ Composite, Russell 3000 Index, the Philadelphia Semiconductor Index, the Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Index (the “S&P 500 Index”), and the Semiconductor
Subgroup of the Standard & Poor’s Electronics Index (the “S&P 500 Semiconductors Index”). NASDAQ Composite Index.

1#.3263

3/31/2018  3/30/2019 3/28/2020 3/27/2021 3/26/2022 3/25/2023
3/30/2019 3/30/2019 3/28/2020 3/27/2021 312612022 3/25/2023 3/30/2024
Cirrus Logic, Cirrus
Inc. Logic, Inc. 100.00 103.54 152.40 204.30 215.82 259.84
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Russell 3000

Index

Philadelphia
Semiconductor

Index

NASDAQ NASDAQ
Composite Composite

Index Index 100.00 110.63 108.51 191.57 207.95 175.09
Philadelphia

Semiconductor Index 100.00 107.11 116.51 246.76 283.42 254.78
S&P 500 Index 100.00 109.50 100.13 159.29 184.65 164.18
S&P 500 Semiconductors

Index 100.00 104.83 109.75 196.98 257.74 236.23

(1) The graph assumes that $100 was invested in our common stock and in each index at the market close on March 31, 2018 March 30, 2019, and that all dividends were
reinvested. No cash dividends were declared on our common stock during the periods presented.

(2) Stockholder returns over the indicated period should not be considered indicative of future stockholder returns.

(3) Prior to For fiscal year 2023, 2024, the Company presented selected the S&P 500 Russell 3000 Index to include in its stock price performance graph. The Company is making
the change away from using the NASDAQ Composite Index due to recent changes to the index used in the Company's performance-based equity grants to executives. This
year's stock price performance graph includes both the newly selected index and the S&P 500 Semiconductors Index, included above. The change in indicesindex used in
the currentimmediately preceding fiscal year was made to include: (i) the Nasdag Composite Index - the exchange where the Company's equity securities are traded; and (ii)
the Philadelphia Semiconductor Index, a published semiconductor industry index used to determine certain components of the Company's compensation to executives. year.

The information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K appearing under the heading “Stock Price Performance Graph” is being “furnished” pursuant to Item 201(e) of Regulation

S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material” or “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission or subject to
Regulation 14A or 14C, other than as provided in Item 201(e) of Regulation S-K, or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act.

ITEM 6. [Reserved]
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ITEM 6. [Reserved]

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Please read the following discussion in conjunction with our audited historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, which are included elsewhere in this Form
10-K. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains statements that are forward-looking. These statements are based on
current expectations and assumptions that are subject to risk, uncertainties and other factors. Actual results could differ materially because of the factors discussed in Part I, Item
1A. “Risk Factors” of this Form 10-K and elsewhere in this report, as well as in the documents we file with the SEC, including our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current
Reports on Form 8-K.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations are based upon the consolidated financial statements included in this report, which
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts. We evaluate the estimates on an on-going basis. We base these estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. Our accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 -
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8.

The Company considers the following accounting policies to involve the highest degree of judgment in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, with cost being determined on a first-in, first-out basis. The Company writes down inventories to net
realizable value based on forecasted customer unit demand while taking into account product release schedules and product life cycles. The Company also reviews and writes
down inventory, as appropriate, based on the age and condition of the inventory. Actual demand and market conditions may be different from those projected by management, which
could have a material effect on our operating results and financial position.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The calculation of our tax liabilities involves assessing uncertainties with respect to the application of complex tax rules. Uncertain tax positions must meet a more likely than
not threshold to be recognized in the financial statements and the tax benefits recognized are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of
being realized upon final settlement. The ultimate settlement of uncertain tax positions may differ from our estimates, which could result in the recognition of a tax benefit or an
additional charge to the income tax provision in the relevant period. See Note 19 — Income Taxes of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8 for
additional details.
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Recently Adopted Issued Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recently adopted issued accounting pronouncements, refer to Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview

Cirrus Logic develops low-power, high-precision mixed-signal processing solutions for a broad range of customers. We track operating results in one reportable segment, but
report revenue performance by product line: audio and HPMS products. In fiscal year 2023, 2024, the Company delivered record revenue, driven by higher sales of products
shipping in smartphones. This past year, made good progress executing on our strategic initiatives. In our flagship audio business we believe that we made excellent progress in
many areas of our long-term growth strategy. The Company remained completed design work on, and sampled, two next-generation products: a leader in our foundational business
of smartphone audio, with a number of customers launching flagship devices using our components. Moreover, our team began design of our next-generation boosted amplifier and
a smart codec both of which are in advanced stages of development today and are expected to extend during the year. We also introduced our market leadership and deliver
significant revenue for many years following their introduction. Additionally, the Company completed the successful production qualification for our next-generation third-generation
camera controller, for introduction and gained traction in the laptop market.

While we are proud of our achievements in fiscal year 2024.
In the past year the Company saw both 2024, we also encountered and successfully navigated through short-term challenges that were associated with our R&D investment
and the number of opportunities in high-performance mixed-signal ("HPMS") increase. Among the new HPMS opportunities we have previously discussed in shareholder

communications, a new product previously scheduled for introduction this fall is no longer expected to come not coming to market as planned. Our customer planned in fall 2023.
Throughout the year we remained committed to disciplined execution, seeking to increase both operational efficiency and the efficiency and competitiveness within our supply chain.
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relationship remains very strong Fiscal Year 2024

Fiscal year 2024 net sales of $1.79 billion represented a decrease over fiscal year 2023 net sales of $1.90 billion. Audio product line sales of $1.08 billion in fiscal year 2024
decreased 7.5 percent from fiscal year 2023 sales of $1.17 billion. The most significant drivers of the decrease were continued weakness in general market sales, and we continue
to collaborate on a range of technologies and products lesser extent, a reduction in components shipping in tablets versus the HPMS space. We continue to believe that the prior
fiscal year. HPMS product line represents sales of $705.0 million represented a significant opportunity 2.8 percent decrease from fiscal year 2023 sales of $725.6 million, largely
attributable to grow a decline in general market sales, primarily in non-smartphone applications.

Overall, gross margin for fiscal year 2024 was 51.2 percent. The increase in gross margin for fiscal year 2024 was primarily attributable toa decline in supply chain costs,
including the absence of wafer premiums and diversify revenue. lower freight expense, in addition to a reduction in inventory reserves, partially offset by a less favorable product
mix. The Company’s number of employees decreased to 1,625 as of March 30, 2024. The Company achieved net income of $274.6 million in fiscal year 2024, which included an
income tax provision in the amount of $89.4 million.

Fiscal Year 2023

Fiscal year 2023 net sales of $1.90 billion represented an increase over fiscal year 2022 net sales of $1.78 billion. HPMS product line sales of $725.6 million represented a
22.1 percent increase from fiscal year 2022 sales of $594.3 million, primarily attributable to content gains in smartphones and higher ASPs. Audio product line sales of $1.17 billion
in fiscal year 2023 decreased from fiscal year 2022 sales of $1.19 billion. The most significant drivers driver of the decrease were was the softening in general market and
smartphone demand, partially offset by ASP increases during fiscal year 2023.

Overall, gross margin for fiscal year 2023 was 50.4 percent. The decrease in gross margin for fiscal year 2023 was primarily attributable to an increase in supply chain costs,
partially offset by higher ASPs and the absence of the purchase price fair value adjustment to inventory, which was a one-time event in the second quarter of fiscal year 2022, as a
result of the Lion Semiconductor, Inc. ("Lion") acquisition (the "Acquisition”). The Company’s number of employees increased to 1,702 as of March 25, 2023. The Company
achieved net income of $176.7 million in fiscal year 2023, which included an income tax provision in the amount of $78.0 million.

Fiscal Year 2022

Fiscal year 2022 net sales of $1.78 billion represented an increase over fiscal year 2021 net sales of $1.37 billion. HPMS product line sales of $594.3 million represented a
124.1 percent increase from fiscal year 2021 sales of $265.2 million, primarily attributable to content gains in smartphones and, to a lesser extent, higher sales of general market
battery and power products. Audio product line sales of $1.19 billion in fiscal year 2022 increased from fiscal year 2021 sales of $1.10 billion. The most significant driver of the
increase was higher sales of audio products in laptops.

Overall, gross margin for fiscal year 2022 was 51.8 percent. The increase in gross margin for fiscal year 2022 was primarily attributable to the impact of higher ASPs, which
were mostly offset by increased supply chain costs. The Company’s number of employees increased to 1,591 as of March 26, 2022. The Company achieved net income of $326.4
million in fiscal year 2022, which included an income tax provision in the amount of $42.3 million.

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the results of our operations for each of the past three fiscal years as a percentage of net sales. All percentage amounts were calculated using
the underlying data, in thousands:

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
March 25, March 26, March 27, March 30, March 25, March 26,
2023 2022 2021 2024 2023 2022
Net sales Net sales 100 % 100 % 100 % Net sales 100 % 100 % 100 %
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 31/141

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Gross Gross

margin margin 50 % 52 % 52 %
Research Research

and and

development development 24 % 23 % 25 %
Selling, Selling,

general and general and

administrative  administrative 8 % 8 % 10 %
Lease impairments and

) 1 % — % — %

restructuring
Restructuring
Restructuring
Restructuring
Intangibles Intangibles

impairment impairment 4 % — % — %
Income Income

from operations from operations 13 % 21 % 17 %
Interest Interest

income income — % — % 1 %
Interest Interest

expense expense — % — % — %
Other expense — % — % — %
Other

income

(expense)
Income Income

before income  before income

taxes taxes 13 % 21 % 18 %
Provision Provision

for income taxes for income taxes 4 % 3 % 2 %
Net Net

income income 9 % 18 % 16 %
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Net Sales

Gross margin

We report sales in two product line categories: audio products and HPMS products. Our sales by product line are shown in the table below (in thousands).

Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended

51 % 50 % 52 %
Research and
development
24 % 24 % 23 %
Selling, general and
administrative
8 % 8 % 8 %
— % 1 % — %
Intangibles impairment
— % 4 % — %
Income from operations
19 % 13 % 21 %
Interest income
1 % — % — %
Interest expense
— % — % — %
Other income (expense)
— % — % — %
Income before income
taxes
20 % 13 % 21 %
Provision for income taxes
5 % 4 % 3 %
Net income
15 % 9 % 18 %

March 25, March 26, March 27,
2023 2022 2021
Audio  Audio
Products Products  $1,172,007 $1,187,126 $1,104,060
HPMS HPMS
Products Products 725,610 594,334 265,170

$1,897,617 $1,781,460 $1,369,230

e |

March 30,
2024

March 25,
2023

March 26,
2022

Net sales for fiscal year 2024 decreased by 5.7 percent, to $1.79 billion from $1.90 billion in fiscal year 2023. Audio product sales decreased $88.1 million, or 7.5 percent in
fiscal year 2024. The most significant drivers of the decrease were continued weakness in general market sales, primarily in non-smartphone applications, and to a lesser extent, a
reduction in components shipping in tablets versus the prior fiscal year. The decrease in net sales also reflects a $20.7 million decrease in HPMS product sales, or 2.8 percent, from
fiscal year 2023 sales of $725.6 million, largely due to a decline in general market sales, primarily in non-smartphone applications.

Net sales for fiscal year 2023 increased by 6.5 percent, to $1.90 billion from $1.78 billion in fiscal year 2022. The increase in net sales reflects a $131.3 million increase in
HPMS product sales, or 22.1 percent, from fiscal year 2022 sales of $594.3 million, which was primarily attributable to content gains in smartphones and higher ASPs.
Audio Additionally, audio product sales decreased $15.1 million in fiscal year 2023. The most significant drivers driver of the decrease were was the softening in general market and
smartphone demand, partially offset by ASP increases versus the prior fiscal year.
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Net sales for fiscal year 2022 increased by 30.1 percent, to $1.78 billion from $1.37 billion in fiscal year 2021. The increase in net sales reflects a $329.2 million increase in
HPMS product sales, or 124.1 percent, from fiscal year 2021 sales of $265.2 million, which was primarily attributable to content gains in smartphones, and to a lesser extent, higher
sales of general market battery and power products. Additionally, audio product sales increased $83.1 million in fiscal year 2022. The most significant driver of the increase was
higher sales of audio products in laptops.

International sales, including sales to U.S.-based end customers that manufacture products through contract manufacturers or plants located overseas, were approximately
$1.8 billion in in each of fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, representing 99 percent, 97 percent, and $1.3 billion in fiscal year 2021, representing 97 98 percent of net sales in fiscal
year 2024, 2023, and 98 percent in fiscal years 2022, and 2021. respectively. Our sales are denominated primarily in U.S. dollars.

Gross Margin

Overall gross margin of 51.2 percent for fiscal year 2024 increased from fiscal year 2023 gross margin of 50.4 percent. The increase was primarily due to a decline in supply
chain costs, including the absence of wafer premiums and lower freight expense, in addition to a reduction in inventory reserves compared to fiscal year 2023. The increase was
partially offset by a less favorable product mix. Changes in excess and obsolete inventory charges, including scrapped inventory, and sales of product written down in prior periods
did not have a material impact on margin in fiscal year 2024.

Overall gross margin of 50.4 percent for fiscal year 2023 reflects a decrease decreased from fiscal year 2022 gross margin of 51.8 percent. The decrease reflects an increase
in supply chain costs, partially offset by higher ASPs and the absence of the purchase price fair value adjustment to inventory, as a result of the Acquisition.Changes in excess and
obsolete inventory charges, including scrapped inventory, and sales of product written down in prior periods did not have a material impact on margin in fiscal year 2023.

Overall gross margin of 51.8 percent for fiscal year 2022 reflects a slight increase from fiscal year 2021 gross margin of 51.7 percent. The increase was primarily attributable
tothe impact of higher ASPs, which were mostly offset by increased supply chain costs. Changes in excess and obsolete inventory charges, including scrapped inventory, and sales
of product written down in prior periods did not have a material impact on margin in fiscal year 2022.

Research and Development Expenses

Fiscal year 2024 research and development expenses of $426.5 million reflect a decrease of $31.9 million, or 7.0 percent, from fiscal year 2023. The decrease was attributable
to reduced amortization of acquisition intangibles expense, increased R&D incentives compared to the prior fiscal year, and a decrease in acquisition-related charges, variable
compensation and product development costs, partially offset by an increase in employee-related expenses, stock-based compensation and facilities-related costs. See Note 2 -
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Government Assistance for additional details relating to R&D incentives.

Fiscal year 2023 research and development expenses of $458.4 million reflect an increase of $52.1 million, or 12.8 percent, from fiscal year 2022. The increase was
attributable to increased stock-based compensation, product development costs, employee-related expenses, primarily driven by a 7.0 percent increase in total R&D headcount,
facilities-related costs, amortization of acquisition intangibles, and acquisition-related expenses, partially offset by reduced variable compensation and increased R&D incentives
compared to the prior fiscal year. See Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies / Government Assistance for additional details relating to R&D incentives.

Fiscal year 2022 research and development expenses of $406.3 million reflect an increase of $63.5 million, or 18.5 percent, from fiscal year 2021. The increase was
attributable to increased employee-related expenses, primarily driven by a 9.0 percent increase in total R&D headcount, amortization of acquisition intangibles, variable
compensation, acquisition-related, stock-based compensation, and facilities-related costs, offset by increased R&D incentives and reduced product development costs. 2022.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Fiscal year 2024 selling, general and administrative expenses of $144.2 million reflect a decrease of $9.0 million, or 5.9 percent, compared to fiscal year 2023. The decrease
was primarily attributable to decreased employee-related and variable compensation costs, partially offset by increased stock-based compensation costs in fiscal year 2024.
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Fiscal year 2023 selling, general and administrative expenses of $153.1 million reflect an increase of $2.1 million, or 1.4 percent, compared to fiscal year 2022. The increase
was primarily attributable to increased employee-related and stock-based compensation costs, partially offset by reduced variable compensation costs in fiscal year 2023.
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Fiscal year 2022 selling, general and administrative expenses of $151.0 million reflect an increase of $24.0 million, or 18.9 percent, compared to fiscal year 2021. The increase
was primarily attributable to increased employee-related expenses, professional services, variable compensation and stock-based compensation costs in fiscal year 2022.

Lease Impairments and Restructuring

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023, as part of our strategy to improve operational efficiency, the Company abandoned or subleased office space at various properties
to align our real property lease arrangements with our anticipated operating needs. In fiscal year 2024, the Company recorded an additional $2.0 million in net costs related to a
workforce reduction action taken in the second quarter of fiscal year 2024 and the described events above. The Company recorded lease impairments and restructuring costs of
$10.6 million related to impairment of right-of-use lease assets and leasehold improvements of $6.9 million, as well as other related charges of $3.7 million. in fiscal year 2023. See
Note 12 - Lease Impairments and Restructuring for additional details.

Intangibles Impairment

Due to the prolonged weakness in the China smartphone market, the sales of our general market battery and power products associated with the Acquisition were adversely
affected. As a result, the Company revalued the acquired intangible assets recorded in purchase accounting. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023, the Company impaired the
related acquired intangible assets by $85.8 million. See additional details in Note 7 - Intangibles, net and Gooduwill.

Interest Income

Interest income in fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, and 2021, was $21.5 million, $10.0 million, $1.6 million, and $6.3 million $1.6 million, respectively. The
fluctuations increases in interest income in fiscal year 2023 2024 and 2022 2023 versus prior years were a function of earnings higher interest rates on average cash, cash
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equivalent, and marketable securities balances throughout the year.

Interest Expense

The Company reported interest expense of $0.9 million, $0.9 million and $1.1 million $0.9 million for fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, respectively, primarily as a
result of commitment fees under the Revolving Credit Facility, described in Note 9.

Other Income (Expense)

In fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021 2022 the Company reported $(0.1) million, $(3.4) million, $1.7 million, and $2.8 million $1.7 million respectively, in other income
(expense), related to remeasurement on foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities and other non-operating income and expenses. Additionally, in fiscal year
2023, the Company recorded a $2.7 million write down related to a technology start-up equity investment.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $89.4 million in fiscal year 2024 on pre-tax income of $363.9 million, yielding an effective tax rate of 24.6 percent. We recorded income tax
expense of $78.0 million in fiscal year 2023 on pre-tax income of $254.7 million, yielding an effective tax rate of 30.6 percent. Our effective tax rate was rates in both fiscal year 2024
and 2023 were higher than the U.S. statutory rate of 21.0 percent, primarily due to an increase in U.S. tax paid on our foreign earnings. A earnings resulting from an increase in
global intangible low-taxed income (GILTI), which is treated as a period cost, and a reduction in foreign tax credits. GILTI is unfavorably impacted by a provision in the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act of 2017 that requires research and development expenditures incurred starting in tax years beginning after December 31, 2021 fiscal year 2023 to be capitalized and
amortized ratably over five or fifteen years depending on the location in which the research activities are conducted, resulting in higher global intangible low-taxed income (GILTI),
which is treated as a period cost. conducted. In addition, U.S. tax rules introduced in fiscal year 2023 related to refundable tax credits, including R&D expenditure credits available to
us in the United Kingdom, reduce the amount of foreign tax credits available to offset GILTI.

We recorded income tax expense of $42.3 million in fiscal year 2022 on pre-tax income of $368.7 million, yielding an effective tax provision rate of 11.5 percent. Our effective
tax rate was lower than the U.S. statutory rate of 21.0 percent, primarily due to the effect of income earned in certain foreign jurisdictions that is taxed below the federal statutory
rate and excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation.

We recorded income The Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development has announced an Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion and Profit Shifting, including
Pillar Two Model Rules for a global minimum tax expense that call for the taxation of $27.9 million inlarge multinational corporations at a minimum rate of 15%. Certain jurisdictions,
including the United Kingdom, have enacted Pillar Two legislation that will start to become effective for our fiscal year 2021 2025. Based on pre-tax income of $245.2 million, yielding
an effective tax provision rate of 11.4 percent. Our effective tax rate was lower than the U.S. statutory rate of 21.0 percent, primarily due enacted laws, Pillar Two is not expected to
the effect of income earned in certain foreign jurisdictions that is taxed below the federal statutory rate, the release of prior year unrecognized tax benefits during fiscal year 2021,
and excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation. have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

For additional discussion about our income taxes, see Note 19 - Income Taxes.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Operating Activities

In fiscal year 2024, cash flow from operations was $421.7 million. Operating cash flow during fiscal year 2024 was related to the cash components of our net income and an
$18.4 million favorable change in working capital. The favorable change in working capital was driven primarily by prepaid wafer usage (related to the Capacity Reservation
Agreement), decreases in other assets and increased income taxes payable, partially offset by decreased accounts payable and acquisition-related liabilities, as well as increases in

accounts receivable. In fiscal year 2023, cash flow from operations was $339.6 million. Operating cash flow during fiscal year 2023 was related to the cash components of our net
income and a $55.6 million unfavorable change in working capital. The unfavorable
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change in working capital, was primarily driven primarily by an increase in inventory and decreases in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities, partially offset by a decrease in
accounts receivable. In fiscal year 2022, cash flow from operations was $124.8 million. Operating cash flow during fiscal year 2022 was related to the cash components of our net
income and a $316.1 million unfavorable change in working capital, primarily as a result of increases in long-term prepaid wafers associated with terms of the Capacity Reservation
Agreement with GlobalFoundries (discussed further in Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements), accounts receivables and
other assets (a portion of which resulted from terms of the Capacity Reservation Agreement with GlobalFoundries), partially offset by increases in acquisition-related liabilities and
decreases in inventory for the period. In fiscal year 2021, cash flow from operations was $348.9 million. Operating cash flow during fiscal year 2021 was related to the cash
components of our net income, offset by a $33.2 million favorable change in working capital. The favorable change in working capital was driven primarily by a decrease in accounts
receivable and an increase in accounts payable, partially offset by an increase in inventories.

Investing Activities

In fiscal year 2024, the Company used $163.0 million in cash for investing activities primarily related to $124.7 million in net purchases of marketable securities and capital
expenditures and technology investments of $38.3 million. In fiscal year 2023, the Company used $33.3 million in cash for investing activities primarily principally related to capital
expenditures and technology investments of $36.7 million and, offset by $3.4 million in net sales of marketable securities. In fiscal year 2022, the Company used approximately
$18.4 million in cash for investing activities principally primarily related to $276.9 million associated with the acquisition of Lion and capital expenditures and technology investments
of $30.0 million, partially offset by $288.5 million in net sales of marketable securities. In fiscal year 2021, the Company used approximately $77.7 million in cash for investing
activities primarily related to $57.2 million in net purchases of marketable securities, and capital expenditures and technology investments of $20.5 million.

Financing Activities
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In fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, the Company used $230.3 million $201.7 million, $178.7 million $230.3 million, and $121.2 million $178.7 million,
respectively, related to financing activities. In fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, the Company utilized approximately $191.4 million $186.0 million, $167.5 million $191.4
million, and $110.0 million $167.5 million, respectively, in cash to repurchase and retire portions of its outstanding common stock. See Note 17 - Stockholders' Equity for a
description of our share repurchase authorization.

Revolving Credit Facility

On July 8, 2021, the Company entered into a second amended and restated credit agreement (the “Second Amended Credit Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto. The Second Amended Credit Agreement provides for a $300 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the
“Revolving Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit Facility matures on July 8, 2026 (the “Maturity Date”). The Revolving Credit Facility is required to be guaranteed by all of Cirrus
Logic’s material domestic subsidiaries (the "Subsidiary Guarantors"). The Revolving Credit Facility is secured by substantially all the assets of Cirrus Logic and any Subsidiary
Guarantors, except for certain excluded assets.

On March 20, 2023, the Company, entered into the First Amendment (the "Amendment") to its Second Amended Credit Agreement, with the lending institutions party thereto
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent. The Amendment updates the benchmark interest rate provisions to replace the London interbank offered rate
("LIBOR") with the forward-looking secured overnight financing rate (“Term SOFR"), for the purposes of calculating interest under the terms of the Second Amended Credit
Agreement.

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the Company had no amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility and was in compliance with all covenants under the
Second Amended Credit Agreement.

See Note 9 — Revolving Credit Facility for additional information including material terms and related covenants.
Capital Requirements

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the rate of sales growth, market acceptance of our products, the timing and extent of research and
development projects, and potential future acquisitions of companies or technologies, commitments under the Capacity Reservation Agreement with GlobalFoundries (discussed

further in Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 1A. Risk Factors) and the expansion of our sales and
marketing activities. We believe our expected future cash earnings, existing cash, cash equivalents,
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investment balances, and available borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility will be sufficient to meet our capital requirements both domestically and internationally, in the
short-term (i.e. the next 12 months) and in the long-term, although we could be required, or could elect, to seek additional funding prior to that time. As of March 25, 2023 March 30,
2024, the Company did not have any off-balance-sheet arrangements, that were reasonably likely to have a material effect on our financial condition, revenues or expenses, results
of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.
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Contractual Cash Obligations
In our business activities, we incur certain commitments to make future payments under contracts such as debt agreements, purchase orders, operating leases and other long-

term contracts. See Part Il, ltem 8 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note 9 - Revolving Credit Facility, Note 11 - Leases and Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies,
of the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in ltem 8, for additional information related to these contractual obligations.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks associated with interest rates on drawn balances of our Revolving Credit Facility and marketable securities, and to currency movements on
non-functional currency assets and liabilities. We assess these risks on a regular basis and have established policies that are designed to protect against the adverse effects of
these and other potential exposures. All of the potential changes noted below are based on sensitivity analyses as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024. Actual results may differ
materially.

Interest Rate Risk

Our primary financial instruments include cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities. The Company’s investments
are managed by outside professional managers within investment guidelines set by the Company. These guidelines include security type, credit quality, and maturity, and are
intended to limit market risk by restricting the Company’s investments to high quality debt instruments with relatively short-term maturities. The Company does not currently use
derivative financial instruments in its investment portfolio. Due to the short-term nature of our investment portfolio, our downside exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.

To provide a meaningful assessment of the interest rate risk associated with our investment portfolio, the Company performed a sensitivity analysis to determine the impact a
change in interest rates would have on the value of the investment portfolio assuming a 100 basis point parallel shift in the yield curve. Based on investment positions as of March
25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase in interest rates across all maturities would result in a $0.8 million $3.5 million
and $1.1 million $0.8 million decline in the fair market value of the portfolio, respectively. Such losses would only be realized if the Company sold the investments prior to maturity.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our revenue and spending is transacted primarily in U.S. dollars; however, in fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, we entered into routine transactions in other
currencies to fund the operating needs of certain legal entities outside of the U.S. Our balance sheet also reflects monetary assets and liabilities in certain entities which are
remeasured to each entity’s functional currency. We use forward contracts to manage exposure to foreign currency exchange risk attributable to certain non-functional currency
balance sheet exposures. Gains and losses from these foreign currency forward contracts are recognized currently in earnings along with the gains and losses resulting from
remeasuring the underlying exposures. Because most of the aggregate balance sheet exposure is hedged by forward currency exchange contracts, at the end of any fiscal period a
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hypothetical 10 percent fluctuation in exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar would result in an immaterial pretax currency exchange gain or loss. See Note 5 - Derivative
Financial Instruments for additional information related to our hedging activities.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Cirrus Logic, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cirrus Logic, Inc. (the Company) as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, the
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended March 25, 2023 March
30, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company at March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each
of the three fiscal years in the period ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company'’s internal control over financial
reporting as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated May 19, 2023 May 24, 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our
audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters Matter

The critical audit matters matter communicated below are mattersis a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were was communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially
challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matters matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters matter below, providing a separate opinions opinion on the critical audit matters matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which they relate. it relates.
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Inventory valuation

Description of the Matter At March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the Company’s inventory balance was $233.5 million $227.2 million. As discussed in Note 2 of the financial
statements, inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, which includes considerations for inventory becoming obsolete or in
excess of management’s forecasted customer unit demand. The Company writes down inventories to net realizable value based on forecasted
customer unit demand while taking into account product release schedules and product life cycles. The Company also writes down inventory, as
appropriate, based on the age and condition of the inventory.

Auditing management’s estimate of excess and obsolete inventory involved subjective auditor judgment because management’s determination of
whether a write down is warranted is judgmental and the estimate is sensitive to changes in assumptions, including management’s assumptions over
forecasted demand which may be impacted by, among other things, future market and economic conditions outside of the Company’s control.

How We Addressed the We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls that address the risks of material
Matter in Our Audit misstatement relating to the valuation of inventory. For example, we tested controls over management'’s review of forecasted demand, the significant
assumptions, and the data underlying the excess and obsolete inventory valuation estimate.

Among other audit procedures performed, we evaluated the significant assumptions discussed above, including the forecasted customer unit demand
utilized in the estimate, and tested the completeness and accuracy of the underlying data used in management'’s calculation. We evaluated
adjustments to forecasted demand for specific product considerations and assessed the historical accuracy of management’s estimates by performing
a retrospective analysis comparing prior period forecasted demand to actual historical sales and inspected historical gross margins to assess whether
any items were being sold at a loss. sales.

Auditing management’s analysis of the uncertainties in its tax positions was complex and judgmental because the Company’s evaluation and measurement of each tax position
involves assessing uncertainties with respect to the application of complex tax rules, which are subject to interpretation. The Company uses significant judgment in determining
whether a tax position is more likely than not to be sustained and measuring the amount of tax benefit that qualifies for recognition.

How We Addressed the Matter in Our AuditWe obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls that address the risks of material
misstatement relating to the measurement of the benefit of uncertain tax positions. For example, we tested controls over management'’s review of the technical merits of tax
positions, the events and information that impacted tax positions, the estimate of the most likely outcome, and the data utilized in the estimate.

To test the valuation of uncertain tax positions, our audit procedures included, among others, analyzing the Company’s assumptions and data used to determine the amount of tax
benefit to recognize and testing the accuracy of the calculations. In considering the measurement criteria, we involved our tax professionals to assess the technical merits of the
Company’s tax positions. This included assessing the Company’s correspondence with the relevant tax authorities and evaluating income tax opinions or other third-party advice
obtained by the Company. We also used our knowledge of, and experience with, the application of international and local income tax laws by the relevant income tax authorities to
evaluate the Company’s accounting for those tax positions. We also evaluated the Company’s income tax disclosures included in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements in
relation to these matters.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1984.
Austin, Texas
May 19, 2023 24, 2024
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Cirrus Logic, Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited Cirrus Logic, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion, Cirrus Logic, Inc. (the
Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the
Company as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, and the related notes and our report dated May 19, 2023 May 24, 2024
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
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Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect
to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company'’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Austin, Texas
May 19, 2023 24, 2024
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CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

March 25, March 26,

2023 2022
March
30, March 30, March 25,
2024 2024 2023
Assets Assets
Current assets: Current assets:
Current assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash Cash and cash
equivalents equivalents $ 445,784 $ 369,814
Marketable Marketable
securities securities 34,978 10,601
Accounts Accounts
receivable, net receivable, net 150,473 240,264
Inventories Inventories 233,450 138,436
Prepaid assets Prepaid assets 35,507 40,822
Prepaid wafers Prepaid wafers 60,638 =
Other current Other current
assets assets 57,026 40,078
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 38/141

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Total current
assets

Long-term
marketable
securities

Right-of-use lease
assets

Property and
equipment, net
Intangibles, net
Goodwill
Deferred tax assets
Long-term prepaid
wafers
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and
Stockholders’
Equity
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries
and benefits

Software license
agreements
Current lease
liabilities
Acquisition-related
liabilities
Other accrued
liabilities
Total current
liabilities
Long-term liabilities:

Non-current lease

liabilities

Total current
assets

Long-term
marketable
securities

Right-of-use lease
assets

Property and
equipment, net
Intangibles, net
Goodwill
Deferred tax assets
Long-term prepaid
wafers
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and
Stockholders’
Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries
and benefits

Software license
agreements
Current lease
liabilities
Acquisition-related
liabilities
Other accrued
liabilities
Total current
liabilities
Long-term liabilities:

Non-current lease
liabilities

Non-current lease liabilities

Non-current lease liabilities

Non-current

income taxes

Non-current

income taxes

Long-term acquisition-related liabilities

Software license
agreements
Other long-term
liabilities
Total long-term
liabilities
Stockholders’
equity:

Other long-term
liabilities
Total long-term
liabilities
Stockholders’
equity:

Preferred stock, 5.0 million shares
authorized but unissued
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1,017,856 840,015
36,509 63,749
128,145 171,003
162,972 157,077
38,876 158,145
435,936 435,791
35,580 11,068
134,363 195,000
73,729 91,552

$ 2,063,966 $2,123,400
$ 81,462 $ 115,417
50,606 65,261
20,948 21,736
18,442 14,680
21,361 30,964
23,521 16,725
216,340 264,783
122,631 163,162
59,013 73,383
= 8,692

7,700 13,563
189,344 258,800
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Common stock, $0.001 par value,
280,000 shares authorized, 55,098
shares and 56,596 shares issued and
outstanding at March 25, 2023 and

March 26, 2022, respectively 55 57
Preferred stock, 5,000 shares
authorized but unissued
Preferred stock, 5,000 shares
authorized but unissued
Preferred stock, 5,000 shares
authorized but unissued
Common stock,
$0.001 par value,
280,000 shares
authorized, 53,491
shares and 55,098
shares issued and
outstanding at
March 30, 2024
and March 25,
2023, respectively
Additional paid-in = Additional paid-in
capital capital 1,670,086 1,578,370
Accumulated Accumulated
earnings (deficit) earnings (deficit) (9,320) 23,435
Accumulated other  Accumulated other
comprehensive comprehensive
loss loss (2,539) (2,045)
Total Total
stockholders’ stockholders’
equity equity 1,658,282 1,599,817
Total Total
liabilities and liabilities and
stockholders’ stockholders’
equity equity $ 2,063,966 $2,123,400

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended

March 25, March 26, March 27,
2023 2022 2021
March
30,
2024
Net sales Net sales $ 1,897,617 $1,781,460 $1,369,230
Cost of sales  Cost of sales 940,638 857,819 661,929
Gross profit ~ Gross profit 956,979 923,641 707,301
Operating Operating
expenses expenses
Research Research
and and
development  development 458,412 406,307 342,759

Research and development

Research and development

March 30, March 25,

2024 2023
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March 26,
2022
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Selling, Selling,
generaland  general and

administrative administrative 153,144 150,996 127,008
Lease impairments and

restructuring 10,632 — 352
Restructuring

Intangibles Intangibles

impairment impairment 85,760 — —

Intangibles impairment
Intangibles impairment
Total operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Total Total

operating operating

expenses expenses 707,948 557,303 470,119
Income from  Income from
operations operations 249,031 366,338 237,182
Interest income Interest income 9,985 1,563 6,281
Interest Interest
expense expense (898) (948) (1,057)
Other income Other income
(expense) (expense) (3,379) 1,710 2,840
Income before Income before
income taxes income taxes 254,739 368,663 245,246
Provision for  Provision for
income taxes income taxes 78,036 42,308 27,902
Net income Net income 176,703 326,355 217,344
Basic earnings Basic earnings
per share per share $ 318 $ 570 $ 3.74
Diluted Diluted
earnings per  earnings per
share share $ 3.09 $ 552 $ 3.62
Basic weighted Basic weighted
average average
common common
shares shares
outstanding outstanding 55,614 57,278 58,106
Diluted Diluted
weighted weighted
average average
common common
shares shares
outstanding outstanding 57,226 59,143 60,060

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
March 25, March 26, March 27,
2023 2022 2021
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March

30, March 30, March 25, March 26,
2024 2024 2023 2022
Net income Net income $ 176,703 $326,355 $217,344
Other Other
comprehensive comprehensive
income (loss), income (loss),
before tax before tax
Foreign currency translation
gain (loss) (834) (507) 1,862
Foreign currency translation
loss
Foreign currency translation
loss
Foreign currency translation
loss
Unrealized Unrealized
gain (loss) on = gain (loss) on
marketable marketable
securities securities 430 (5,587) 5,673
Benefit Benefit
(provision) for  (provision) for
income taxes  income taxes (90) 1,174 (1,191)
Benefit (provision) for income
taxes
Benefit (provision) for income
taxes
Comprehensive Comprehensive
income income $ 176,209 $321,435 $223,688
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
March 25, March 26, March 27,
2023 2022 2021
March
30, March 30, March 25, March 26,
2024 2024 2023 2022
Cash flows from  Cash flows from
operating activities: operating activities:
Net income Net income $ 176,703 $326,355 $217,344
Net income
Net income
Adjustments to Adjustments to
net cash net cash
provided by provided by
operating operating
activities: activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization
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Depreciation
and

amortization
Stock-based
compensation
expense
Deferred

income taxes

Loss on
retirement or
write-off of
long-lived

assets

Other non-cash charges

Other non-cash charges
Other non-cash charges
Restructuring
Intangibles
impairment
Net change in
operating assets

and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts
receivable,
net
Inventories
Prepaid
wafers

Other assets
Accounts
payable
Accrued
salaries and
benefits
Income taxes

payable

Income taxes payable
Income taxes payable
Acquisition-
related
liabilities
Other
accrued
liabilities

Net cash provided

by operating

activities

Cash flows from

investing activities:
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Maturities and
sales of
available-for-
sale
marketable

securities

Maturities and sales of available-

for-sale marketable securities

Maturities and sales of available-
for-sale marketable securities
Purchases of
available-for-
sale
marketable
securities
Purchases of
property,
equipment
and software

Investments

in technology

Acquisition of business, net of

cash obtained

Acquisition of business, net of
cash obtained
Acquisition of
business, net
of cash
obtained
Net cash used in
investing activities
Cash flows from
financing activities:
Debt

issuance

costs
Debt issuance costs
Debt issuance costs

Payment of acquisition-related
holdback

Payment of acquisition-related
holdback

Payment of
acquisition-
related
holdback

Issuance of
common
stock, net of
shares
withheld for
taxes
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Repurchase Repurchase

of stock to of stock to

satisfy satisfy

employee tax employee tax

withholding withholding

obligations obligations (18,082) (22,732) (18,367)
Repurchase Repurchase

and and

retirement of retirement of

common common

stock stock (191,382) (167,501) (109,986)

Net cash used in  Net cash used in

financing activities financing activities (230,268) (178,731) (121,225)
Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase Net increase

(decrease) in cash (decrease) in cash

and cash and cash

equivalents equivalents 75,970  (72,350) 150,045
Cash and cash Cash and cash

equivalents at equivalents at

beginning of period beginning of period 369,814 442,164 292,119

Cash and cash Cash and cash
equivalents at end equivalents at end

of period of period $ 445,784 $369,814 $442,164

ital
disclosures of disclosures of
cash flow cash flow

information information

Cash payments Cash payments

during the year for: during the year for:
Cash payments during the year for:
Cash payments during the year for:
Income taxes
Income taxes
Income taxes Income taxes $ 91,955 $ 35,693 $ 28,988

Interest Interest 537 572 610

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated Accumulated
Common Stock  additional Accumulated Other Common Stock Additional Accumulated Other
Paid-In Earnings Comprehensive Paid-In Earnings Comprehensive
Shares Amount  Capital (Deficit) Income / (Loss) Total Capital (Deficit) Income / (Loss) Total

Balance, March 28, 2020 58,242 $ 58 $1,434,871 $ (201,681) $ (3,469) $1,229,779
Net income — — — 217,344 — 217,344

Change in unrealized gain
(loss) on marketable
securities, net of tax — — — — 4,482 4,482

Change in foreign currency
translation adjustments — — — — 1,862 1,862
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Balance, March 27, 2021
Balance, March 27, 2021

Balance,
March 27,
2021

Net income
Change in
unrealized
gain (loss) on
marketable
securities, net
of tax
Change in
foreign
currency
translation
adjustments
Issuance of
stock under
stock option
plans and
other, net of
shares
withheld for
employee
taxes
Repurchase
and
retirement of
common
stock

Amortization
of deferred
stock
compensation

Balance,
March 26,
2022

Net income
Change in
unrealized
gain (loss) on
marketable
securities, net
of tax
Change in
foreign
currency
translation

adjustments
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Issuance of
stock under
stock option
plans and
other, net of
shares
withheld for
employee
taxes
Repurchase
and
retirement of
common
stock

Amortization
of deferred
stock
compensation
Balance,
March 25,
2023

Net income
Change in
unrealized
gain (loss) on
marketable
securities, net
of tax
Change in
foreign
currency
translation
adjustments
Issuance of
stock under
stock option
plans and
other, net of
shares
withheld for
employee
taxes
Repurchase
and
retirement of
common
stock
Amortization
of deferred
stock
compensation
Balance,
March 30,
2024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Table of Contents

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 47/141

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business

Description of Business

Cirrus Logic, Inc. (“Cirrus Logic,” “We,” “Us,” “Our,” or the “Company”) is a leader in low-power, high-precision mixed-signal processing solutions that create innovative user
experiences for the world’s top mobile and consumer applications.

We were incorporated in California in 1984, became a public company in 1989, and were reincorporated in the State of Delaware in February 1999. Our primary facility
housing engineering, sales and marketing, and administration functions is located in Austin, Texas. We also have offices in various other locations in the United States, United
Kingdom, and Asia, including the People’s Republic of China, South Korea, Japan, Singapore, and Taiwan. Our common stock, which has been publicly traded since 1989, is listed
on the NASDAQ's Global Select Market under the symbol CRUS.

Basis of Presentation

We prepare financial statements on a 52- or 53-week year that ends on the last Saturday in March. Fiscal year 2024 was a 53-week year. Fiscal years 2023 2022, and
2021 2022 were 52-week years. The next 53-week year will be fiscal year 2024.
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) and include the
accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances in order to conform to the current year's presentation of financial information.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires the use of management estimates. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve

judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at fiscal year-end and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds, commercial paper, and U.S. Government Treasury and Agency instruments with original maturities of
three months or less at the date of purchase.

Business Combinations

We account for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting and allocate the fair value of acquisition consideration to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is
recorded as goodwill. The results of operations of the business acquired is included in our consolidated statements of income beginning on the date of the acquisition.

Leases

We account for leases under ASC 842, Leases. Our leases generally contain fixed rental payments, with additional variable payments linked to actual common area
maintenance costs incurred by the landlord. These variable payments are not included within the lease liability and right-of-use ("ROU") asset, but are recognized as an expense
when incurred. As our leases typically do not provide an implicit rate, the Company determines the Incremental Borrowing Rate ("IBR") for each lease based on the information
available at the commencement date, taking into consideration necessary adjustments for collateral, currency, and lease term.
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Operating leases in excess of 12 months are recognized on the balance sheet, with future lease payments recognized as a liability, measured at present value, and the ROU
asset recognized for the lease term. Lease expense is recognized in the income statement over the lease term.

Inventories

We use the lower of cost or net realizable value to value our inventories, with cost being determined on a first-in, first-out basis. One of the factors we consistently evaluate in
the application of this method is the extent to which products are accepted into the marketplace. By policy, we evaluate market acceptance based on known business factors and
conditions by comparing forecasted customer unit demand for our products over a specific future period, or demand horizon, to quantities on hand at the end of each accounting
period.

On a quarterly and annual basis, we analyze inventories on a part-by-part basis. Product life cycles and the competitive nature of the industry are factors considered in the
evaluation of customer unit demand at the end of each quarterly accounting period. Inventory on-hand in excess of forecasted demand is considered to have reduced market value
and, therefore, the cost basis is adjusted to the lower of cost or net realizable value. Typically, market values for excess or obsolete inventories are considered to be zero. Net
inventory reserve releases were $1.0 million in fiscal year 2024, primarily related to the sale of previously reserved inventory, offset by charges for excess and obsolete inventory.
Inventory charges recorded for excess and obsolete inventory, including scrapped inventory, were $9.9 million and $6.5 million, in fiscal year 2023, and 2022, respectively. Inventory
charges in fiscal year 2023 and 2022 related to a combination of quality issues and inventory exceeding demand.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 48/141
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Inventories were comprised of the following (in thousands):

March 25, March 26,
2023 2022

March 30,
2024 March 30, 2024
Work in Work in
process process $116,088 $ 95,188
Finished Finished
goods goods 117,362 43,248

$233,450 $138,436

March 25, 2023

$

Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, net of depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over estimated
economic lives, ranging from 3 to 39 years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the term of the lease or the estimated useful life. Furniture, fixtures,
machinery, and equipment are all depreciated over a useful life of 3 to 10 years, while buildings are depreciated over a period of up to 39 years. In general, our capitalized software
is amortized over a useful life of 3 years, with capitalized enterprise resource planning software being amortized over a useful life of 10 years. Gains or losses related to retirements
or dispositions of fixed assets are recognized in the period incurred. Additionally, if impairment indicators exist, the Company will assess the carrying value in relation to the
calculated fair value of the associated asset. The Company recorded $1.3 million of property, plant and equipment charges during fiscal year 2023, related to restructuring. See Note
12 — Lease Impairments and Restructuring for further detail. There were no additional material disposal charges for property, plant and equipment in fiscal years 2024, 2023 2022
or 2021.2022.

Property, plant and equipment was comprised of the following (in thousands):

March 25, March 26,
2023 2022

March 30, 2024

Land Land

March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023

$ 23,853 $ 23,853
Buildings Buildings 64,056 63,730
Furniture and Furniture and

fixtures fixtures 23,909 24,122
Leasehold Leasehold

improvements improvements 55,733 53,611
Machinery Machinery

and and

equipment equipment 188,403 175,966
Capitalized  Capitalized

software software 26,889 26,491
Construction Construction

in progress  in progress

and other and other 14,350 5,566
Total property, Total property,

plant and plant and

equipment equipment 397,193 373,339

Less: Less:

Accumulated
depreciation
and
amortization

Property, Property,

plant and plant and

equipment,  equipment,

net net $162,972 $157,077

Accumulated
depreciation
and

amortization  (234,221) (216,262)

Depreciation and amortization expense on property, plant, and equipment for fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022 and 2021 was $28.1 million, $27.1 million, $24.8 million, and
$24.9 million $24.8 million, respectively.
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Gooawill

Goodwill is recorded at the time of an acquisition and is calculated as the difference between the aggregate consideration paid for an acquisition and the fair value of the net
tangible and intangible assets acquired. The Company tests goodwill for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if the Company believes indicators of impairment exist.
Impairment evaluations involve management'’s assessment of qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that goodwill is impaired. If management concludes
from its assessment of qualitative factors that it is more likely than not that impairment exists, then a quantitative impairment test will be performed involving management estimates
of future cash flows. Significant management judgment is required in the forecasts of future operating results that are used in these evaluations. Following the quantitative test, an
impairment charge would be recorded for the amount the carrying value exceeds the calculated fair value. The Company has recorded no goodwill impairment in fiscal years 2024,
2023, 2022, and 2021. 2022.

Long-Lived Assets

Intangible assets include purchased technology licenses and patents that are reported at cost and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, generally
ranging from 1 to 5 years. Acquired intangibles include existing technology, core technology or patents, license agreements, in-process research & development, trademarks,
tradenames, customer relationships, and non-compete agreements. These assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over lives ranging from 1 to 15 years.

We regularly review whether facts or circumstances exist that indicate the carrying values of property, plant and equipment or other long-lived assets, including intangible
assets, are impaired. We assess the recoverability of assets by comparing the projected undiscounted net cash flows associated with those assets to their respective carrying
amounts. We measure any impairment loss by comparing the fair value of the asset to its carrying amount. We estimate fair value based on discounted future cash flows, quoted
market prices, or independent appraisals. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023, the Company recorded $85.8 million$85.8 million of acquired intangible asset impairment
charges. See Note 7 — Intangibles, net and Goodwill for further detail. There were no other material intangible asset impairments recorded in fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and
2021.2022.

Foreign Currency Translation

Some of the Company's subsidiaries utilize the local currency as the functional currency. The Company’s main entities, including the entities that generate the majority of sales
and employ the majority of employees, are U.S. dollar functional.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to material concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents, marketable securities, long-term marketable
securities, and trade accounts receivable. We are exposed to credit risk to the extent of the amounts recorded on the balance sheet. By policy, our cash equivalents, marketable
securities, and long-term marketable securities are subject to certain nationally recognized credit standards, issuer concentrations, sovereign risk, and marketability or liquidity
considerations.

In evaluating our trade receivables, we perform credit evaluations of our major customers’ financial condition and monitor closely all of our receivables to limit our financial
exposure by limiting the length of time and amount of credit extended. In certain situations, we may require payment in advance or utilize letters of credit to reduce credit risk. By
policy, we establish a reserve for trade accounts receivable based on the type of business in which a customer is engaged, the length of time a trade account receivable is
outstanding, and other knowledge that we may possess relating to the probability that a trade receivable is at risk for non-payment.

We had three contract manufacturers aggregated at their parent level, Foxconn, Luxshare Precision, and Pegatron, who represented 43 percent, 11 percent, and 10 percent,
respectively, of our consolidated gross trade accounts receivable as of the end of fiscal year 2024. We had three contract manufacturers aggregated at their parent level, Foxconn,
Pegatron, and Luxshare Precision, who represented 35 percent, 16 percent, and 11 percent, respectively, of our consolidated gross trade accounts receivable as of the end of fiscal
year 2023. We had two contract manufacturers aggregated at their parent level, Foxconn and Pegatron, who represented 49 percent and 17 percent, respectively, of our
consolidated gross trade accounts receivable as of the end of fiscal year 2022. No other distributor or contract manufacturer had receivable balances that represented more than 10
percent of consolidated gross trade accounts receivable as of the end of fiscal year 2023 2024 or 2022. 2023.

Since the components we produce are largely proprietary and generally not available from second sources, we consider our end customer to be the entity specifying the use of
our component in their design. These end customers may then purchase our products directly from us, from a distributor, or through a third-party manufacturer contracted to
produce their end product. For fiscal year years 2024, 2023 and 2022, our ten largest end customers represented approximately 95 percent, 92 percent and for each of fiscal years
2022 and 2021, our ten largest end customers represented 93 percent of our sales. sales, respectively. For fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, we had one end
customer, Apple Inc., who purchased through multiple contract manufacturers and represented approximately 87 percent, 83 percent, 79 percent, and 83 79 percent, of the
Company’s total sales, respectively. No other customer or distributor represented more than 10 percent of net sales in fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, or 2021. 2022.

Table of Contents

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue upon the transfer of promised goods or services to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

Performance Obligations
The Company’s single performance obligation is the delivery of promised goods to the customer. The promised goods are explicitly stated in the customer contract and are
comprised of a single type of good. This performance obligation is satisfied upon transfer of control of the promised goods to the customer, as defined per the shipping terms within

the customer’s contract. The vast majority of the Company’s contracts with customers have an original expected term of one year or less. As allowed by ASC 606, the Company has
not disclosed the value of any unsatisfied performance obligations related to these contracts.

Contract balances

Payments are typically due within 30 to 60 days of invoicing and terms do not include a significant financing component or noncash consideration. There have been no
material impairment losses on accounts receivable. There are no material contract assets or contract liabilities recorded on the consolidated balance sheets.
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Transaction price

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods to the customer. Fixed
pricing is the consideration that is agreed upon in the customer contract. Variable pricing includes rights of return, price protection and stock rotation. Rights of return costs are
estimated using the "most likely amount" method by reviewing historical returns to determine the most likely customer return rate and applying materiality thresholds. Price
protection includes price adjustments available to certain distributors based upon established book price and a stated adjustment period. Stock rotation is also available to certain
distributors based on a stated maximum of prior billings.

The Company estimates all variable consideration at the most likely amount which it expects to be entitled. The estimate is based on current and historical information
available to the Company, including recent sales activity and pricing. Variable consideration is only included in the transaction price to the extent that it is probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. The Company defers all variable
consideration that does not meet the revenue recognition criteria.

Shipping Costs

Our shipping and handling costs are included in cost of sales for all periods presented in the consolidated statements of income.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were $0.5 million $0.3 million, $0.9 million $0.5 million, and $0.9 million, in fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022,
and 2021, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date based on the grant-date fair value of the awards and is recognized as an expense, on a ratable basis, over the
vesting period, which is generally between 1 and 4 years. Determining the amount of stock-based compensation to be recorded requires the Company to develop estimates used in
calculating the grant-date fair value of stock options and performance awards (also called market stock units). The Company calculates the grant-date fair value for stock options
and market stock units using the Black-Scholes valuation model and the Monte Carlo simulation, respectively. The use of valuation models requires the Company to make estimates
of assumptions such as expected volatility, expected term, risk-free interest rate, expected dividend yield, and forfeiture rates. The grant-date fair value of restricted stock units is the
market value at grant date multiplied by the number of units.

Income Taxes

We are required to calculate income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves calculating the actual current tax liability as well as assessing
temporary differences in the recognition of income or loss for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in our
consolidated balance sheet. We record a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company
evaluates the ability to realize its deferred tax assets based on all the facts and circumstances, including projections of future taxable income and expiration dates of carryover tax
attributes.
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The calculation of our tax liabilities involves assessing uncertainties with respect to the application of complex tax rules and the potential for future adjustment of our uncertain
tax positions by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service or other taxing jurisdiction. We recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on the required two-step process. The first
step requires us to determine if the weight of available evidence indicates that the tax position has met the threshold for recognition; therefore, we must evaluate whether it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. The second step requires us to measure the tax benefit
of the tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in an income tax return as the largest amount that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. We
reevaluate the uncertain tax positions each quarter based on factors including, but not limited to, changes in facts or circumstances, changes in tax law, expirations of statutes of
limitation, effectively settled issues under audit, and new audit activity. A change in the recognition step or measurement step would result in the recognition of a tax benefit or an
additional charge to the tax provision in the period.

Although we believe the measurement of our liabilities for uncertain tax positions is reasonable, we cannot assure that the final outcome of these matters will not be different
than what is reflected in the historical income tax provisions and accruals. If additional taxes are assessed as a result of an audit or litigation, it could have a material effect on our
income tax provision and net income in the period or periods for which that determination is made. We operate within multiple taxing jurisdictions and are subject to audit in these
jurisdictions. These audits can involve complex issues which may require an extended period of time to resolve and could result in additional assessments of income tax. We believe
adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for all periods. See Note 19 - Income Taxes for further detail.

Government Assistance

The Company benefits from the Research and Development Expenditure Credit (‘RDEC”) program in the United Kingdom. The RDEC is recorded as an offset to research and
development expenses in the consolidated statements of income, $40.9 million, $26.2 million, and $23.2 million in fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. RDEC
receivables are first settled against the Company's United Kingdom income taxes with the remainder paid in cash on an annual basis. RDEC receivables as of March 30, 2024 and
March 25, 2023 totaled $27.9 million and $47.0 million, totaled $47.0 million, respectively, presented within "Other current Assets" and the combination of "Other assets current
Assets" and "Other Assets" respectively, on the consolidated balance sheet. sheets. While the duration of RDEC benefits is indefinite, the program is subject to future policy changes
and RDEC claims are subject to regular audits by the United Kingdom government.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is based on the weighted effect of common shares issued and outstanding and is calculated by dividing net income by the basic weighted average
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares used in the basic net
income per share calculation, plus the equivalent number of common shares that would be issued assuming exercise or conversion of all potentially dilutive common shares
outstanding. These potentially dilutive items consist primarily of outstanding stock options and restricted stock grants.

The following table details the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, (in thousands, except per share amounts):
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Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended

March 25, March 26, March 27,
2023 2022 2021

March 30, 2024 March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023 March 26, 2022

Numerator:  Numerator:

Net income = Net income $176,703 $326,355 $217,344
Net income

Net income

Denominator: Denominator:

Weighted average shares

outstanding

Weighted average shares

outstanding

Weighted Weighted

average average

shares shares

outstanding outstanding 55,614 57,278 58,106
Effect of Effect of

dilutive dilutive

securities securities 1,612 1,865 1,954
Weighted Weighted

average average

diluted diluted

shares shares 57,226 59,143 60,060
Basic Basic

earnings per earnings per

share share $ 318 $ 570 % 374
Diluted Diluted

earnings per earnings per

share share $ 309 $ 552 % 362

The weighted outstanding shares excluded from our diluted calculation for the years ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27,
2021 March 26, 2022 were 325 thousand, 268 thousand, 113 thousand, and 187 113 thousand, respectively, as the exercise price of certain outstanding stock options exceeded the
average market price during the period.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Our accumulated other comprehensive loss is comprised of foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as available-
for-sale. See Note 18 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for additional discussion.

Recently Adopted Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2021, 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-10, Government Assistance 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 832) — Disclosures by Business Entities about
Government Assistance, which 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. This ASU requires interim and annual disclosure of significant segment expenses that are
regularly provided to the CODM and included within each reported measure of a segment’s profit or loss, requires interim disclosures about transactions a reportable segment’s
profit or loss and assets that are currently required annually and requires disclosure of the position and title of the CODM and how the CODM uses segment profit or loss information
in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources. In the event the CODM uses more than one measure of a segment's profit or loss in assessing
performance and allocation of resources, clarification of disclosure requirements is provided. Additionally, a company with a government that are accounted single reportable
segment is required to provide all the disclosures prescribed under this ASU. The guidance is effective for by applying a grant or contribution type accounting model. annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, to be applied retrospectively to all periods presented, with early
adoption permitted. The disclosures requires information about Company is currently evaluating the nature impact of this new guidance on the financial statements and related policy
used for disclosures.

In December 2023, the transactions, FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740) - Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. The guidance provides qualitative and
guantitative updates to the line items on the balance sheet rate reconciliation and income statement that are affected taxes paid disclosures, requiring more consistent categories
and the amounts applicable to each financial statement line item, and significant terms and conditions greater disaggregation of the transactions. information by jurisdiction. This
ASU is effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The Company adopted this ASU in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023 on a
prospective basis. See related policy discussion above.
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In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805) — Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with
CustomersDecember 15, 2024, which requires contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combination to be recognized and measured at the acquisition date in
accordance with Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) as if the acquirer had originated the contracts. Prior to the issuance of this ASU, contract assets and liabilities
were recognized at fair value on the acquisition date. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within that fiscal year, with
early adoption permitted, and should to be applied on a prospective basis. basis, although retrospective application is also permitted. The Company early is currently evaluating the
impact of this guidance on the financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2024, the SEC adopted this ASU final climate-related disclosure rules. The rules require disclosure of climate-related risks that have had or are reasonably likely to
have a material impact on the business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition of the Company. Disclosure of climate-related risk management, governance,
greenhouse gas emissions, climate-related targets, and severe weather events, if material, is also required. Subsequently, the SEC issued an order to stay the rules pending judicial
review of challenges to the rule. If the rules are ultimately implemented, they will be phased in and the fourth quarter of Company may be required to begin making certain
disclosures beginning in fiscal year 2023 with no material 2026. The Company is currently evaluating the impact to of the financial statements.final rules on our disclosures.

3. Marketable Securities
The Company’s investments have been classified as available-for-sale securities in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Marketable securities are categorized on the consolidated
balance sheet as “Marketable securities” within the short-term or long-term classification, as appropriate.

The following table is a summary of available-for-sale securities (in thousands):

Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair Value

As of March 25, 2023 Cost Gains Losses (Net Carrying Amount)
As of March Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair Value
30, 2024 As of March 30, 2024 Cost Gains Losses (Net Carrying Amount)

Corporate Corporate

debt debt

securities  securities $66,753 $ 91 $ (1,825) $ 65,019
Non-U.S. government

securities 510 — 3) 507

U.S. Treasury
securities

U.S. Treasury

securities

u.s. UsS.

Treasury  Treasury

securities ~ securities 5,728 17 (151) 5,594

Agency Agency

discount  discount

notes notes 385 — (18) 367
Agency discount

notes

Agency discount

notes

Commercial

paper

Total Total

securiies  securities $73.376 $ 108 $ (1,997) $ 71,487

The Company typically invests in highly-rated securities with original maturities generally ranging from one to three years. The Company's specifically identified gross
unrealized losses of $2.0 million $1.0 million related to securities with total amortized costs of approximately $64.0 million $172.1 million at March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024.
Securities in a continuous unrealized loss position for more than 12 months as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 had an aggregate amortized cost of $56.3 million $25.0 million and
an aggregate unrealized loss of $1.9 million $0.3 million. The Company may sell certain of its marketable securities prior to their stated maturities for strategic reasons including, but
not limited to, anticipated or actual changes in credit rating and duration management. The Company records an allowance for credit loss when a decline in investment market
value is due to credit-related factors. When evaluating an investment for impairment, the Company reviews factors including the length of time and extent to which fair value has
been below cost basis, the financial condition of the issuer, changes in market interest rates and whether it is more likely than not the Company will be
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required to sell the investment before recovery of the investment's cost basis. As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the Company does not consider any of its investments to be
impaired.
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Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair Value

As of March 26, 2022 Cost Gains Losses (Net Carrying Amount)
As of March Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair Value
25,2023 As of March 25, 2023 Cost Gains Losses (Net Carrying Amount)

Corporate Corporate

debt debt

securities ~ securities  $70,296 $ 2 $ (2,133) $ 68,165
Non-U.S. Non-U.S.

government government

securities  securities 509 — 9) 500
u.s. u.s.

Treasury  Treasury

securities ~ securities 5,483 — (169) 5,314

Agency Agency
discount discount
notes notes 385 — (14) 371

Agency discount notes

Agency discount notes

Total Total
securities  securities  $76.673 $ 2 $ (2,325) $ 74,350

The Company'’s specifically identified gross unrealized losses of $2.3 million $2.0 million related to securities with total amortized costs of approximately $75.5 million $64.0
million at March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023. Securities in a continuous unrealized loss position for more than 12 months as of March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023 had an aggregate
amortized cost of $3.5 million $56.3 million and an aggregate unrealized loss of $0.1 million $1.9 million as of March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023. As of March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023,
the Company did not consider any of its investments to be impaired.

The cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale investments by contractual maturity were as follows:

March 25, 2023 March 26, 2022 March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Amortized Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Cost Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Within Within
lyearlyear $35,824 $34,978 $10,697 $10,601
After After 1

1 year year 37,552 36,509 65,976 63,749
Total Total $73,376 $71,487 $76,673 $74,350

4. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has determined that the assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis are the
Company’s cash equivalents and marketable securities portfolio. The Company defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company applies the following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to measure
fair value into three levels and bases the categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowest level of input that is available and significant to the fair value measurement. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements).

= Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are
not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.
= Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The Company’s cash equivalents and marketable securities portfolio consist of money market funds, certificates of deposit, commercial paper, debt securities, non-U.S
government securities, U.S Treasury securities, and securities of U.S. government-sponsored enterprises, and are reflected on our consolidated balance sheet under the headings
cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, and long-term marketable securities. The Company determines the fair value of its marketable securities portfolio by obtaining
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non-binding market prices from its third-party pricing providers on the last day of the quarter, whose sources may use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1
inputs) or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable either directly or indirectly (Level 2 inputs) in determining fair value.

The Company’s long-term revolving facility, described in Note 9 - Revolving Credit Facility, bears interest at a base rate plus applicable margin or forward-looking secured
overnight financing rate (“Term SOFR") plus 10 basis points plus applicable margin. As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, there are no amounts drawn under the facility and the
fair value is zero.

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, the Company has no material Level 3 assets or liabilities. There were no transfers between Level
1, Level 2, or Level 3 measurements for the years ending March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023.
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The following summarizes the fair value of our financial instruments at March 30, 2024 (in thousands):

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash equivalents
Money market funds $ 439,065 $ — 3 — 3 439,065
Certificates of deposit — 400 — 400
$ 439,065 $ 400 $ — 3 439,465
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate debt securities $ — 3 185,393 $ — 3 185,393
U.S. Treasury securities 9,769 — — 9,769
Agency discount notes — 1,124 — 1,124
Commercial paper — 866 — 866
$ 9,769 $ 187,383 $ — 3 197,152

The following summarizes the fair value of our financial instruments at March 25, 2023 (in thousands):

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash equivalents
Money market funds $ 406,265 $ — % — 3 406,265
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate debt securities $ — $ 65,019 $ — $ 65,019
Non-U.S. government securities = 507 = 507
U.S. Treasury securities 5,594 — — 5,594
Agency discount notes — 367 — 367
$ 559 $ 65,893 $ — $ 71,487
The following summarizes the fair value of our financial instruments at March 26, 2022 (in thousands):
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
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Quoted Prices Quoted Prices

in Active in Active Significant
Markets for Markets for Other
Identical Identical Observable
Assets Assets Inputs
Level 1 Level 1 Level 2
Assets: Assets:
Cash Cash

equivalents equivalents
Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents

Money Money
market market
funds funds $ 217,151 $ — % — $217,151
Commercial paper — 249 — 249

Money market funds

Money market funds

$ 217,151 $ 249 $ —  $217,400

Available-for- Available-for-
sale sale
securities securities
Available-for-sale securities
Available-for-sale securities

Corporate debt securities

Corporate debt securities

Corporate = Corporate

debt debt

securities securities  $ — $68,165 $ — $ 68,165
Non-U.S. Non-U.S.

government government

securities securities — 500 — 500
U.s. u.s.

Treasury Treasury

securities securities 5,314 — — 5,314

Agency Agency
discount discount
notes notes = 371 - 371

Agency discount notes
Agency discount notes
$

$ 5,314 $69,036 $ — $ 74,350

5. Derivative Financial Instruments

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

Level 3 Total

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to reduce the earnings impact that exchange rate fluctuations have on non-functional currency balance sheet
exposures. The Company recognizes both the gains and losses on foreign currency forward contracts and the gains and losses on the remeasurement of non-functional currency

assets and liabilities within "Other "Other income (expense)" in the consolidated statements of income. The Company does not apply hedge accounting to these foreign currency

derivative instruments.

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the Company held one foreign currency forward contract denominated in British Pound Sterling with a notional value of $7.6 $4.3 million.

The fair value of this contract was not material as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024.
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The before-tax effect of derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments was as follows (in thousands):
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Fiscal Years Ended

March 25, March 26,
March 27, 2021
2023 2022 Location

Gain (loss) recognized

in income
Fiscal Years Ended
March 30,
2024
March 30,
2024
March 30, March 25, March 26,
2024 2023 2022 Location
Loss
recognized in
income
Foreign Foreign
currency currenc Other
Y $ (564) $ (283) $ 3,212
forward forward income
contracts contracts (expense)
Foreign currency
forward contracts
Foreign currency Other income
$ (431) $ (564) $ (283)
forward contracts (expense)
6. Accounts Receivable, net
The following are the components of accounts receivable, net (in thousands):
March 26,
March 25, 2023 2022
March
30,
2024 March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023

Gross Gross

accounts accounts

receivable receivable $ 150,473 $240,264
Allowance Allowance

for for

doubtful  doubtful

accounts accounts = —

Accounts Accounts

receivable, receivable,
net net $ 150,473 $240,264

The Company regularly evaluates the collectability of accounts receivable based on age, historical customer payment trends and ongoing customer relations. The allowance
for doubtful accounts and recoveries on bad debt were immaterial for fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021.

The significant decrease in accounts receivable is due primarily to the volume and timing of shipments in the current fiscal quarter versus the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2022.
7. Intangibles, net and Goodwill

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2023, due to the prolonged weakness in the China smartphone market, which has had an adverse effect on sales of our general market battery
and power products associated with the acquisition of Lion Semiconductor, Inc. ("Lion") (the "Acquisition"), the Company was prompted to assess the recoverability and fair value of
the acquired intangible assets recorded in purchase accounting. The Company determined that a replacement cost approach was the most appropriate method to evaluate
remaining fair value of the technology. As a result, the Company recorded an intangibles impairment charge of $85.8 million in fiscal year 2023.

The following information details the gross carrying amount, accumulated amortization, and net carrying value of our intangible assets subject to amortization (in thousands):

March 25, 2023 March 26, 2022
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Intangible Category /

ing Amorti:

Period (in years)

Existing technology (5.3)

In-process research & development (a)
Trademarks and tradename (0.5)
Customer relationships (1.4)
Technology licenses (1.7)

Total

Intangible Category /

9! g

ing Amortization
Period (in years)

Existing technology (4.4)
Trademarks and tradename (a)
Customer relationships (0.4)
Technology licenses (2.9)

Total

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Carrying Value Amount Amortization Net Carrying Value
146,146 (110,792) 35,354 255,995 (124,127) 131,868
70,936 (70,936) = 70,936 (67,486) 3,450
3,037 (2,973) 64 3,037 (2,845) 192
15,381 (13,422) 1,959 34,091 (14,379) 19,712
23,490 (21,991) 1,499 22,376 (19,453) 2,923
258,990 $ (220,114) $ 38,876 386,435 $ (228,290) $ 158,145

March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Carrying Value Amount Amortization Net Carrying Value
146,146 (117,595) 28,551 146,146 (110,792) 35,354
3,037 (3,037) = 3,037 (2,973) 64
15,381 (14,840) 541 15,381 (13,422) 1,959
10,692 (10,206) 486 15,841 (14,342) 1,499
175,256 $ (145,678) $ 29,578 $ 180,405 $ (141,529) $ 38,876

(a) Intangible assets are fully amortized as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024.

Table of Contents

Amortization expense for intangibles in fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022 and 2021 was $9.0 million, $33.7 million, $29.0 million, and $14.5 million $29.0 million, respectively.
The following table details the estimated aggregate amortization expense for all intangibles owned as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, for each of the five succeeding fiscal years
and in the aggregate thereafter (in thousands):
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Fiscal Year
2024
2025
2025
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029

Thereafter

Fiscal Year

2025
2026
2027
2028

Thereafter

® v B B

$

9,221

7,600
6,681
6,589
6,589

2,196

The goodwill balance included on the consolidated balance sheet was $435.9 million and $435.8 million $435.9 million at March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26,

2022 March 25, 2023, respectively.

8. Acquisition

There were no acquisitions completed during fiscal year 2023. 2024. During fiscal year 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of Lion. As a result of acquiring 100
percent of the outstanding share capital of Lion, Lion became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. This transaction was accounted for as a business combination using the
acquisition method of accounting. All of the acquired assets and liabilities of Lion have been recorded at their respective fair values as of the acquisition date.

At the acquisition date, total consideration transferred was approximately $280.5 million, inclusive of $4.9 million in cash acquired. During the third quarter of fiscal year 2022,
an additional $1.2 million of consideration was paid related to contractual post-closing adjustment provisions. The remaining merger consideration of $31.0 million was subject to
indemnity provisions as outlined in the merger agreement and paid during fiscal year 2023.
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In addition, $25.4 million of the merger consideration relates related to retention agreements with certain key employees that are subject to continued employment with the
Company. The merger consideration subject to retention agreements iswas treated as compensation expense and is recognized over the retention period in "Research and
development" expense in the consolidated statements of income. The merger consideration was paid in fiscal year 2024.

The excess of the purchase price over the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill during fiscal year 2022.

9. Revolving Credit Facility

On July 8, 2021, the Company entered into a second amended and restated credit agreement (the “Second Amended Credit Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto. The Second Amended Credit Agreement provides for a $300 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the
“Revolving Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit Facility matures on July 8, 2026 (the “Maturity Date”). The Revolving Credit Facility is required to be guaranteed by all of Cirrus
Logic’s material domestic subsidiaries (the "Subsidiary Guarantors"). The Revolving Credit Facility is secured by substantially all the assets of Cirrus Logic and any Subsidiary
Guarantors, except for certain excluded assets.

On March 20, 2023, the Company, entered into the First Amendment (the "Amendment") to its Second Amended Credit Agreement, with the lending institutions party thereto
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent. The Amendment updates the benchmark interest rate provisions to replace the London interbank offered rate
("LIBOR") with the forward-looking secured overnight financing rate (“Term SOFR"), for the purposes of calculating interest under the terms of the Second Amended Credit
Agreement.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility may, at Cirrus Logic's election, bear interest at either (a) a base rate plus the applicable margin ("Base Rate Loans") or (b) a
Term SOFR rate plus a 10 basis point credit spread adjustment plus the applicable margin. The applicable margin ranges from 0% to 0.75% per annum for Base Rate Loans and
1.00% to 1.75% per annum for SOFR Loans based on the ratio of consolidated funded indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA for the most recently ended period of four consecutive
fiscal quarters (the “Consolidated Leverage Ratio”). A Commitment Fee accrues at a rate per annum ranging from 0.175% to 0.275% (based on the Consolidated Leverage Ratio)
on the average daily unused portion of the commitment of the lenders.
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The Revolving Credit Facility contains certain financial covenants providing that (a) the ratio of consolidated funded indebtedness (minus up to $200 million of unrestricted cash
and cash equivalents available on such date) to consolidated EBITDA for the prior four consecutive quarters must not be greater than 3.00 to 1.00 (the “Consolidated Net Leverage
Ratio”) and (b) the ratio of consolidated EBITDA for the prior four consecutive quarters to consolidated interest expense paid or
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payable in cash for the prior four consecutive quarters must not be less than 3.00 to 1.00 (the “Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio”). The Second Amended Credit Agreement
also contains negative covenants limiting the Company's or any Subsidiary's ability to, among other things, incur debt, grant liens, make investments, effect certain fundamental
changes, make certain asset dispositions, and make certain restricted payments. Further, the Second Amended Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative covenants,
including, among others, covenants regarding the payment of taxes and other obligations, maintenance of insurance, reporting requirements, and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the Company had no amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility and was in compliance with all covenants under the
Second Amended Credit Agreement.

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, future interest payment obligations based on forecasted commitment fees under the Revolving Credit Facility were as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2024 $ 528

2025

2025

2025 2025 534

2026 2026 532

2027 2027 277

2028 2028 —

2029

Thereafter Thereafter —
Total Total $ 1,871

10. Revenues

Disaggregation of revenue

We disaggregate revenue from contracts with customers by product line and ship to location of the customer. Sales are designated in the product line categories of Audio and
High-Performance Mixed-Signal ("HPMS").
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Total net sales based on the product line disaggregation criteria described above are shown in the table below (in thousands).

Fiscal Years Ended

March 26, March 27,
March 25, 2023 2022 2021

Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended

March
30,
2024 March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023
Audio  Audio
Products Products $ 1,172,007 $1,187,126 $1,104,060
HPMS HPMS
Products Products 725,610 594,334 265,170

Total  Total $ 1,897,617 $1,781,460 $1,369,230

The geographic regions that are reviewed are China, the United States, and the rest of the world.

Total net sales based on the geographic disaggregation criteria described are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Years Ended
March 25, March 26, March 27,
2023 2022 2021

Fiscal Years Ended

March 26, 2022

Fiscal Years Ended

March

March 30, March 25,
30,
2024 2024 2023

China China $1,230,602 $1,197,812 $1,024,178

;n;: gtn;::: 52,688 20513 21,708
Rest Rest
of of
World World ~ 614,327 554,135 323344

Total Total $1,897,617 $1,781,460 $1,369,230
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See Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for additional discussion surrounding revenue recognition considerations.
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11. Leases

March 26,

2022

The Company has operating leases for corporate offices and certain office equipment. Our leases have remaining lease terms of 1 year to 26 25 years, some of which include
options to extend the leases that are considered reasonably certain to be exercised. There are no residual value guarantees in any of our leases. No restrictions or covenants have
been imposed on the Company as a result of the lease agreements in place. All of the Company’s leases have been classified as operating leases.

The components of net operating lease expense were as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Years Ended

March 26,
March 25, 2023 2022
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
March
30, 2024 March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023
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Operating
lease - in lease

Operating
-in

excess of 12 excess of 12

months months $ 18,071 $ 14,901
Variable Variable
lease lease 6,226 4,954
Short- Short-
term lease term lease 86 22
Operating Operating
lease income lease income (464) (1,518)
Total net Total net
operating operating
lease lease
expense expense $ 23,919 $ 18,359

Supplemental operating lease information:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 25, 2023 March 26, 2022
Fis:
Years
Fiscal Years Ended Ended
March March Mai
30, 2024 30, 2024 25, 202
Balance Balance
Sheet Information Sheet Information
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Operating lease right-of-use
assets
Operating lease right-of-use
assets
Operating Operating
lease right-of-use  lease right-of-use
assets assets $ 128,145 $ 171,003
Operating Operating
lease liabilities lease liabilities $ 141,073 $ 177,842
Cash Flow Cash Flow
Information (in Information (in
thousands) thousands)
Cash Flow Information (in
thousands)
Cash Flow Information (in
thousands)
Operating cash flows from
operating leases
Operating cash flows from
operating leases
Operating Operating
cash flows from cash flows from
operating leases = operating leases $ 14,531 $ 14,634
Non-Cash Non-Cash
Information Information
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Right-of- Right-of-
use assets use assets
obtained in obtained in
exchange for exchange for
new operating new operating
lease liabilities lease liabilities 4,381

Right-of-use assets obtained in
exchange for new operating lease
liabilities

Right-of-use assets obtained in
exchange for new operating lease

liabilities

Lease

remeasurements

Lease

remeasurements

Lease impairments

Lease

impairments and

other related
charges

Operating

Lease Information Lease Information

Operating

Operating Lease Information

Operating Lease Information

Weighted-average remaining
lease term - operating leases (in

years)

Weighted-average remaining
lease term - operating leases (in

years)
Weighted-
average
remaining lease
term - operating
leases (in years)

Weighted-
average discount
rate - operating
leases

Weighted-
average
remaining lease
term - operating
leases (in years)

Weighted-
average discount
rate - operating
leases

(28,965)
(5,579)

4

13

%

46,123

4

16

%

12

Weighted-
average
discount rate -
operating
leases

a3

4 % 4 %

As of March 25, 2023 Subsequent to March 30, 2024, we have anthe Company entered into additional operating lease, that has not yet commenced, leases, with a total
estimated lease obligations liability of approximately $24 million. This operating $5 million, with lease will commence in fiscal year 2024 with a lease term of approximately terms
ranging from 1 to 10 years.

Table of Contents

Future lease commitments under non-cancellable leases, including extension options reasonably anticipated to be exercised as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, are as
follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal

Year Year
2024

2025 2025
2026 2026
2027 2027
2028 2028

Operating
Lease

Expense Fiscal Year

$ 18,631
19,598
18,043
16,489
16,882
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2029
Thereafter Thereafter 106,651
Total Total $196,294

Less Less
imputed  imputed
interest  interest

and and
other other (55,221)
Total Total $141,073

Operating lease liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

March 25, March

2023 26, 2022

March

30,

2024 March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023
Current  Current
lease lease
liabilities liabilites $ 18,442 $ 14,680
Non- Non-
current  current
lease lease
liabilities liabilities 122,631 163,162
Total Total

operating operating
lease lease
liabilities liabilities $ 141,073 $177,842

12. Lease Impairments and Restructuring

DuringOn July 12, 2023, during the second quarter of fiscal year ended March 25, 2023 2024, the Company announced a workforce reduction of approximately 5% of its
global employees. This action was taken in response to overall market conditions and the impact of a new product previously scheduled for introduction in fall 2023 that did not
come to market as anticipated. The Company incurred severance and other related charges of $2.3 million related to this restructuring event. In the third quarter of fiscal year 2024,
a recovery of restructuring costs of $0.4 million was recorded for the settlement of certain lease obligations related to abandoned office space associated with the fiscal year 2023
restructuring event discussed below. The net costs are presented within "Restructuring" on the consolidated statements of income. As of March 30, 2024, there were no remaining
liabilities related to this restructuring event.

In fiscal year 2023, the Company was focused on improving operational efficiency and accordingly took a number of steps, including reducing our global real estate footprint,
product prioritization, and some restructuring actions.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023, as As part of this strategy, the Company decided to abandon or sublease office space at various properties worldwide to align our real
property lease arrangements with our anticipated operating needs. As a result, the Company recorded $10.6 million of lease impairments and restructuring charges, which consisted
of $6.9 million of impairment of right-of-use lease assets and leasehold improvements, and $3.7 million of other related charges in fiscal year 2023. These costs are presented
within "Restructuring" on the fourth quarter consolidated statements of fiscal 2023.

income. Restructuring-related As of March 30, 2024, restructuring-related liabilities of $3.3 1.6 million are primarily presented within the "Other accrued liabilities" on the
consolidated balance sheet. We expect the restructuring related restructuring-related liabilities to be be substantially paid out in cash during fiscal year 2024. There were no
restructuring-related liabilities as of March 26, 2022. 2025.

13. Postretirement Benefit Plans

We have Defined Contribution Plans (“the Plans”) covering all of our qualifying employees. Under the Plans, employees may elect to contribute any percentage of their annual
compensation up to the annual regulatory limits. The Company made matching employee contributions of $10.2 million $11.0 million, $9.6 million $10.2 million, and $7.9 million $9.6
million during fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, respectively.

14. Equity Compensation

The Company is currently granting equity awards from the 2018 Long Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), which was approved by stockholders in August 2018 and subsequently
amended on July 29, 2022. The Plan provides for granting of stock
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options, restricted stock awards, performance awards, phantom stock awards, and bonus stock awards, or any combination of the foregoing. To date, the Company has granted
stock options, restricted stock awards, phantom stock awards (also called restricted stock units), and performance awards (also called market stock units). Each stock option
granted reduces the total shares available for grant under the Plan by one share. Each full value award granted (including restricted stock awards, restricted stock units and market
stock units) reduces the total shares available for grant under the Plan by 1.5 shares. Stock options generally vest between one and four years, and are exercisable for a period of
ten years from the date of grant.
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Restricted stock units are generally subject to vesting from one to three years, depending upon the terms of the grant. Market stock units are subject to a vesting schedule of three
years.

The following table summarizes the activity in total shares available for grant (in thousands):

Shares
Available for
Grant
Balance, March 28, 2020 2,095
Shares added 3,223
Granted (1,491)
Forfeited 198
Balance, March 27, 2021 4,025
Shares added —
Granted (1,679)
Forfeited 271
Balance, March 26, 2022 2,617
Shares added 2,090
Granted (2,536)
Forfeited 303
Balance, March 25, 2023 2,474
Shares added —
Granted (1,813)
Forfeited 317
Balance, March 30, 2024 978

Stock-based Compensation Expense

The following table summarizes the effects of stock-based compensation on cost of goods sold, research and development, sales, general and administrative, pre-tax income,
and net income after taxes for shares granted under the Plan (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2023 2022 2021 2024 2023 2022

Costof sales Costofsales $1,270 $ 1,024 $ 900
Research and Research and

development development 57,312 44,154 37,483
Sales, general Sales, general

and and

administrative administrative 23,059 21,214 18,379

Effect on pre-  Effect on pre-
tax income tax income 81,641 66,392 56,762

Income Tax Income Tax
Benefit Benefit (15,184) (11,521) (9,558)
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Total stock- Total stock-
based based
compensation compensation
expense (net  expense (net
of taxes) of taxes) 66,457 54,871 47,204
Stock-based  Stock-based
compensation compensation
effects on basic effects on basic
earnings per  earnings per
share share $ 119 $ 096 $ 0.81
Stock-based  Stock-based
compensation compensation

effects on effects on

diluted diluted

earnings per  earnings per

share share 1.16 0.93 0.79

The total stock-based compensation expense included in the table above and which is attributable to restricted stock units and market stock units was $85.1 million, $78.0
million, $63.2 million, $53.6 million, for fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, respectively. Stock-based compensation expense is presented within operating activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, there was $155.3 million $140.6 million of compensation costs related to non-vested stock options, restricted stock units, and market
stock units granted under the Company’s equity incentive plans not yet recognized in the Company's financial statements. The unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.61 1.78 years for stock options, 1.62 1.53 years for restricted stock units, and 2.02 1.91 years for market stock units.

In addition to the income tax benefit of stock-based compensation expense shown in the table above, the Company recognized excess tax benefits of $1.4 million $0.2 million,
$3.9 million $1.4 million and $2.2 million $3.9 million in fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022 and 2021 respectively.
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Stock Options

We estimate the fair value of each stock option on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using a dividend yield of zero and the following additional
assumptions:

March
March 30, 2024 March 25, 2023 March 26, 2022 27,2021
Expected stock price volatility 43.85%
34.53% - 39.92% 35.18% - 46.50% 36.85% - 41.66% 43.99%
Risk-free interest rate 0.35%
3.99% - 4.11% 2.47% - 3.96% 0.82% - 1.62% 0.72%
Expected term (in years) 4.32 -
3.85-4.07 4.04-4.33 4.22-439 443

The Black-Scholes valuation calculation requires us to estimate key assumptions such as stock price volatility, expected term, risk-free interest rate and dividend yield. The
expected stock price volatility is based upon implied volatility from traded options on our stock in the marketplace. The expected term of options granted is derived from an analysis
of historical exercises and remaining contractual life of stock options, and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding after becoming vested.
The risk-free interest rate reflects the yield on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury securities for a period that is commensurate with the expected term assumption. Finally, we have never
paid cash dividends, do not currently intend to pay cash dividends, and thus have assumed a zero percent dividend yield.

Using the Black-Scholes option valuation model, the weighted average estimated fair values of employee stock options granted in fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022, were
$39.61, $42.37, and 2021, were $42.37, $37.31, and $33.81, respectively.

During fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, we received a net $10.1 million $3.3 million, $13.2 million $10.1 million, and $7.1 million $13.2 million, respectively, from
the exercise of 0.2 million 0.1 million, 0.3 million 0.2 million, and 0.2 million 0.3 million, respectively, stock options granted under the Company’s Stock Plan.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal year 2024, 2023, and 2022, and 2021, was $2.8 million, $11.4 million, $15.8 million, and $10.2 million $15.8
million, respectively. Intrinsic value represents the difference between the market value of the Company’s common stock at the time of exercise and the strike price of the stock
option.

Additional information with respect to stock option activity is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):
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Outstanding Options Outstanding Options

Weighted
Average

Number  Exercise Price

Balance, March 28,

2020 1,216 $ 44.01
Options granted 96 77.23
Options exercised (236) 30.26
Options forfeited a7) 56.27

Options expired — —

Weighted
Average
Number Number Exercise Price
Balance, Balance,
March 27, March 27,
2021 2021 1,059 $ 49.87
Options ~ Options
granted  granted 88 87.52
Options = Options
exercised exercised (327) 40.31
Options ~ Options
forfeited ~ forfeited — —
Options ~ Options
expired expired — —
Balance, Balance,
March 26, March 26,

2022 2022 820 $ 57.75
Options = Options
granted = granted 143 96.33

Options ~ Options

exercised exercised (225) 45.10
Options = Options

forfeited = forfeited (18) 71.14
Options ~ Options

expired expired — —
Balance, Balance,

March 25, March 25,

2023 2023 720 $  69.03
Options

granted

Options

exercised

Options

forfeited

Options

expired

Balance,

March 30,

2024
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Additional information with regards to outstanding options that are vesting, expected to vest, or exercisable as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 is as follows (in thousands,
except years and per share amounts):
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of gt ining Col | Aggregate

Options Exercise price Term (years) Intrinsic Value
Number Weighted Weighted Average
of Number of Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate
Options Options Exercise price Term (years) Intrinsic Value
Vested and Vested and
expected to expected to
vest vest 709 $ 68.63 6.67 $ 26,208
Exercisable Exercisable 452 ¢  57.01 537 $ 21,955

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, stock options outstanding that are expected to vest are presented net of estimated future option forfeitures, which are estimated as
compensation costs are recognized. Options with a fair value of $3.0 million $4.2 million, $4.6 million $3.0 million, and $4.8 million $4.6 million, became vested during fiscal years
2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, respectively.

The following table summarizes information regarding outstanding and exercisable options as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average

Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Life Average Exercise Number Average
Range of Exercise Prices Number (years) Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$20.37 - $54.65 200 430 $ 45.06 200 $ 45.06
$55.72 - $68.56 215 5.70 62.55 193 61.83
$78 - $82.14 100 8.20 78.53 39 78.27
$82.81 - $82.81 21 9.11 82.81 = —
$88 - $88 81 8.94 88.00 20 88.00
$102.37 - $102.37 103 9.87 102.37 = —
720 671 $ 69.03 452§ 57.01
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average

Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Life Average Exercise Number Average
Range of Exercise Prices Number (years) Price Exercisable Exercise Price

$31.25 - $54.65 135 355 $ 42.67 135 $ 42.67
$55.72 - $68.56 215 4.68 62.54 215 62.54
$78.00 - $82.81 127 7.44 79.36 78 78.94
$88.00 - $88.00 81 7.92 88.00 40 88.00
$93.24 - $93.24 125 9.86 93.24 = =
$102.37 - $102.37 103 8.86 102.37 26 102.37
786 664 $ 74.56 494§ 63.84

As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27, 2021 March 26, 2022, the number of options exercisable was 0.5 million, 0.6 million 0.5
million, and 0.7 million 0.6 million respectively.

Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock units (“RSUs") are valued as of the grant date and amortized over the requisite vesting period. Generally, RSUs vest 100 percent on the first to third
anniversary of the grant date depending on the vesting specifications. A summary of the activity for RSUs in fiscal year 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021 2022 is presented below
(in thousands, except per share amounts):

Weighted
Average

Shares  Fair Value

March 28, 2020 2,680 $53.74
Granted 945  71.44
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Vested (881) 52.97

Forfeited (131) 55.36
Weighted
Average

Shares Shares Fair Value

March 27, March 27,

2021 2021 2,613 $ 60.31
Granted = Granted 1,079 81.61
Vested Vested (935) 43.96

Forfeited  Forfeited (181) 70.60
March 26, March 26,

2022 2022 2,576 $ 74.45
Granted = Granted 1,574 7597
Vested ~ Vested (877) 70.02

Forfeited  Forfeited (183) 75.58

March 25, March 25,
2023 2023 3,090 g 76.42

Granted
Vested
Forfeited

March 30,
2024
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The aggregate intrinsic value of RSUs outstanding as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27, 2021 March 26, 2022 was $326.3
million $286.9 million, $225.9 million $326.3 million, and $216.9 million $225.9 million, respectively. Additional information with regards to outstanding RSUs that are expected to vest
as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, is as follows (in thousands, except year and per share amounts):

Weighted Weighted Average
Average Remaining Contractual
Shares Fair Value Term (years)
Expected to vest 2,896 $ 76.42 1.60
Weighted Weighted Average
Average Remaining Contractual
Shares Fair Value Term (years)
Expected to vest 2923 $ 75.55 1.50

RSUs outstanding that are expected to vest are presented net of estimated future forfeitures, which are estimated as compensation costs are recognized. RSUs with a fair
value of $61.4 million $64.6 million, $41.1 million $61.4 million, and $46.7 million $41.1 million became vested during fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, respectively.
The majority of RSUs that vested in 2024, 2023 2022 and 2021 2022 were net settled such that the Company withheld a portion of the shares to satisfy tax withholding
requirements. In fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021 2022 the vesting of RSUs reduced the authorized and unissued share balance by approximately 0.9 million, 0.9 million,
and 0.9 million, respectively. Total shares withheld and subsequently retired out of the Plan were approximately 0.2 million 0.3 million, 0.3 million 0.2 million, and 0.3 million and total
payments for the employees’ tax obligations to taxing authorities were $18.0 million $18.9 million, $22.0 million $18.0 million, and $18.4 million $22.0 million for fiscal years 2024,
2023, and 2022, and 2021, respectively.

Market Stock Units

Market stock units (“MSUs") granted prior to February 2024 vest based upon the relative total shareholder return (“TSR”) of the Company as compared to that of the
Philadelphia Semiconductor Index, (“while MSUs granted after February 2024 vest based on the Index”) TSR of the Company as compared to that of the Russell 3000 Index
(collectively referred to as the "Indexes". The requisite service period for these MSUs is also the vesting period, which is three years. The fair value of each MSU granted was
determined on the date of grant using the Monte Carlo simulation, which calculates the present value of the potential outcomes of future stock prices of the Company and the
Index Indexes over the requisite service period. The fair value is based on the risk-free rate of return, the volatilities volatility of the stock price of the Company and the
Index, Indexes, the correlation of the stock price of the Company with the Index, Indexes, and the dividend yield.

The fair values estimated from the Monte Carlo simulation were calculated using a dividend yield of zero and the following additional assumptions:
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Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended

March 25, March 26, March 27,

2023 2022 2021
March
30, March 30, March 25, March 26,
2024 2024 2023 2022
Expected Expected Expected stock price volatility
stock stock
price price 35.18% -
volatility volatility 46.50% 41.66 % 43.85 % 34.53% 35.18% - 46.50% 41.66 %
Risk-free Risk-free Risk-free interest rate
interest  interest 2.67% -
rate rate 3.92% 1.46 % 0.29 % 4.12% 2.67% - 3.92% 1.46 %
Expected Expected Expected term (in years)
term (in term (in
years)  years) 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
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Using the Monte Carlo simulation, the weighted average estimated fair value of the MSUs granted in fiscal year 2023 2024 was $135.87. $141.48. A summary of the activity for
MSUs in fiscal year 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021 2022 is presented below (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Weighted
Average

Shares  Fair Value

March 28, 2020 153 $ 68.71
Granted 28 83.96
Vested — —
Forfeited (48) 64.92

Weighted

Average

Shares Shares Fair Value

March 27, March 27,

2021 2021 133 $ 73.29
Granted ~Granted 28 109.18
Vested Vested (30) 50.11

Forfeited Forfeited (46) 38.70
March 26, March 26,

2022 2022 85 $ 95.75
Granted ~Granted 38 135.87
Vested  Vested (10)  87.43

Forfeited Forfeited (24) 94.80

March 25, March 25,
2023 2023 89 $113.83

Granted
Vested
Forfeited

March 30,
2024

The aggregate intrinsic value of MSUs outstanding as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27, 2021 March 26, 2022 was $9.3

million $9.4 million, $7.5 million $9.3 million, and $11.0 million $7.5 million, respectively. Additional information with regard to outstanding MSUs that are expected to vest as of March
25, 2023 March 30, 2024 is as follows (in thousands, except year and per share amounts):
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Weighted Weighted Average

Average Remaining Contractual
Shares Fair Value Term (years)
Expected to vest 82 $ 113.13 2.00
Weighted Weighted Average
Average Remaining Contractual
Shares Fair Value Term (years)
Expected to vest 94 $ 130.04 1.89

MSUs with a fair value of $0.8 million, $0.8 million, and $1.5 million became vested during fiscal year 2024, 2023, and 2022 respectively. No MSUs became vested in fiscal
year 2021.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Facilities and Equipment Under Operating Lease Agreements

We currently own our corporate headquarters and select surrounding properties. We lease certain of our other facilities and certain equipment under operating lease
agreements, some of which have renewal options. Certain of these arrangements provide for lease payment increases based upon future fair market rates. As of March 25,
2023 March 30, 2024, our principal facilities are located in Austin, Texas and Edinburgh, Scotland, United Kingdom.

Total rent expense under operating leases was approximately $24.4 million $23.6 million, $19.9 million $24.4 million, and $19.2 million $19.9 million, for fiscal years 2024, 2023,
2022, and 2021, 2022, respectively. Rental income was $0.5 million $0.2 million, $1.5 $0.5 million, and $1.4 million $1.5 million, for fiscal years 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022,
respectively.

See Note 11 - Leases for minimum future rental commitments and income under all operating leases as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024.

Capacity Reservation Agreement

On July 28, 2021, the Company entered into a Capacity Reservation and Wafer Supply Commitment Agreement (the “Capacity Reservation Agreement”) with
GLOBALFOUNDRIES Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“GlobalFoundries”) to provide the Company a wafer capacity commitment and wafer pricing for Company products for calendar years
2022-2026 (the “Commitment Period”).

The Capacity Reservation Agreement requires GlobalFoundries to provide, and the Company to purchase, a defined number of wafers on a quarterly basis for the
Commitment Period, subject to shortfall payments. In exchange for GlobalFoundries’ capacity commitment, the Company paid a $60 million non-refundable capacity reservation fee,
which is amortized over the Commitment Period. This The balance of this reservation fee is $31 million as of March 30, 2024, and is
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recorded in "Other current assets" and "Other assets" on the
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consolidated balance sheets within the short-term or long-term classification, as appropriate. In addition, the Company pre-paid GlobalFoundries $195 million for future wafer
purchases, which will be are credited back to the Company as a portion of the price of wafers purchased, beginning which began in the third Company's second fiscal quarter of
calendar year 2023. This 2024. The balance of the prepayment is $147 million at March 30, 2024, and is currently recorded in "Prepaid wafers" and "Long-term prepaid wafers" on
the consolidated balance sheets. As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the Company estimates its remaining purchase obligation to be approximately $1.2 billion $840 million of
wafers from GlobalFoundries under the Capacity Reservation Agreement.

Purchase Commitments

We rely primarily on third-party foundries for our wafer manufacturing needs. With the exception of the terms of the Capacity Reservation Agreement described above,
generally, our foundry agreements do not have volume purchase commitments and primarily provide for purchase commitments based on purchase orders. Cancellation fees or
other charges may apply and are generally dependent upon whether wafers have been started or the stage of the manufacturing process at which the notice of cancellation is given.

In addition to our wafer supply arrangements, we contract with third-party assembly vendors to package the wafer die into finished products. Assembly and test vendors
provide fixed-cost-per-unit pricing, as is common in the semiconductor industry.

The Company's purchase commitments primarily include the Company's obligations to purchase wafers and related assembly and testing services described above, in
addition to future payments related to multi-year tool commitments.

Total future unconditional purchase commitments as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 were as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2024 $ 563,177
2025
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2025

2025 2025 379,973

2026 2026 255,222

2027 2027 164,425

2028 2028 2,658

2029

Thereafter Thereafter —
Total Total $ 1,365,455

16. Legal Matters

From time to time, we are involved in legal proceedings concerning matters arising in connection with the conduct of our business activities. We regularly evaluate the status of
legal proceedings in which we are involved to assess whether a loss is probable or there is a reasonable possibility that a loss or additional loss may have been incurred and to
determine if accruals are appropriate. We further evaluate each legal proceeding to assess whether an estimate of possible loss or range of loss can be made. Based on current
knowledge, management does not believe that there are any pending matters that could potentially have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

17. Stockholders' Equity

Share Repurchase Program

In fiscal year 2024, the Company's net stock repurchases are subject to a 1 percent excise tax under the Inflation Reduction Act, included as a reduction to accumulated
earnings (deficit) in the Consolidated Condensed Statements of Stockholders' Equity. As of March 30, 2024, the Company has accrued approximately $1.3 million related to this
excise tax. Disclosure of repurchased amounts and related average costs below exclude the impact of excise taxes.

In January 2021, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional $350 million of the Company’s common stock. Since inception, approximately $348.9
million of the Company’s common stock has been repurchased The Company completed share repurchases under the 2021 share authorization in the first quarter of fiscal year
2024. In July 2022, the Company announced that the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase authorization, leaving approximately $1.1 million available for repurchase under
this authorization as of March 25, 2023. up to an additional $500 million of the Company's common stock. During the fiscal year ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the
Company repurchased 2.4 million 2.3 million shares of its common stock under the combined 2021 and 2022 authorizations for $191.4 million $186.0 million, at an average cost of
$81.16 $80.68 per share. All of these shares were repurchased in the open market and were funded from existing cash. All shares of our common stock that were repurchased were
retired as of March 25, 2023. Additionally, in July 2022, the Company announced that the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional $500 million of the
Company's common stock. No shares have been repurchased under the 2022 authorization as of March 25, 2023.

On August 16, 2022, the U.S. government enacted the Inflation Reduction Act, which, among other things, implemented a 1 percent excise tax on net stock repurchases.
Based on our analysis of this provision, we do not believe that this legislation will have a material impact on our financial statements.
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that were repurchased were retired as of March 30, 2024. As of March 30, 2024, $315.1 million remains available for repurchase under the 2022 authorization.
Preferred Stock

We have 5.0 million shares of Preferred Stock authorized. As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, we have not issued any of the authorized shares.

18. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)Loss

Our accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) loss is comprised of foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as
available-for-sale, and cumulative effects of adopting new accounting standards.

The following table summarizes the changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), loss, net of tax (in thousands):

Cumulative

Foreign Unrealized Gains Effect of Adoption of

Currency (Losses) on Securities ASU 2018-02 Total

Balance, March 27,
2021 $ 294 $ 2,838 $ (257) $ 2,875

Foreign

Currency
Foreign

Currency
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Foreign Unrealized Gains c ive Effect of A TED

Currency (Losses) on Securities ASU 2018-02 Total

Balance,
March 26,
2022

Current
period
foreign
exchange
translation

Current
period
marketable
securities
activity

Tax
effect

Tax effect

Tax effect
Balance,
March 25,
2023

Current
period
foreign
exchange
translation

Current
period
marketable
securities
activity

Tax

effect

Balance,
March 30,
2024

19. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of (in thousands):

Fiscal Years Ended

March 30, March 30, March 25, March 26,
2024 2024 2023 2022
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of (in thousands):

Fiscal Years Ended

March
30, March 30, March 25, March 26,
2024 2024 2023 2022

Current:
us.
us.
u.s.
Non-

us.

Total
current tax
provision

Deferred:
u.s.
us.
us.
Non-

us.

Total
deferred
tax
provision

Total
tax
provision
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The effective income tax rates differ from the rates computed by applying the statutory federal rate to pretax income as follows (in percentages):

Fiscal Years Ended

March
30, March 30, March 25, March 26,
2024 2024 2023 2022
u.s.
federal

statutory rate

Foreign
income taxed
at different
rates

Stock-
based
compensation
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Foreign- Foreign-

derived derived

intangible intangible

income income

deduction deduction — (0.1) (0.3)
GILTI GILTI

and Subpart and Subpart

F income F income 30.6 10.0 7.8
Foreign Foreign

tax credits tax credits (7.7) (9.4) (7.4)
Change Change

in valuation in valuation

allowance allowance 0.2 (0.2) —
Release Release

of prior year  of prior year

unrecognized unrecognized

tax benefits  tax benefits — — (1.4)
Interest Interest

related to related to

unrecognized unrecognized

tax benefits  tax benefits 0.7 0.2 0.3
u.s.

research and

development

credit
Other Other 0.5 0.5 0.6
Effective Effective

tax rate tax rate 306 115 114

The Under the legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("Tax Act") was enacted on December 22, 2017. Under the Tax Act, , research and development
expenses incurred for tax years beginning after December 31, 2021 must be capitalized and amortized over five or fifteen years for tax purposes, depending on where the research
activities are conducted. The Because the Company has elected to treat global intangible low-taxed income ("GILTI") as a period cost, so the capitalization of research and
development costs in the computation of GILTI increased resulted in an increase in the Company's provision for income taxes beginning in fiscal year 2023. years 2023 and 2024.

The Tax Act also required companies to pay a one-time transition tax on earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries that were previously tax-deferred. We elected to pay the
transition tax over the eight-year period provided in the Tax Act. As of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the remaining balance of our transition tax obligation was $25.7 million $19.3
million, which will be paid over the next three two years.

On August 16, 2022, the U.S. enacted the Inflation Reduction Act, which, among other things, implemented a 15 percent minimum tax on book income of certain large
corporations and several tax incentives to promote clean energy. Based on our current analysis of these provisions, this legislation will not have a material impact on our financial

statements.

Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023 are (in thousands):

March 25, March 26,
2023 2022
March
30, March 30, March 25,
2024 2024 2023
Deferred tax Deferred tax
assets: assets:
Accrued expenses and
allowances
Accrued expenses and
allowances
Accrued Accrued
expenses and expenses and
allowances allowances $ 7,913 $ 6,517
Net Net
operating loss operating loss
carryforwards carryforwards 1,132 1,713
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Research Research
and development = and development

tax credit tax credit

carryforwards carryforwards 13,283 15,230
Stock-based Stock-based

compensation compensation 24,842 18,952
Lease Lease

liabilities liabilities 21,602 26,653
Capitalized Capitalized

research and research and

development development 9,183 6,372

Depreciation
and amortization

Other Other 1,119 651
Total Total
deferred tax deferred tax
assets assets $ 79,074 $ 76,088
Valuation Valuation
allowance for allowance for
deferred tax deferred tax
assets assets (13,076) (13,088)
Net Net
deferred tax deferred tax
assets assets $ 65,998 $ 63,000
Deferred tax Deferred tax
liabilities: liabilities:
Depreciation Depreciation
and amortization ~ and amortization $ 3,395 $ 3,574

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization

Right of use Right of use
asset asset 19,226 25,744
Acquisition Acquisition
intangibles intangibles 7,782 32,315
Other Other 37 =
Total Total
deferred tax deferred tax
liabilities liabilities $ 30,440 $ 61,633
Total net Total net
deferred tax deferred tax
assets assets $ 35,558 $ 1,367
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the estimated tax impact of temporary differences between the tax basis and book basis of assets and liabilities. A valuation
allowance is established against a deferred tax asset when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company maintains a valuation allowance
for certain deferred tax assets primarily relating to certain state net operating loss and state tax credit carryforwards due to the likelihood that they will expire or go unutilized. Our
valuation allowance increased decreased by $0.1 million $0.6 million in fiscal year 2023.2024. Management believes that the Company’s results from future operations will generate
sufficient taxable income in the appropriate jurisdictions and of the appropriate character such that it is more likely than not that the remaining deferred tax assets will be realized.

At March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the Company had gross federal net operating loss carryforwards of $3.0 million $2.2 million, all of which related to acquired companies and
are therefore, subject to certain limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. The federal net operating loss carryforwards Code and expire in fiscal years 2024 2025
through 2031. At March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 the Company had gross foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $0.1 million that do not expire and gross state net operating
loss carryforwards of $7.5 million $5.4 million that expire in fiscal years 2024 2025 through 2030. In addition, the Company had $13.4 million $12.7 million of state business tax,
minimum tax, and research and development tax credit carryforwards. Certain of these state tax credits will expire in fiscal years 2024 2025 through 2034, and others do not expire.

At March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, unremitted earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that can be distributed without tax consequence, other than withholding taxes that may
apply based on the jurisdiction of the subsidiary, are not expected to be indefinitely reinvested. No taxes have been accrued for foreign withholding taxes on these earnings as these
amounts are not material. We have not provided additional income taxes for other outside basis differences inherent in our foreign entities, as these amounts continue to be
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indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. Determining the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability related to all other outside basis differences in these entities is not
practicable at this time.

On July 27, 2015, the U.S. Tax Court issued an opinion in Altera Corp. et al. v. Commissioner which concluded that the regulations relating to the treatment of stock-based
compensation expense in intercompany cost-sharing arrangements were invalid. In 2016 the U.S. Internal Revenue Service appealed the decision to the U.S. Court of Appeals for
the Ninth Circuit (the “Ninth Circuit”). On July 24, 2018, the Ninth Circuit issued a decision that was subsequently withdrawn and a reconstituted panel conferred on the appeal. On
June 7, 2019, the Ninth Circuit reversed the decision of the U.S. Tax Court and upheld the cost-sharing regulations. On February 10, 2020, Altera Corp. filed a Petition for a Writ of
Certiorari with the Supreme Court of the United States, which was denied by the Supreme Court on June 22, 2020. Although the issue is now resolved within the Ninth Circuit, the
Ninth Circuit's opinion is not binding in other circuits. The potential impact of this issue on the Company, which is not located within the jurisdiction of the Ninth Circuit, is unclear at
this time. We will continue to monitor developments related to this issue and the potential impact of those developments on the Company's current and prior fiscal years.

The following table summarizes the changes in the unrecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

March 25, March 26,

2023 2022
March
30, March 30, March 25,

2024 2024 2023

Beginning Beginning

balance balance $ 32,879 $32,879

Additions Additions

based on based on

tax tax

positions positions

related to related to

the the
current  current
year year — —

Reductions based

on tax positions

related to the prior

years — —

Reduction for the
lapse of applicable
statute of limitations

Reduction for the
lapse of applicable
statute of limitations

Reduction for the

lapse of applicable

statute of limitations

Ending  Ending

balance balance $ 32,879 $32,879

At March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, the Company had gross unrecognized tax benefits of $32.9 million $32.1 million, all of which would impact the effective tax rate if
recognized. During fiscal year 2024, the Company recorded a decrease of $0.8 million due to the expiration of the statute of limitations for a prior year unrecognized tax position.
The Company’s unrecognized tax benefits are classified as “Non-current income taxes” in the consolidated balance sheet. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes. During fiscal years 2023 2024 and 2022 2023 we recognized interest expense, net of tax, of approximately $1.7
million $2.4 million and $0.9 million $1.7 million, respectively. The total amount of interest accrued as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 was $6.8 million $9.2 million.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax in multiple state and foreign jurisdictions. jurisdictions including the United
Kingdom. Fiscal years 2017 through 20232019 and 2021 through 2024 remain open to examination by the major taxing jurisdictions toin which the Company is subject, although
carry forward attributes that were generated in tax years prior to fiscal year 2017 may be adjusted upon examination by the tax authorities if they have been, or will be, used in a
future period. operates.

The Company's fiscal year 2017, 2018, and 2019 federal income tax returns are under examination by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"). The IRS has proposed
adjustments that would increase U.S. taxable income related to transfer pricing matters with respect to our U.S. and U.K. affiliated companies and on May 17, 2022, the IRS issued
acompanies. The final Revenue Agent’s Report asserting asserted additional tax of approximately $170.5 million plus $168.3 million, excluding interest, and imposing imposed
penalties of approximately $63.7 million. We do not agree with the IRS's positions and we have not accrued an additional liability. We intend to vigorously dispute the proposed
adjustments. We intend to pursue are pursuing resolution through the administrative process with the IRS Independent Office of Appeals and, if necessary, through judicial
remedies. We expect it could take a number of years to reach resolution on these matters. Although the final resolution
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the final resolution of these matters is uncertain, the Company believes adequate amounts have been reserved for any adjustments to the provision for income taxes that may
ultimately result. However, if the IRS prevails in these matters, the assessed tax, interest, and penalties, if any, could have an adverse impact on our financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows in future periods. The Company is not under an income tax audit in any other major taxing jurisdiction.

20. Segment Information

We determine our operating segments in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidelines. Our Chief Executive Officer (‘CEQ”) has been identified
as the chief operating decision maker CODM under these guidelines.

The Company operates and tracks its results in one reportable segment, but reports revenue performance in two product lines: Audio and HPMS. Our CEO receives and uses
enterprise-wide financial information to assess financial performance and allocate resources, rather than detailed information at a product line level. Additionally, our resources. Our
product lines have similar characteristics and customers. They customers and share operations support functions such as sales, public relations, supply chain management, various
research and development and engineering support, in addition to the general and administrative functions of human resources, legal, finance and information technology.
Therefore, there is no complete, discrete financial information maintained for these product lines. Revenue by product line is disclosed in Note 10 - Revenues. Geographic details of
revenue and property, plant and equipment are included below.

Geographic Area

The following illustrates sales by ship to location of the customer (in thousands):

Fiscal Years Ended

Fiscal Years Ended

March 25, March 26, March 27,
2023 2022 2021
March
30, March 30, March 25, March 26,
2024 2024 2023 2022
China China $ 1,230,602 $ 1,197,812 $ 1,024,178
Hong Hong
Kong Kong 223,405 325,433 170,605
India
South
Korea
Vietnam Vietnam 93,760 72,162 10,115
South Korea 93,177 51,606 42,403
India 69,343 18,257 14,481
United United
States States 52,688 29,513 21,708
Rest of Rest of
World World 134,642 86,677 85,740
Total Total
consolidated  consolidated
sales sales $ 1,897,617 $ 1,781,460 $ 1,369,230
The following illustrates property, plant and equipment, net, by geographic locations, based on physical location (in thousands):
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended
March 25, March 26,
2023 2022
March
30, March 30, March 25,
2024 2024 2023
United United
States States $ 132,633 $ 118,847
United United
Kingdom Kingdom 20,675 28,612
Rest of Rest of
World World 9,664 9,618
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Total Total
consolidated consolidated
property, property,

plant and plant and
equipment,  equipment,
net net $ 162,972 $ 157,077

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, we have evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive
officer (CEO) and chief financial officer (CFO), the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(e)
under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the
information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and
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Exchange Commission rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our CEO and
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CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based upon the evaluation, our management, including our CEO and CFO, has concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(f). Under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our CEO and CFO, we assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on the criteria set forth in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework).

Because of its inherent limitation, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. In addition, projections of any evaluation of

effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions and that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Based on its assessment of internal control over financial reporting, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of March 25,
2023 March 30, 2024, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of our financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an attestation report on
management's assessment of our internal control over financial reporting as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, included in Item 8 of this report.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information

None. Trading Arrangements

The following table details contracts, instructions and written plans for the purchase or sale of securities, which were entered into during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2024.
None of our directors or Section 16 officers entered into or terminated a non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2024.

Aggregate Number of
Securities to be Purchased
or Sold Pursuant to the
Name and Title Action Trading Arrangement (1) Date of Adoption Expiration Date Trading Arrangement (2)

David Tupman - Director Adoption Rule 10b5-1(c) February 12, 2024 July 30, 2025 up to 15,346 to be sold

1) Except as indicated by footnote, each trading arrangement marked as "Rule 10b5-1(c)" is intended to satisfy the affirmative defense of Rule 10b5-1(c), as amended.

(2 Includes shares to be acquired upon the exercise of employee stock options.
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ITEM 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information set forth in the proxy statement to be delivered to stockholders in connection with our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on July 28, 2023 July 26,
2024 (the “Proxy Statement”) under the headings Corporate Governance, Proposals to be Voted on — Proposal No. 1 — Election of Directors, and Delinquent Section 16(a)
Reports, if applicable, is incorporated herein by reference. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct ("the Code") that applies to all of its directors, officers, and employees. A
copy of the Code can be found within the Corporate Governance section of our “Investors” page on our website at investor.cirrus.com. We intend to satisfy the disclosure
requirements of the SEC regarding amendments to, or waivers from, the Code by posting such information on the same website.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the headings Director Compensation Arrangements, Compensation Discussion and Analysis, Compensation Committee
Report, Consideration of Risk Related to Compensation Programs, Executive Compensation Tables, Pay Ratio Disclosure, Pay vs Performance Disclosure and Proposals to be
Voted on — Proposal No. 3 — Advisory Vote to Approve Named Executive Officer Compensation and Proposal No. 4 — Advisory Vote on Approval of the Frequency Third
Amendment and Restatement of Future Advisory Votes to Approve Executive Compensationthe Company's 2018 Long Term Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the headings Equity Compensation Plan Information and Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the headings Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Corporate Governance is incorporated herein by
reference.
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ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the headings Audit and Non-Audit Fees and Services and Proposal No. 2 — Ratification of Appointment of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements
= Reports of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
= Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023.

= Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27, 2021 March 26,
2022.

= Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27,
2021 March 26, 2022.

= Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27, 2021 March 26,
2022.

= Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the fiscal years ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, March 26, 2022 March 25, 2023, and March 27,
2021 March 26, 2022.

= Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
2. Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted since the required information is not present or not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the
information required is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
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3. Exhibits

The following exhibits are files as part of or incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Number
3.1

3.2
4.1
10.1+
10.2+
10.3+
10.4+
10.5+
10.6+
10.7+
10.8+
10.9+
10.10+
10.11+
10.12+
10.13+
10.14+
10.15+
10.16+
10.17
10.18

10.19

10.20+
10.21+
10.22*t
10.23+
10.24+
10.25+
10.24+
14.1
21.1
23.1
24.1
311
31.2
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32.1%*
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Description

Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant, filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on August 26, 1998. (1)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant (2)

Description of Securities (8),

Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, amended and restated as of May 26, 2015 (5),

Form of Stock Option Agreement for options granted under the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (3),

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option for options granted under the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (3).

Eorm of Stock Option Agreement for Outside Directors under the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (4),

Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long_Term Incentive Plan (7).

Eirst Amendment to the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long_Term Incentive Plan (10)

Second Amendment to the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long_Term Incentive Plan_((16) 14)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (7)

Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Units (7)

Form of Performance Award Agreement (7)
Form of Notice of Grant of Performance Award (7).

Form of Stock Option Agreement (7) Agreement

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option (7),
EForm of Notice of Grant of Stock Award (7).
Transition Agreement, dated October 30, 2020 (9)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, entered July 8, 2021, among_Lion, Cirrus Logic, Merger Sub, and the Agent (11)

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, entered July 8, 2021, among_Cirrus Logic, Inc., the Lenders party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as a Lender and Administrative Agent (11)

Eirst Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 8, 2021 with the Lending_party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent (1 (7 15),

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Executive Directors under the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long_Term Incentive Plan (12)

Stock Option Agreement for Non-Executive Directors under the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long_Term Incentive Plan (12)

Transition Services Agreement dated November 22, 2021 (13)

Cirrus Logic, Inc. Executive Severance and Change of Control Plan, as amended and restated on January 20, 2022 (14),

Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2007 Management and Key Individual Contributor Incentive Plan, as amended and restated on March 22, 2022 ((15) 13)

Cirrus Logic, Inc. Executive Severance and Change of Control Plan, as amended and restated on August 24, 2023 (16),

Corporate Code of Conduct as amended and restated on February 27, 2023 February 26, 2024

List of Subsidiaries.

Power of Attorney (see signature page).

=}

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 2002
02

(=}

Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 2.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 2002
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000095013401503479/d88190ex3-1.txt
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240623000009/bylawsasapproved03082023.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240623000009/bylawsasapproved03082023.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240620000029/exhibit41descriptionof.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240620000029/exhibit41descriptionof.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000119312515210600/d862664ddef14a.htm#toc862664_24
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000119312515210600/d862664ddef14a.htm#toc862664_24
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000095013406014434/d38265exv4w4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000095013406014434/d38265exv4w4.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000119312516602269/d127464dex104.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000119312516602269/d127464dex104.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000095013406014434/d38265exv4w5.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000095013406014434/d38265exv4w5.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000129993307004531/exhibit2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000129993307004531/exhibit2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit43cirruslogic2018lt.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit43cirruslogic2018lt.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240620000018/exhibit1-firstamendmentto2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240620000018/exhibit1-firstamendmentto2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240622000020/fy22proxy.htm#idb2e21b2a29d423db3a8c592c4ba60ae_1638
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240622000020/fy22proxy.htm#idb2e21b2a29d423db3a8c592c4ba60ae_1638
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240622000020/fy22proxy.htm#idb2e21b2a29d423db3a8c592c4ba60ae_1638
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit44cirrusrsu2018ltip.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit452018_rsuxnotice.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit452018_rsuxnotice.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit46pbrsuagmt2018ltip.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit472018_xpbrsuxnotice.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit472018_xpbrsuxnotice.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit48optionagmt2018ltip.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit48optionagmt2018ltip.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit492018_optxnotice.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit492018_optxnotice.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit410noticeofgrant_di.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240618000016/exhibit410noticeofgrant_di.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0000772406/000115752320001407/a52317956ex10_1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0000772406/000115752320001407/a52317956ex10_1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0000772406/000115752321000849/a52456798ex10_1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0000772406/000115752321000849/a52456798ex10_2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240623000011/firstamendmenttosecondamen.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240623000011/firstamendmenttosecondamen.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240623000011/firstamendmenttosecondamen.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240621000030/ex103restrictedstockunitag.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240621000030/ex104stockoptionagreementf.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240621000030/ex105gfcapacityagreement.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0000772406/000115752321001445/a52537870ex10_1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240622000003/cirruslogicincexecutivesev.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240622000008/incentiveplanamendmentsmar.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240622000008/incentiveplanamendmentsmar.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240622000008/incentiveplanamendmentsmar.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240623000055/executiveseveranceandcha.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240623000055/executiveseveranceandcha.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/772406/000077240623000055/executiveseveranceandcha.htm

32.2%* Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 2002

97 Cirrus Logic Inc. Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Incentive Compensation Policy, adopted August 24, 2023

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the
Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

* Certain confidential information contained in this exhibit has been omitted by means of redacting a portion of the text and marking it with three asterisks indicated by [***],
pursuant to Regulation S-K Item 601(b)(10)(iv). Certain confidential information has been excluded from the exhibit because it (i) is not material and (ii) is the type of information that
the registrant treats as private or confidential. An unredacted copy of the exhibit will be provided on a supplemental basis to the SEC upon request.

T Certain schedules or appendices to this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Regulation S-K Item 601(a)(5). A copy of any omitted schedule will be furnished to the SEC upon
request.

** The certifications attached as Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 accompanying this Annual Report on Form 10-K, are deemed furnished and not filed with the SEC and are not to be
incorporated by reference into any filing of the Registrant under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, whether made before or after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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(1) Incorporated by reference from Registrant’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, filed with the SEC on June 22, 2001 (Registration No.
000-17795).

(2) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 8, 2023 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(3) Incorporated by reference from Registration’s Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on August 1, 2006 (Registration No. 333-136219).
(4) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 1, 2007 (Registration No. 000-17795).

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on June 2, 2015 (Registration No. 000-
17795).

(6) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on May 25, 2016 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(7) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on August 3, 2018 (Registration No. 333-226578).
(8) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 3, 2020 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(9) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 2, 2020 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on June 3, 2020 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(11) Incorporated by reference from Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 8, 2021 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(12) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on July 28, 2021 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(13) Incorporated by reference from Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 23, 2021 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(14) Incorporated by reference from Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 25, 2022 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(15) Incorporated by reference from Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 25, 2022 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(16) (14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on June 2, 2022 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(17) (15) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 22, 2023 (Registration No. 000-17795).
(16) Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November 2, 2023 (Registration No. 000-17795).

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned; thereunto duly authorized.
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CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.

By: /sl VENK NATHAMUNI

Venk Nathamuni
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer
May 19, 2023 24, 2024

Table of Contents

KNOW BY THESE PRESENT, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Venk Nathamuni, his attorney-in-fact, with the power of substitution,
for him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with

the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of the attorney-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the following persons on behalf of the Registrant, in the capacities and on the dates indicated have
signed this report below:
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Signature

/s/ JOHN M. FORSYTH

John M. Forsyth

/s/ VENK NATHAMUNI

Venk Nathamuni

/s/ JOHN C. CARTER ULF HABERMANN

John C. Carter UIf Habermann

/s/ ALEXANDER M. DAVERN

Alexander M. Davern

/s/ TIMOTHY R. DEHNE

Timothy R. Dehne

/s/ DEIRDRE R. HANFORD

Deirdre R. Hanford

/s/ RAGHIB HUSSAIN

Raghib Hussain

/s/ DUY-LOAN LE

Duy-Loan Le

/sI CATHERINE P. LEGO

Catherine P. Lego

/s/ DAVID J. TUPMAN

David J. Tupman

=
=
©

President and Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

Treasurer, VP Finance and Principal Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

7374

CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.

2018 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT
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This Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the Date of Grant set forth in the related Notice of
Grant of Restricted Stock Units (“Notice of Grant”) by and between Cirrus Logic, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and you as the
Participant named in the Notice of Grant (“Participant”):

WHEREAS, the Company, in order to induce you to materially contribute to the success of the Company, agrees to grant you this Award of
Restricted Stock Units;

WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long Term Incentive Plan, as it may be amended from time to time (the “Plan”),
under which the Company is authorized to grant Awards of Restricted Stock Units to Eligible Persons providing services to the Company and its
Affiliates (“Service”)

WHEREAS, a copy of the Plan has been furnished to you and shall be deemed a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth herein and terms
capitalized but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Plan;

WHEREAS, you desire to accept the Award of Restricted Stock Units created pursuant to this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and for other valuable consideration hereinafter set forth, the
parties agree as follows:

1. The Grant. Subject to the conditions set forth below, the Company hereby grants to you, effective as of the Date of Grant set forth in the
Notice of Grant and in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Plan, as a matter of separate inducement but not in lieu of
any salary or other compensation for your services for the Company or an Affiliate, an award (the “Award”) consisting of an aggregate number of
Restricted Stock Units, whereby each Restricted Stock Unit represents the right to receive one share of Common Stock of the Company following the
applicable vesting date, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Notice of Grant and the Plan.

2. No Shareholder Rights. The Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant to this Agreement do not and shall not entitle you to any rights of
a holder of Common Stock (including, without limitation, voting rights or rights to cash dividends) prior to the date shares of Common Stock are issued
to you in settlement of the Award. Your rights with respect to the Restricted Stock Units shall remain forfeitable at all times prior to the date on which
rights become vested and the restrictions with respect to the Restricted Stock Units lapse in accordance with Section 5.

3t Forfeiture Restrictions. The Restricted Stock Units are restricted in that they may not be sold, transferred or otherwise alienated or
hypothecated until the Restricted Stock Units become vested, the restrictions are removed or expire as contemplated in this Agreement, and Common
Stock is issued to you as described in Section 4 of this Agreement. The Restricted Stock Units are also restricted in the sense that, as provided in
Section 6, they may be forfeited for no consideration to the Company in the event your Service with the Company or an Affiliate terminates before the
Restricted Stock Units become vested. The prohibition against transfer and the obligation to forfeit the Restricted Stock Units upon termination of
Service as provided in the preceding sentences are herein referred to as the “Forfeiture Restrictions.”

4. Issuance of Common Stock. No shares of Common Stock shall be issued to you prior to the date on which the Restricted Stock Units
vest and the Forfeiture Restrictions with respect to the Restricted Stock Units lapse, in accordance with Section 5. As soon as reasonably practicable
after the Restricted Stock Units vest pursuant to Section 5, the Company shall cause to be issued to you (including to a brokerage account in your
name) Common Stock in settlement of such vested Restricted Stock Units upon receipt by the Company of any required tax withholding, provided that
such issuance of Common Stock shall in any event be made no later than March 15 of the year following the calendar year that the Restricted Stock
Units vest. The Company shall evidence the Common Stock to be issued in settlement of such vested Restricted Stock Units in the manner it deems
appropriate. The value of any fractional share Restricted Stock Units shall be rounded down at the time Common Stock is issued to you in connection
with the Restricted Stock Units. No fractional shares of Common Stock, nor the cash value of any fractional shares of Common Stock, will be issuable
or payable to you pursuant to this Agreement. The value of such shares of Common Stock shall not bear any interest owing to the passage of time.
Neither this Section 4 nor any action taken pursuant to or in accordance with this Section 4 shall be construed to create a trust or a funded or secured
obligation of any kind.
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5. Vesting;_Expiration of Forfeiture Restrictions. The Forfeiture Restrictions on the Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant to the
Award will expire as set forth in the Notice of Grant and shares of Common Stock that are non-forfeitable and transferable, except to the extent
provided in Section 9 of this Agreement, will be issued to you in settlement of your vested Restricted Stock Units as set forth in Section 4, provided
that you remain in the continuous Service of the Company or its Affiliates until the applicable dates or events set forth in the Notice of Grant.
Restricted Stock Units which remain subject to the Forfeiture Restrictions will be considered “Nonvested Restricted Stock Units.”

6. Effect of Termination of Service. If your Service with the Company or any Affiliate terminates for any reason, then those Restricted
Stock Units for which the Forfeiture Restrictions have not lapsed as of the date of or in connection with such termination shall become null and void
and those Nonvested Restricted Stock Units shall be forfeited for no consideration to the Company.

7. Leave of Absence. With respect to the Award, the Company may, in its sole discretion, determine that if you are on leave of absence for
any reason, you will be considered to still be in the Service of the Company or an Affiliate, provided that rights to the Restricted Stock

Units during a leave of absence will be limited to the extent to which those rights were earned or vested when the leave of absence began.

8. Withholding Taxes. The Company may require you to pay to the Company (or the Company’s Affiliate if you are an employee of an
Affiliate of the Company), an amount the Company deems necessary to satisfy its or its Affiliate’s current or future obligation to withhold federal, state
or local income or other taxes that you incur as a result of the Award. To the extent that the receipt of the Restricted Stock Units or the lapse of any
Forfeiture Restrictions results in compensation income or wages to you for federal, state, local, or other tax purposes, the Company is authorized to
withhold any tax required to be withheld by reason of such resulting compensation income or wages from any cash or stock remuneration (including
withholding any Common Stock distributable to you under this Agreement, based on the Fair Market Value on the date the withholding is to be
determined, but not in excess of the greatest statutory withholding requirements) then or thereafter payable to you and/or you otherwise agree to
deliver such amount of money as the Company may require to meet its or its Affiliate’s tax withholding obligations under applicable laws or regulations.
Unless the applicable tax withholding obligations of the Company and its Affiliates are satisfied, the Company shall have no obligation to issue
Common Stock pursuant to this Agreement. You acknowledge and agree that the Company is making no representation or warranty as to the tax
consequences to you as a result of the receipt of the Restricted Stock Units, the lapse of any Forfeiture Restrictions, or the forfeiture of any Restricted
Stock Units pursuant to the Forfeiture Restrictions.

9. Compliance with Law. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, any issuance of Common Stock hereunder will
be subject to compliance with all applicable requirements of federal, state, and foreign law with respect to such securities and with the requirements of
any stock exchange or market system upon which the Common Stock may then be listed. No Common Stock will be issued hereunder if such
issuance would constitute a violation of any applicable federal, state, or foreign securities laws or other law or regulations or the requirements of any
stock exchange or market system upon which the Common Stock may then be listed. In addition, Common Stock will not be issued hereunder unless
(a) a registration statement under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act’), is at the time of issuance in effect with respect to the
shares issued or (b) in the opinion of legal counsel to the Company, the shares issued may be issued in accordance with the terms of an applicable
exemption from the registration requirements of the Act. The inability of the Company to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction the
authority, if any, deemed by the Company'’s legal counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any shares subject to the Award will
relieve the Company of any liability in respect of the failure to issue such shares as to which such requisite authority has not been obtained. As a
condition to any issuance hereunder, the Company may require you to satisfy any qualifications that may be necessary or appropriate to evidence
compliance with any applicable law or regulation and to make any representation or warranty with respect to such compliance as may be requested by
the Company.

You agree that the shares of Common Stock that you may acquire in settlement of any vested Restricted Stock Units will not be sold or
otherwise disposed of in any manner that would
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constitute a violation of any applicable securities laws, whether federal, state, or foreign or any other applicable laws.

10. Legends. You agree that the certificates representing shares of Common Stock issued with respect to the Award may bear such legend
or legends as the Committee deems appropriate to assure compliance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and applicable securities laws.

11. Right to Terminate Services. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall confer upon you the right to continue in the employ of or
performing services for the Company or any Affiliate, or interfere in any way with the rights of the Company or any Affiliate to terminate your
employment or service relationship at any time.

12. Furnish Information. You agree to furnish to the Company all information requested by the Company to enable it to comply with any
reporting or other requirement imposed upon the Company by or under any applicable statute or regulation. You further agree to notify the Company
upon any change in the residence address indicated on the Notice of Grant.

13. Dispute Resolution. The provisions of this Section shall be the exclusive means of resolving disputes arising out of or relating to the
Award, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement. The Company, you, and your assignees (the “parties”) shall attempt in good faith to resolve
any disputes arising out of or relating to the Award, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement by negotiation between individuals who have
authority to settle the controversy. Negotiations shall be commenced by either party by notice of a written statement of the party’s position and the
name and title of the individual who will represent the party. Within thirty (30) days of the written notification, the parties shall meet at a mutually
acceptable time and place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to resolve the dispute.

Any controversy, dispute or claim that has not been settled by negotiation within thirty (30) days of the written notification as set forth above
shall be finally settled by arbitration under the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) by three arbitrators. In
such event, the claimant will deliver a written notice to the respondent(s) and the AAA initiating arbitration and naming an arbitrator. Within twenty (20)
days after receipt of such arbitration notice, the respondent(s) shall name an arbitrator. Within twenty (20) days from the naming of the two arbitrators,
the two arbitrators shall name a third arbitrator. If there are multiple claimants and/or multiple respondents, all claimants and/or all respondents shall
attempt to agree upon naming their respective arbitrator. If the claimants or respondents, as the case may be, fail to name their respective arbitrator,
or if the two arbitrators fail to name a third arbitrator, or if within twenty (20) days after any arbitrator shall resign or otherwise cease to serve as such a
replacement arbitrator is not named by the party that originally named such arbitrator, such arbitrator as to which agreement cannot be reached or as
to which a timely appointment is not made shall be named by the AAA. The place of arbitration shall be Austin, Texas. The award of the arbitrators
may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. The costs of the arbitration shall be shared by the disputing parties equally. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary herein,

the arbitrators shall not award nor shall the Company have any liability for any consequential, punitive, special, incidental, indirect or similar damages.

14. No Advice Regarding Award. The Company is not providing any tax, legal, or financial advice with respect to the Award of Restricted
Stock Units, your participation in the Plan, or the acquisition or sale of any Common Stock attributable to the Award. You are hereby advised to consult
with your own personal tax, legal, and financial advisors regarding participation in the Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.

15. No Liability for Good Faith Determinations. The Company and the members of the Committee and the Board shall not be liable for
any act, omission or determination taken or made in good faith with respect to this Agreement or the Restricted Stock Units granted hereunder.

16. Execution of Receipts and Releases. Any payment of cash or any issuance or transfer of shares of Common Stock or other property
to you, or to your legal representative, heir, legatee or distributee, in accordance with the provisions hereof, shall, to the extent thereof, be in full
satisfaction of all claims of such persons hereunder. The Company may require you or your legal representative, heir, legatee or distributee, as a
condition precedent to such payment or issuance, to execute a release and receipt therefor in such form as it shall determine.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 86/141
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

17. No Guarantee of Interests. The Board and the Company do not guarantee the Common Stock of the Company from loss or
depreciation.

18. Company Records. Records of the Company or its Affiliates regarding your Service and other matters shall be conclusive for all
purposes hereunder, unless determined by the Company to be incorrect.

19. Notices. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effectively given upon personal
delivery or upon deposit in the United States mail by certified mail (if the parties are in the United States) or upon deposit for delivery by an
internationally recognized express mail courier service (for international delivery of notice), with postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the other
party at its address as such party may designate in writing from time to time to the other party.

20. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon you, your legal representatives, heirs, assigns, legatees and distributees, and upon
the Company, its successors and assigns.

21.  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the
remaining provisions hereof, but such provision shall be fully severable and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid
provision had never been included herein.

22. Headings. The titles and headings of Sections are included for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered in
construction of the provisions hereof.

23.  Governing Law. All questions arising with respect to the provisions of this Agreement shall be determined by application of the laws of
the State of Delaware without giving any effect to any conflict of law provisions thereof, except to the extent Delaware law is preempted by federal
laws of the United States. The obligation of the Company to issue and deliver Common Stock hereunder is subject to applicable laws and to the
approval of any governmental authority required in connection with the authorization, issuance, sale, or delivery of such Common Stock.

24.  Electronic Delivery and Participation. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related to the Award
granted under the Plan or future awards that may be granted under the Plan by electronic means or to request your consent to participate in the Plan
by electronic means. You hereby consent to receive such documents by electronic delivery and agree to participate in the Plan through an on-line or
electronic system established and maintained by the Company or a third party designated by the Company.

25. Word Usage. Words used in the masculine shall apply to the feminine where applicable, and wherever the context of this Agreement
dictates, the plural shall be read as the singular and the singular as the plural.

26. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by the Board or by the Committee at any time (a) if the Board or the Committee
determines, in its sole discretion, that amendment is necessary or advisable in light of any addition to or change in any United States federal, state,
local or foreign tax or securities law or other law or regulation (including any change in the interpretation or application of any law or regulation by an
appropriate governmental authority), which change occurs after the Date of Grant and by its terms applies to the Award; or (b) other than in the
circumstances described in clause (a) or provided in the Plan, with your consent.

27.  Section 409A. The Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant to the Award are intended to qualify for the “short-term deferral” exemption
from Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States and shall be construed accordingly. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence,
neither the Committee nor the Company or its Affiliates shall be liable for any failure of the Award or any portion thereof to satisfy the requirements for
exemption from, or compliance with, Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.

28. Unfunded Arrangement. Neither the Notice of Grant, this Agreement, nor the Plan shall give you any security or other interest in any
assets of the Company or an Affiliate; rather, your right to the Award is that of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company.

29. Non-U.S. Participants and U.S. Participants Employed by a U.K. Affiliate. To the extent that you are a citizen or resident of a country
other than the United States, this Agreement is deemed to include and, as applicable, be revised and supplemented by the provisions of Exhibit A that
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apply to Participants outside the United States generally and to Participants located in the jurisdictions set forth therein. If you are a U.S citizen or U.S.
resident but are employed by a U.K. Affiliate, this Agreement is deemed to include and, as applicable, be revised and supplemented by the provisions
of Section B.1 of Exhibit A.

30. The Plan. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, conditions, limitations and restrictions contained in the Plan. In the event of any
conflict or inconsistency between the terms hereof and the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall be controlling.

[Signature Page Follows]

By your signature below, or by your electronic acceptance of this Agreement, you agree to all the terms and conditions of the Award, the Notice
of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement. You acknowledge that you have had the opportunity to review the Plan and this Agreement in their entirety
and to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement. You agree to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or
interpretations of the Committee upon any questions relating to the Award, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, or this Agreement.

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

Signature of Participant

Printed Name of Participant

Date:
EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR
PARTICIPANTS OUTSIDE THE U.S. AND U.S. PARTICIPANTS EMPLOYED BY A U.K. AFFILIATE
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Parts A and B of this Exhibit A, which are part of the Cirrus Logic, Inc. Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (the “Agreement’), include special
terms and conditions that govern the Restricted Stock Units granted to Participants based outside of the United States and in the particular
jurisdictions mentioned herein. Further, Section B.1 of this Exhibit A includes special terms and conditions that apply to you if you are a U.S citizen or
U.S. resident but are employed by a U.K. Affiliate. Unless otherwise defined in this Exhibit A, any capitalized terms used but not defined in this Exhibit
A shall have the same meanings given to them in the Agreement and/or the Plan, as applicable.

NOTIFICATIONS

This Exhibit A also includes information regarding securities, exchange control, tax and certain other issues of which the Participant should be
aware with respect to his or her participation in the Plan. The information is based on the securities, exchange control, tax and other laws in effect in
the respective jurisdictions as of July 2018. Such laws are complex and subject to change. As a result, the Company strongly recommends that the
Participant not rely on the information in this Exhibit A as the only source of information relating to the consequences of his or her participation in the
Plan because such information may be outdated at the time the Restricted Stock Units vest or the Participant sells any shares of Common Stock
issued pursuant to the Restricted Stock Units.

In addition, the information contained in this Exhibit A is general in nature and may not apply to the Participant’s particular situation. The
Company is not in a position to assure the Participant of any particular result. Accordingly, the Participant should seek appropriate professional advice
as to how the relevant lawsapply to the Participant’s situation.

If the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which he or she is currently residing and/or working (or is considered
as such for local law purposes), or if the Participant transfers employment and/or residency after the Date of Grant, the terms and conditions and
information contained herein may not be applicable to the Participant in the same manner. The Company shall, in its sole discretion, determine to what
extent the terms and conditions contained herein shall apply to the Participant in such a case.

A. TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL NON-U.S. JURISDICTIONS

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Responsibility for Taxes. The following provisions replace Section 8 of the Agreement:

The Participant acknowledges that, regardless of any action taken by the Company or, if different, the Participant's employer (the “Employer”), the
ultimate liability for all incometax, social insurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to the
Participant’s participation in the Plan and legally applicable to the Participant as a result of participation in the Plan (“Tax-Related Items”) is and
remains the Participant’s responsibility and may exceed the amount (if any) withheld by the Company or the Employer. The Participant further
acknowledges that the Company and the Employer (a) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related Items
and (b) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the terms of the grant or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units to reduce or
eliminate the Participant’s liability for Tax-Related Iltems or achieve any particular tax result. Further, if the Participant is subject to Tax-Related ltems in
more than one jurisdiction, the Participant acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required
to withhold or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.

Prior to any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant shall pay or make arrangements satisfactory to the
Company to enable the Company and the Employer to fulfill any withholding obligation for Tax-Related Items. In this regard, the Participant authorizes
the Company and/or the Employer, or their respective agents, to withhold all applicable Tax-Related Items by one or a combination of the following
methods:

i. withholding from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation otherwise payable to the Participant by the Company and/or the
Employer; and/or
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ii. requiring the Participant to tender a payment in cash (or the cash equivalent) in an amount equal to the Tax-Related Items to the Company
or its designee; and/or

withholding from the proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units either
through a voluntary sale or through a mandatory sale arranged by the Company (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this authorization
without further consent); and/or

iv. withholding in shares of Common Stock to be issued upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units.

The Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering applicable minimum statutory withholding rates or other applicable
withholding rates, including up to the maximum applicable rate in the Participant’s jurisdiction in which case the Participant may

receive a refund of any over-withheld amount in cash, without interest, and will not be entitled to the equivalment amount in shares. If the obligation for
Tax-Related Items is satisfied by withholding in shares, for tax purposes, the Participant will be deemed to have been issued the full number of shares
subject to the vested Restricted Stock Units, notwithstanding that a number of shares that are held back solely for the purpose of paying the Tax-
Related Items.

The Company may refuse to issue shares of Common Stock in settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or may refuse to deliver the proceeds of the
sale of such shares if the Participant fails to comply with his or her obligations in connection with the Tax-Related Items as described in this Section.

2. Nature of Grant. In accepting the grant of the Restricted Stock Units, the Participant acknowledges, understands and agrees that:

(@) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, is discretionary in nature and may be modified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, unless otherwise provided in the Plan and the Agreement;

(b) the grant of the Restricted Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive
future Awards, or benefits in lieu of Awards, even if Awards have been granted in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to any such future Awards, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;
(d) the Participant’s participation in the Plan does not provide the Participant with benefits outside of the Plan;
(e) the Participant’s participation in the Plan is voluntary;

® the Restricted Stock Units and the shares of Common Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Units, and the income from and value
of same, are an extraordinary item of compensation which is outside the scope of the Participant’s employment contract, if any;

(9) the Restricted Stock Units and the shares of Common Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Units, and the income from and value
of same, are not part of normal or expected compensation or salary for any purposes, including, but not limited to, calculating any severance,
resignation, redundancy, holiday pay, dismissal, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or
similar payments, and in no event should be considered as compensation for, or relating in any way to, past services for the Company or any Affiliate;

(h) the Restricted Stock Units the shares of Common Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Units and the income from and value of
same, are not intended to replace any pension rights or be granted as compensation or as a bonus for past service;
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0] unless otherwise agreed with the Company, the Restricted Stock Units and the shares of Common Stock subject to the Restricted
Stock Units, and the income from and value of same, are not granted as consideration for, or in connection with, any service the Participant may
provide as a director of an Affiliate;

) the future value of the shares of Common Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Units is unknown, indeterminable and cannot be
predicted with certainty;

(k) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Restricted Stock Units resulting from the
Participant’s termination of employment by the Company (for any reason whatsoever and whether or not in breach of employment laws in the
jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’'s employment agreement, if any).

0] for purposes of the Restricted Stock Units, the Participant’s status as an Eligible Person will be considered terminated as of the
date the Participant is no longer actively providing services to the Company or one of its Affiliates (regardless of the reason for such termination and
whether or not later to be found invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the
Participant’s employment agreement, if any) and, unless expressly provided in the Agreement or determined by the Company, the Participant’s right to
vest in the Restricted Stock Units under the Plan, if any, will terminate as of such date and will not be extended by any notice period (e.g., the
Participant’s period of service would not include any contractual notice period or any period of “garden leave” or similar period mandated under
employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant's employment agreement, if any); the Committee
shall have the exclusive discretion to determine when the Participant is no longer actively providing services for purposes of the Restricted Stock
Units; and

(m) neither the Company, the Employer nor any Affiliate shall be liable for any exchange rate fluctuation between the Participant’s
local currency and the United States Dollar that may affect the value of the Restricted Stock Units or of any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to
the vesting and settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or the subsequent sale of any shares of Stock acquired upon settlement.

3. Data Privacy. Certain personal information about the Participant, including, but not limited to, the Participant's name, home address and
telephone number,_date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title, any shares of stock or
directorships held in the Company, details of all Restricted Stock Units or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled,_settled,
exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding_in the Participant's favor (“Personal Data”) will be collected, processed and transferred by and among, as
applicable, the Employer and the Company and its other Affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering_and managing_participation
in the Plan, in furtherance of their legitimate business interests, and where necessary to comply with their legal obligations. The Participant hereby
explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the Participant's personal data as

described in this document and any other Restricted Stock Unit materials by and among, as applicable, the Employer and the Company and its other
Affiliates for the above purposes.

Personal Data will also be transferred to certain independent service providers engaged in connection with the implementation, administration and
management of the Plan, including Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC (trading as E*Trade), and Computershare Limited. Further information on the
Company's basis for the processing, transfer and safeguarding of Personal Data, is detailed in the Company’s Stock Plan Privacy Notice. The
Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Personal Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of
implementing, administering and managing participation in the Plan. The Stock Plan Privacy Notice, which Participants should read prior to accepting
any Award, is available to Participants via their E*Trade accounts, or can otherwise be viewed, together with applicable Employer Data Protection
Policies and employee Privacy Notices, on the Company intranet. Copies of all such policies or notices can also be obtained, on request, from the
Company’s Legal Department.
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The Participant understands that he or she is providing the consents herein on a purely voluntary basis. If the Participant does not consent, or later
seeks to revoke consent, the Participant's employment status or service with the Employer will not be affected; the only consequence of refusing or
withdrawing consent is that the Company would not be able to grant Restricted Stock Units or other equity awards to the Participant or administer or
maintain such awards. Therefore, the Participant understands that withdrawal of consent may affect the Participant's ability to participate in the Plan or
to realize benefits from the Restricted Stock Units.

Finally, if applicable and upon request of the Company, the Participant agrees to provide any other executed acknowledgement or data privacy
consent form (or any other acknowledgements, agreements or consents) that the Company and/or the Employer may deem necessary to obtain under
the data privacy laws in the Participant’s country, either now or in the future. The Participant understands that he or she will not be able to participate
in the Plan if he or she fails to execute any such acknowledgement, agreement or consent requested by the Company and/or the Employer.

4, Dispute Resolution. The following provisions replace Section 13 of the Agreement:

The provisions of this Section shall be the exclusive means of resolving disputes arising out of or relating to the Restricted Stock Units, the Notice of
Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement. The Company, the Participant, and his or her assignees (the “parties”) shall attempt in good faith to resolve any
disputes arising out of or relating to the Restricted Stock Units, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement by negotiation between individuals
who have authority to settle the controversy. Negotiations shall be commenced by either party by notice of a written statement of the party’s position
and the name and title of the individual who will represent the party. Within thirty (30) days of the written notification, the parties shall meet at a
mutually acceptable time and place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to resolve the dispute.

Any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be resolved by binding and non-appealable arbitration under the rules of the International Centre for
Dispute Resolution (“/ICDR”). The arbitration shall be conducted by a single arbitrator chosen by the parties or, if the parties cannot agree upon a
single arbitrator within thirty (30) days, then by a single arbitrator appointed by the ICDR. The arbitration shall take place Austin, Texas, U.S.A., and
shall be conducted in the English language. The arbitration costs shall be divided such that each party shall pay its own attorney’s fees and any other
costs shall be borne equally by the parties.

5. Language. If the Participant has received the Agreement or any other document related to the Plan translated into a language other
than English and if the translated version is different than the English version, the English version will control.

6. Imposition of Other Requirements.The Company reserves the right to impose other requirements on the Participant’s participation in
the Plan, on the Restricted Stock Units and on any shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan, to the extent the Company determines it is
necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require the Participant to sign any additional agreements or undertakings that may
be necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

7. Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Requirements. The Participant acknowledges that there may be certain foreign asset and/or
account reporting requirements which may affect the Participant’s ability to acquire or hold shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan or cash
received from participating in the Plan (including from any dividends paid on shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) in a brokerage or
bank account outside the Participant’s country. The Participant may be required to report such accounts, assets or transactions to the tax or other
authorities in the Participant's country. The Participant also may be required to repatriate sale proceeds or other funds received as a result of
participating in the Plan to the Participant’s country through a designated bank or broker within a certain time after receipt. The Participant
acknowledges that it is his or her responsibility to be compliant with such regulations, and the Participant is advised to speak to his or her personal
advisor on this matter.

8. Insider Trading_Restrictions/Market Abuse Laws.The Participant may be subject to insider trading restrictions and/or market abuse
laws in applicable jurisdictions including, but not limited to, the United States and Participant's country, which may affect his or her ability to acquire or
sell shares of Common Stock or rights to shares of Common Stock under the Plan during such times as the Participant is considered to have “inside
information” regarding the Company (as defined by the laws in the applicable jurisdictions). Any restrictions under these laws or regulations are
separate from and in addition to any restrictions that may be imposed under any applicable Company insider trading policy. The Participant
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acknowledges that it is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with any applicable restrictions, and that the Participant should speak to his or her
personal advisor on this matter.

B. JURISDICTION-SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

1. EUROPEAN UNION /| EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA /| UNITED KINGDOM AND U.S. BASED EMPLOYEES OF A U.K. AFFILIATE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Data Privacy. The following provisions replace the Data Privacy section (A.3) of this Exhibit A:

Certain personal information about the Participant, including, but not limited to, the Participant's name, home address and telephone number, date of
birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title, any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company,
details of all Restricted Stock Units or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, settled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding
in the Participant's favor (“Personal Data”) will be collected, processed and transferred by and among, as applicable, the Employer and the Company
and its other Affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing participation in the Plan, in furtherance of their
legitimate business interests, and where necessary to comply with their legal obligations. Personal Data will also be transferred to certain independent
service providers engaged in connection with the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, including Morgan Stanley Smith Barney
LLC (trading as “E*Trade”) , and Computershare Limited. Further information on the Company's basis for the processing, transfer and safeguarding of
Personal Data, is detailed in the Company’s Stock Plan Privacy Notice which Participants should read prior to accepting any Award. This Stock Plan
Privacy Notice is available to Participants via their E*Trade accounts, or can otherwise be viewed, together with applicable Employer Data Protection
Policies and employee Privacy Notices, on the Company intranet. Copies of all such policies or notices can also be obtained, on request, from the
Company’s Legal Department.

Fkk
2. AUSTRALIA
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Nature of Award and Plan. The offer of Restricted Stock Units under the Plan is intended to comply with the provisions of the Australian Corporations
Act 2001, the Australian Securities & Investment Commission ("ASIC") Regulatory Guide 49 and ASIC Class Order 14/1000. Additional details are set
forth in the Offer Document for the offer of the Restricted Stock Units to Australian resident Participants, which is being provided with this Agreement.

The Plan is a plan to which Subdivision 83A-C of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (Cth)applies (subject to the conditions in that Act).

3. CHINA
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following terms apply only to nationals of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) residing in the PRC, unless otherwise determined by the
Company:

Issuance of Common Stock.

The following provision replaces Section 4 of the Agreement:

No shares of Common Stock or any cash amount shall be issued to the Participant prior to the date on which the Restricted Stock Units vest and the
Forfeiture Restrictions with respect to the Restricted Stock Units lapse, in accordance with Section 5. As soon as reasonably practicable after the
Restricted Stock Units vest pursuant to Section 5, the Company shall cause to be issued to the Participant through local payroll a cash amount
equivalent to the market value of the shares of Common Stock subject to the vested Restricted Stock Units, less any Tax-Related Items required to be
withheld. No shares of Common Stock will be issued to the Participant and any reference in the Agreement to shares of Common Stock being issued
to the Participant shall be interpreted accordingly. The value of any Restricted Stock Units that would result in a fractional share (if shares were to be
issued in settlement of the Restricted Stock Units) shall be rounded down to the value of a whole share at the time the cash payment is made to the
Participant. No cash value of any fractional shares of Common Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Units will be payable to the Participant pursuant
to this Agreement. Neither this Section 4 nor any action taken pursuant to or in accordance with this Section 4 shall be construed to create a trust or a
funded or secured obligation of any kind. The Participant also agrees to cooperate with the Company with respect to any exchange control matters.

If the Company determines at any time that shares of Common Stock may be issued in settlement of vested Restricted Stock Units, Section 4 of the
Agreement shall instead be supplemented by the following provision:

The Participant understands and agrees that the Company may require that any shares of Common Stock acquired upon the vesting of the Restricted
Stock Units be immediately sold and the proceeds of the sale of shares be delivered to the Participant according to such procedures as the Company
may establish from time to time, including through local payroll. If the Company does not exercise its right to require the immediate sale of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Units, as described in the preceding sentence, the Participant understands and agrees
that (i) the Participant must maintain shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan in an account maintained by the Company's designated broker
and (ii) any shares acquired by the Participant under the Plan must be sold no later than ninety (90) days after the Participant’s termination of
employment, or within any other such time frame as the Company determines to be necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons. The
Participant understands that any shares of Common Stock acquired by the Participant under the

Plan that have not been sold within the required deadline will be automatically sold by the Company's designated broker at the Company’s direction,
pursuant to this authorization by the Participant. The Participant agrees that the Company is authorized to instruct the designated broker to assist with
the mandatory sale of such shares (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this authorization), and the Participant expressly authorizes the designated
broker to complete the sale of such shares. The Participant also agrees to sign any agreements, forms and/or consents that may be reasonably
requested by the Company (or the designated broker) to effectuate the sale of the shares of Common Stock (including, without limitation, as to the
transfers of the proceeds and other exchange control matters noted below) and shall otherwise cooperate with the Company with respect to such
matters, provided that the Participant shall not be permitted to exercise any influence over how, when or whether the sales occur. The Participant
acknowledges that the designated broker is under no obligation to arrange for the sale of the shares of Common Stock at any particular price. Due to
fluctuations in the price of the Common Stock and/or applicable exchange rates between vesting and (if later) the date on which the shares of
Common Stock are sold, the amount of proceeds ultimately distributed to the Participant may be more or less than the market value of the shares of
Common Stock at vesting. The Participant understands and agrees that the Company is not responsible for the amount of any loss the Participant
may incur and that the Company assumes no liability for any fluctuations in the price of the shares of Common Stock and/or any applicable exchange
rate. The Participant also agrees to cooperate with the Company with respect to any exchange control matters.

Fkk

4. FINLAND
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There are no country-specific provisions.

*k%k

5. HONG KONG
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Issuance of Common Stock. The following provision supplements Section 4 of the Agreement:

Notwithstanding any discretion contained in the Plan, in no event shall Restricted Stock Units be satisfied by the delivery of cash or a combination of
cash and Common Stock.

If, for any reason, the Restricted Stock Units vest and shares of Common Stock are issued to the Participant within six (6) months of the Date of
Grant, the Participant agrees that the Participant will not dispose of the shares of Common Stock prior to the six-month anniversary of the Date of
Grant.

NOTIFICATIONS

Securities Law Information. This offer of the Restricted Stock Units and the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon vesting of the Restricted
Stock Units are available only to Participants (as defined in the Plan) and are not a public offer of securities. The Agreement (including thisExhibit A),
the Plan and other communication materials associated with the offer have not beenprepared in accordance with and are not intended to constitute a
“prospectus” for a publicoffering of securities under the applicable securities legislation in Hong Kong, nor have thedocuments been reviewed by any
regulatory authority in Hong Kong. The Agreement and anyrelated documentation are intended only for the personal use of each Participant and may
not be distributed to anyother person. The Participant is advised to exercise caution in relation to the offer. If the Participant is in anydoubt about any
of the contents of the offer documents, the Participant should obtain independent professional advice.

*kk

6. PHILIPPINES

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Issuance of Common Stock.

The following provision replaces Section 4 of the Agreement:

No shares of Common Stock or any cash amount shall be issued to the Participant prior to the date on which the Restricted Stock Units vest and the
Forfeiture Restrictions with respect to the Restricted Stock Units lapse, in accordance with Section 5. As soon as reasonably practicable after the
Restricted Stock Units vest pursuant to Section 5, the Company shall cause to be issued to the Participant a cash amount equivalent to the market
value of the shares of Common Stock subject to the vested Restricted Stock Units according to such procedures as the Company may establish from
time to time, including through local payroll, and less any Tax-Related Items required to be withheld. No shares of Common Stock will be issued to the
Participant and any reference in the Agreement to shares of Common Stock being issued to the Participant shall be interpreted accordingly. The value
of any Restricted Stock Units that would result in a fractional share (if shares were to be issued in settlement of the Restricted Stock Units) shall be
rounded down to the value of a whole share at the time the cash payment is made to the Participant. No cash value of any fractional shares of
Common Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Units will be payable to the Participant pursuant to this Agreement. Neither this Section 4 nor any
action taken pursuant to or in accordance with this Section 4 shall be construed to create a trust or a funded or secured obligation of any kind. The
Participant also agrees to cooperate with the Company with respect to any exchange control matters.
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If the Company determines that shares of Common Stock may be issued in settlement of vested Restricted Stock Units, Section 4 of the Agreement
shall instead be supplemented by the following provision:

No shares of Common Stock will be issued upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Units unless the issuance of shares complies with all applicable laws
and regulations as determined by the Company. The risks of participating in the Plan include (without limitation) the risk of fluctuation in the price of
the shares of Common Stock on the Nasdag Stock Exchange and the risk of currency fluctuations between the U.S. Dollar and the Participant's local
currency. The value of any shares of Common Stock that may be acquired under the Plan may decrease below the value of the shares of Common
Stock at vesting and fluctuations in foreign exchange rates between the Participant's local currency and the U.S. Dollar may affect the value of any
amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the subsequent sale of any shares of Common Stock acquired upon vesting. The Company is not making
any representations, projections or assurances about the value of the shares of Common Stock now or in the future.

For further information on risk factors impacting the Company’s business that may affect the value of the shares of Common Stock, the Participant
may refer to the risk factors discussion in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, which are filed with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and are available online at www.sec.gov as well as on the Company'’s “Investor Relations” website at
https://investor.cirrus.com/home/default.aspx.

The Participant is permitted to sell shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan through the Plan broker appointed by the Company (currently,
E*Trade) or such other broker to whom the Participant may transfer the shares of Common Stock, provided that such sale takes place outside of the
Philippines through the facilities of the Nasdaq Stock Exchange on which the shares of Common Stock are listed.

7. SOUTH KOREA
NOTIFICATIONS

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting_Information. Korean residents must declare all foreign financial accounts (e.g., brokerage accounts, bank
accounts) to the Korean tax authorities and file a report with respect to such accounts if the value of such accounts exceeds KRW 1 billion on any
month-end date during the calendar year. The Participant should consult with his or her personal tax advisor to ensure compliance with applicable
reporting obligations.

*k%k

8. SPAIN
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Nature of Grant.The following provisions supplement the Nature of Grant section of this Exhibit A:

By accepting the Restricted Stock Units, the Participant consents to participate in the Plan and acknowledges having received a copy of the Plan.
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The Participant understands that, as a condition of the grant of the Restricted Stock Units, the termination of the Participant’s employment for any
reason will automatically result in the forfeiture of any and all Restricted Stock Units that have not vested as of the date of termination. In particular, the
Participant understands and agrees that any unvested Restricted Stock Units will be forfeited without entitlement to the underlying shares of Common
Stock or to any amount as indemnification in the event of a termination of the Participant's employment prior to vesting by reason of, including, but not
limited to: death, disability, resignation, retirement, disciplinary dismissal adjudged to be with cause, disciplinary dismissal adjudged or recognized to
be without cause, individual or collective layoff on objective grounds, whether adjudged to be with cause or adjudged or recognized to be without
cause, material modification of the terms of employment under Article 41 of the Workers’ Statute, relocation under Article 40 of the Workers’ Statute,
Article 50 of the Workers’ Statute, unilateral withdrawal by the Employer, and under Article 10.3 of Royal Decree 1382/1985.

Furthermore, the Participant understands that the Company has unilaterally, gratuitously and discretionally decided to grant the Restricted Stock Units
under the Plan to individuals who may be Eligible Persons throughout the world. The decision is a limited decision that is entered into upon the
express assumption and condition that any grant will not economically or otherwise bind the Company or any Affiliate on an ongoing basis (other than
as set forth in this Agreement and the Plan). Consequently, the Participant understands that the Restricted Stock Units are granted on the assumption
and condition that the Restricted Stock Units and the related shares of Common Stock shall not become a part of any employment or contract (either
with the Company or any Affiliate) and shall not be considered a mandatory benefit, salary for any purposes (including severance compensation) or
any other right whatsoever. In addition, the Participant understands that the grant of the Restricted Stock Units would not be made to the Participant
but for the assumptions and conditions referred to above; thus, the Participant acknowledges and freely accepts that should any or all of the
assumptions be mistaken or should any of the conditions not be met for any reason, then the grant of Restricted Stock Units shall be null and void.

NOTIFICATIONS

Securities Law Information.No “offer of securities to the public,” as defined under Spanish law, has taken place or will take place in the Spanish
territory in connection with the grant of the

Restricted Stock Units under the Plan. This Agreement and the Plan have not been nor will they be registered with the Comisién Nacional del
Mercado de Valores, and do not constitute a public offering prospectus.

Exchange Control Information.The Participant must declare the acquisition, ownership and disposition of stock in a foreign company (including
shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) to the Spanish Direccion General de Comercio e Inversiones (the “DGCI"), the Bureau for
Commerce and Investments, which is a department of the Ministry of Economy and Competitiveness, for statistical purposes. Generally, the
declaration must be filed in January for Shares acquired or sold during (or owned as of December 31) the prior year; however, if the value of the
shares acquired under the Plan or the amount of the sale proceeds exceeds €1,502,530, the declaration must be filed within one month of the
acquisition or sale, as applicable.

The Participant may be required to declare electronically to the Bank of Spain any foreign accounts (including brokerage accounts held abroad), any
foreign instruments (including shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan), and any transactions with non-Spanish residents (including any
payment of cash or shares of Common Stock made by the Company) depending on the value of the transactions during the relevant year or the
balances in such accounts and the value of such instruments as of December 31 of the relevant year. The Participant should consult with his or her
personal legal advisor regarding the applicable thresholds and corresponding reporting requirements.

Foreign Asset/ Account Reporting Information. The Participant is required to report assets or rights deposited or held outside of Spain (including
the shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan or cash proceeds from the sale of the shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) if the
value per type of asset or right exceeds a certain threshold. This obligation applies to assets and rights held as of December 31 and requires that
information on such assets and rights be included in the Participant’s tax return filed with the Spanish tax authorities for such year. After such assets
or rights are initially reported, the reporting obligation will apply for subsequent years only if the value of any previously reported asset or right
increases by more than a certain threshold or if ownership of such asset or right is transferred or relinquished during the year. The Participant should
consult with his or her personal tax advisor regarding the applicable thresholds and corresponding reporting requirements.
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9. SWEDEN
There are no country-specific provisions.
*k%k

10. TAIWAN

NOTIFICATIONS

Securities Law Information. The grant of the Restricted Stock Units (and the issuance, if any, of the underlying shares) is available only to Eligible
Persons. It is not a public offer of securities by a Taiwanese company. Therefore, it is exempt from registration in Taiwan.

Exchange Control Information. The Participant may remit foreign currency (including proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock and the
receipt of any dividends) into Taiwan with a transaction amount of up to US$5,000,000 per year. If the transaction amount is TWD500,000 or more in a
single transaction, the Participant must submit a foreign exchange transaction form and also provide supporting documentation to the satisfaction of
the handling bank.

If the transaction amount is US$500,000 or more, the Participant may be required to provide additional supporting documentation to the satisfaction of
the bank. The Participant should consult with his or her personal advisor to ensure compliance with applicable exchange control laws in Taiwan.

*kk

11. UNITED KINGDOM
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Responsibility for Taxes. The following provisions supplement the Responsibility for Taxes section of this Exhibit A:

Without limitation to the foregoing provisions, the Participant hereby agrees that the Participant is liable for all Tax-Related Items and hereby
covenants to pay all such Tax-Related Items, as and when requested by the Company or if different, the Employer or by Her Majesty’s Revenue &
Customs (“HMRC”) (or any other tax authority or any other relevant authority). The Participant also hereby agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified
the Company and, if different, the Employer against any Tax-Related Items that they are required to pay or withhold or have paid or will pay to HMRC
(or any other tax authority or any other relevant authority) on the Participant’s behalf.

However, if the Participant is a director or executive officer of the Company (within the meaning of Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act), the terms of the
immediately foregoing provision will not apply. In the event that the Participant is a director or executive officer of the Company and the income tax is
not collected from or paid by the Participant within ninety (90) days of the end of the U.K. tax year in which an event giving rise to the indemnification
described above occurs, the amount of any uncollected income tax may constitute a benefit to the Participant on which additional income tax and
National Insurance contributions (“NICs”) may be payable. The Participant will be responsible for reporting and paying any income tax due on this
additional benefit directly to HMRC under the self-assessment regime and for paying to the Company and/or the Employer (as appropriate) the
amount of any employee NICs due on this additional benefit.
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CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
2018 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

PERFORMANCE AWARD AGREEMENT

This Performance Award Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the Date of Grant set forth in the related Notice of a
Grant of Performance Awards (“Notice of Grant”) by and between Cirrus Logic, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and you as the
Participant named in the Notice of Grant (“Participant”):

WHEREAS, the Company, in order to induce you to materially contribute to the success of the Company, agrees to grant you this Award of
Performance-based Restricted Stock Units (‘PBRSUS");

WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long Term Incentive Plan, as it may be amended from time to time (the “Plan”),
under which the Company is authorized to grant Performance Awards to Eligible Persons providing services to the Company and its Affiliates
(“Service”);

WHEREAS, a copy of the Plan has been furnished to you and shall be deemed a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth herein and terms
capitalized but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Plan;

WHEREAS, the term “Performance Award” shall have the same meaning as the term “Performance Award” set forth in the Plan, and this
Agreement, the Notice of Grant, and the Plan shall each be interpreted accordingly; and

WHEREAS, you desire to accept the Performance Award created pursuant to this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and for other valuable consideration hereinafter set forth, the
parties agree as follows:

1. The Grant. Subject to the conditions set forth below, the Company hereby grants to you, effective as of the Date of Grant set forth in the
Notice of Grant and in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Plan, as a matter of separate inducement but not in lieu of
any salary or other compensation for your services for the Company or an Affiliate, a Performance-based award (the “Award”) consisting of an
aggregate number of Performance Awards, whereby each Performance Award represents the right to receive shares of Common Stock of the
Company following the applicable vesting date, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Notice of Grant and the Plan.
The actual number of shares awarded pursuant to this Agreement will be calculated at the completion of the Performance Period as defined in the
Notice of Grant.

2. No Shareholder Rights. The Performance Award granted pursuant to this Agreement does not and shall not entitle you to any rights of
a holder of Common Stock (including, without limitation, voting rights or rights to cash dividends) prior to the date shares of Common Stock are issued
to you in settlement of the Award. Your rights with respect to the Performance Award shall remain forfeitable at all times prior to the date on which
rights become vested and the restrictions with respect to the Performance Award lapse in accordance with Section 5.

3. Performance Measures and Forfeiture Restrictions. (a) The Performance Awards are restricted in that they may not be sold,
transferred or otherwise alienated or hypothecated until the Performance Awards become vested, the restrictions are removed or expire as
contemplated in this Agreement, and Common Stock is issued to you as described in Section 4 of this Agreement. The Performance Awards are also
restricted in the sense that, as provided in Section 6, they may be forfeited for no consideration to the Company in the event your Service with the
Company or an Affiliate terminates before the Performance Awards become vested; (b) Performance Awards are further subject to Performance
Measures during the Performance Period as set forth in the Notice of Grant; and (c) The prohibition against transfer and the obligation to forfeit the
Performance Awards upon termination of Service or failure to obtain the Performance Measures as provided in the preceding sentences are herein
referred to as the “Forfeiture Restrictions.”
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4. Issuance of Common Stock. No shares of Common Stock shall be issued to you prior to the date on which the Performance Awards
vest and the Forfeiture Restrictions with respect to the Performance Awards lapse, in accordance with Section 5. As soon as reasonably practicable
after the Performance Awards vest pursuant to Section 5, the Company shall cause to be issued to you (including to a brokerage account in your
name) Common Stock in settlement of such vested Performance Awards upon receipt by the Company of any required tax withholding, provided that
such issuance of Common Stock shall in any event be made no later than March 15 of the year following the calendar year that the Performance
Awards vest. The actual number of shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to a Performance Award will be calculated by the Committee (as
defined in the Plan), and shall be made in the sole discretion of the Committee. The Company shall evidence the Common Stock to be issued in
settlement of such vested Performance Awards in the manner it deems appropriate. The value of any fractional share Performance Awards shall be
rounded down at the time Common Stock is issued to you in connection with the Performance Awards. No fractional shares of Common Stock, nor the
cash value of any fractional shares of Common Stock, will be issuable or payable to you pursuant to this Agreement. The value of such shares of
Common Stock shall not bear any interest owing to the passage of time. Neither this Section 4 nor any action taken pursuant to or in accordance with
this Section 4 shall be construed to create a trust or a funded or secured obligation of any kind.

5. Vesting;_Expiration of Forfeiture Restrictions. The Forfeiture Restrictions on the Performance Awards granted pursuant to the Award
will expire as set forth in the Notice of Grant and shares of Common Stock that are nonforfeitable and transferable, except to the extent provided in
Section 9 of this Agreement, will be issued to you in settlement of your vested

Performance Awards as set forth in Section 4, provided that you remain in the continuous Service of the Company or its Affiliates until the applicable
dates or events set forth in the Notice of Grant. Performance Awards that remain subject to the Forfeiture Restrictions will be considered “Nonvested
Performance Awards.”

6. Effect of Termination of Service. If your Service with the Company or any Affiliate terminates for any reason, then those Performance
Awards for which the Forfeiture Restrictions have not lapsed as of the date of or in connection with such termination shall become null and void and
those Nonvested Performance Awards shall be forfeited for no consideration to the Company.

6A. Accelerated Vesting. The Committee may, in its discretion, accelerate vesting of Performance Awards. To the extent that the vesting of
any Performance Awards occurs, the final number of shares awarded will be calculated based upon the actual performance to the Performance
Measures as of the date of acceleration of the vesting.

7. Leave of Absence. With respect to the Award, the Company may, in its sole discretion, determine that if you are on leave of absence for
any reason, you will be considered to still be in the Service of the Company or an Affiliate, provided that rights to the Performance Awards during a
leave of absence will be limited to the extent to which those rights were earned or vested when the leave of absence began. The Committee, at its
discretion, may prorate the number of shares to be issued to account for the number of days you are on leave of absence during a Performance
Period.

8. Withholding Taxes. The Company may require you to pay to the Company (or the Company’s Affiliate if you are an employee of an
Affiliate of the Company), an amount the Company deems necessary to satisfy its or its Affiliate’s current or future obligation to withhold federal, state
or local income or other taxes that you incur as a result of the Award. To the extent that the receipt of the Performance Awards or the lapse of any
Forfeiture Restrictions results in compensation income or wages to you for federal, state, local, or other tax purposes, the Company is authorized to
withhold any tax required to be withheld by reason of such resulting compensation income or wages from any cash or stock remuneration (including
withholding any Common Stock distributable to you under this Agreement, based on the Fair Market Value on the date the withholding is to be
determined, but not in excess of the greatest statutory withholding requirements) then or thereafter payable to you and/or you otherwise agree to
deliver such amount of money as the Company may require to meet its or its Affiliate’s tax withholding obligations under applicable laws or regulations.
Unless the applicable tax withholding obligations of the Company and its Affiliates are satisfied, the Company shall have no obligation to issue
Common Stock pursuant to this Agreement. You acknowledge and agree that the Company is making no representation or warranty as to the tax
consequences to you as a result of the receipt of the Performance Awards, the lapse of any Forfeiture Restrictions, the achievement of the
Performance measures, or the forfeiture of any Performance Awards pursuant to the Forfeiture Restrictions.
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9. Compliance with Law. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, any issuance of Common Stock hereunder will
be subject to compliance with all

applicable requirements of federal, state, and foreign law with respect to such securities and with the requirements of any stock exchange or market
system upon which the Common Stock may then be listed. No Common Stock will be issued hereunder if such issuance would constitute a violation of
any applicable federal, state, or foreign securities laws or other law or regulations or the requirements of any stock exchange or market system upon
which the Common Stock may then be listed. In addition, Common Stock will not be issued hereunder unless (a) a registration statement under the
U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”), is at the time of issuance in effect with respect to the shares issued or (b) in the opinion of legal
counsel to the Company, the shares issued may be issued in accordance with the terms of an applicable exemption from the registration requirements
of the Act. The inability of the Company to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction the authority, if any, deemed by the Company’s legal
counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any shares subject to the Performance Award will relieve the Company of any liability in
respect of the failure to issue such shares as to which such requisite authority has not been obtained. As a condition to any issuance hereunder, the
Company may require you to satisfy any qualifications that may be necessary or appropriate to evidence compliance with any applicable law or
regulation and to make any representation or warranty with respect to such compliance as may be requested by the Company. You agree that the
shares of Common Stock that you may acquire in settlement of any vested Performance Awards will not be sold or otherwise disposed of in any
manner that would constitute a violation of any applicable securities laws, whether federal, state, or foreign, or any other applicable laws.

10. Legends. You agree that the certificates representing shares of Common Stock issued with respect to the Performance Award may bear
such legend or legends as the Committee deems appropriate to assure compliance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and applicable
securities laws.

11. Right to Terminate Services. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall confer upon you the right to continue in the employ of or
performing services for the Company or any Affiliate, or interfere in any way with the rights of the Company or any Affiliate to terminate your
employment or service relationship at any time.

12. Furnish Information. You agree to furnish to the Company all information requested by the Company to enable it to comply with any
reporting or other requirement imposed upon the Company by or under any applicable statute or regulation. You further agree to notify the Company
upon any change in the residence address indicated on the Notice of Grant.

13. Dispute Resolution. The provisions of this Section shall be the exclusive means of resolving disputes arising out of or relating to the
Performance Award, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement. The Company, you, and your assignees (the “parties”) shall attempt in good
faith to resolve any disputes arising out of or relating to the Performance Award, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement by negotiation
between individuals who have authority to settle the controversy. Negotiations shall be commenced by either party by notice of a written statement of
the party’s position and the name and title of the individual who will

represent the party. Within thirty (30) days of the written notification, the parties shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place, and thereafter as
often as they reasonably deem necessary, to resolve the dispute.

Any controversy, dispute or claim that has not been settled by negotiation within thirty (30) days of the written notification as set forth above
shall be finally settled by arbitration under the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) by three arbitrators. In
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such event, the claimant will deliver a written notice to the respondent(s) and the AAA initiating arbitration and naming an arbitrator. Within twenty (20)
days after receipt of such arbitration notice, the respondent(s) shall name an arbitrator. Within twenty (20) days from the naming of the two arbitrators,
the two arbitrators shall name a third arbitrator. If there are multiple claimants and/or multiple respondents, all claimants and/or all respondents shall
attempt to agree upon naming their respective arbitrator. If the claimants or respondents, as the case may be, fail to name their respective arbitrator,
or if the two arbitrators fail to name a third arbitrator, or if within twenty (20) days after any arbitrator shall resign or otherwise cease to serve as such a
replacement arbitrator is not named by the party that originally named such arbitrator, such arbitrator as to which agreement cannot be reached or as
to which a timely appointment is not made shall be named by the AAA. The place of arbitration shall be Austin, Texas. The award of the arbitrators
may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. The costs of the arbitration shall be shared by the disputing parties equally. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary herein, the arbitrators shall not award nor shall the Company have any liability for any consequential, punitive, special,
incidental, indirect or similar damages.

14. No Advice Regarding_Performance Award. The Company is not providing any tax, legal, or financial advice with respect to the
Performance Award, your participation in the Plan, or the acquisition or sale of any Common Stock attributable to the Performance Award. You are
hereby advised to consult with your own personal tax, legal, and financial advisors regarding participation in the Plan before taking any action related
to the Plan.

15. No Liability for Good Faith Determinations. The Company and the members of the Committee and the Board shall not be liable for
any act, omission or determination taken or made in good faith with respect to this Agreement or the Performance Award granted hereunder.

16. Execution of Receipts and Releases. Any payment of cash or any issuance or transfer of shares of Common Stock or other property
to you, or to your legal representative, heir, legatee or distributee, in accordance with the provisions hereof, shall, to the extent thereof, be in full
satisfaction of all claims of such persons hereunder. The Company may require you or your legal representative, heir, legatee or distributee, as a
condition precedent to such payment or issuance, to execute a release and receipt therefor in such form as it shall determine.

17. No Guarantee of Interests. The Board and the Company do not guarantee the Common Stock of the Company from loss or
depreciation.

18. Company Records. Records of the Company or its Affiliates regarding your Service and other matters shall be conclusive for all
purposes hereunder, unless determined by the Company to be incorrect.

19. Notices. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effectively given upon personal
delivery or upon deposit in the United States mail by certified mail (if the parties are in the United States) or upon deposit for delivery by an
internationally recognized express mail courier service (for international delivery of notice), with postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the other
party at its address as such party may designate in writing from time to time to the other party.

20. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon you, your legal representatives, heirs, assigns, legatees and distributees, and upon
the Company, its successors and assigns.

21.  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the
remaining provisions hereof, but such provision shall be fully severable and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid
provision had never been included herein.

22. Headings. The titles and headings of Sections are included for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered in
construction of the provisions hereof.

23. Governing Law. All questions arising with respect to the provisions of this Agreement shall be determined by application of the laws of
the State of Delaware without giving any effect to any conflict of law provisions thereof, except to the extent Delaware law is preempted by federal law.
The obligation of the Company to issue and deliver Common Stock hereunder is subject to applicable laws and to the approval of any governmental
authority required in connection with the authorization, issuance, sale, or delivery of such Common Stock.
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24. Electronic Delivery and Participation. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related to the Award
granted under the Plan or future awards that may be granted under the Plan by electronic means or to request your consent to participate in the Plan
by electronic means. You hereby consent to receive such documents by electronic delivery and agree to participate in the Plan through an on-line or
electronic system established and maintained by the Company or a third party designated by the Company.

25.  Word Usage. Words used in the masculine shall apply to the feminine where applicable, and wherever the context of this Agreement
dictates, the plural shall be read as the singular and the singular as the plural.

26. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by the Board or by the Committee at any time (a) if the Board or the Committee
determines, in its sole discretion, that amendment is necessary or advisable in light of any addition to or change in any federal, state, local or foreign
tax or securities law or other law or regulation (including any change in the interpretation or application of any law or regulation by an appropriate
governmental authority),

which change occurs after the Date of Grant and by its terms applies to the Award; or (b) other than in the circumstances described in clause (a) or
provided in the Plan, with your consent.

27.  Section 409A. The Performance Award is intended to qualify for the “short-term deferral” exemption from Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code and shall be construed accordingly. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, neither the Committee nor the Company or its Affiliates
shall be liable for any failure of the Award or any portion thereof to satisfy the requirements for exemption from, or compliance with, Section 409A of
the Internal Revenue Code.

28. Unfunded Arrangement. Neither the Notice of Grant, this Agreement, nor the Plan shall give you any security or other interest in any
assets of the Company or an Affiliate; rather, your right to the Performance Award is that of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company.

29. Non-U.S. Participants and U.S. Participants Employed by a U.K. Affiliate. To the extent that you are a citizen or resident of a country
other than the United States, this Agreement is deemed to include and, as applicable, be revised and supplemented by the provisions of Exhibit A that
apply to Participants outside the United States generally and to Participants located in the jurisdictions set forth therein. If you are a U.S citizen or U.S.
resident but are employed by a U.K. Affiliate, this Agreement is deemed to include and, as applicable, be revised and supplemented by the provisions

of Section B.1 of Exhibit A.

30. The Plan. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, conditions, limitations and restrictions contained in the Plan. In the event of any
conflict or inconsistency between the terms hereof and the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall be controlling.

[Signature Page Follows]

By your signature below, or by your electronic acceptance of this Agreement, you agree to all the terms and conditions of the Performance
Award, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement. You acknowledge that you have had the opportunity to review the Plan and this Agreement
in their entirety and to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement. You agree to accept as binding, conclusive and final all
decisions or interpretations of the Committee upon any questions relating to the Award, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, or this Agreement.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 103/141
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

Signature of Participant

Printed Name of Participant

Date:
EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR
PARTICIPANTS OUTSIDE THE U.S. AND U.S. PARTICIPANTS EMPLOYED BY A U.K. AFFILIATE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Parts A and B of this Exhibit A, which are part of the Cirrus Logic, Inc. Performance Award Agreement (the “Agreement”), include special terms
and conditions that govern the Performance-based Restricted Stock Units (“PBRSUs") granted to Participants based outside of the United States and
in the particular jurisdictions mentioned herein. Further, Section B.1 of this Exhibit A includes special terms and conditions that apply to you if you are
a U.S citizen or U.S. resident but are employed by a U.K. Affiliate. Unless otherwise defined in this Exhibit A, any capitalized terms used but not
defined in this Exhibit A shall have the same meanings given to them in the Agreement and/or the Plan, as applicable.

NOTIFICATIONS

This Exhibit A also includes information regarding securities, exchange control, tax and certain other issues of which the Participant should be
aware with respect to his or her participation in the Plan. The information is based on the securities, exchange control, tax and other laws in effect in
the respective jurisdictions as of July 2018. Such laws are complex and subject to change. As a result, the Company strongly recommends that the
Participant not rely on the information in this Exhibit A as the only source of information relating to the consequences of his or her participation in the
Plan because such information may be outdated at the time the PBRSUs vest or the Participant sells any shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to
the PBRSUs.

In addition, the information contained in this Exhibit A is general in nature and may not apply to the Participant’'s particular situation. The
Company is not in a position to assure the Participant of any particular result. Accordingly, the Participant should seek appropriate professional advice
as to how the relevant laws apply to the Participant’s situation.

If the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which he or she is currently residing and/or working (or is considered
as such for local law purposes), or if the Participant transfers employment and/or residency after the Date of Grant, the terms and conditions and
information contained herein may not be applicable to the Participant in the same manner. The Company shall, in its sole discretion, determine to what
extent the terms and conditions contained herein shall apply to the Participant in such a case.
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A. TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL NON-U.S. JURISDICTIONS

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Responsibility for Taxes. The following provisions replace Section 8 of the Agreement:

The Participant acknowledges that, regardless of any action taken by the Company, or, if different, the Participant’s employer (the “Employer”),
the ultimate liability for all income tax, social insurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to the
Participant’s participation in the Plan and legally applicable to the Participant as a result of participation in the Plan (“Tax-Related Items”) is and
remains the Participant’s responsibility and may exceed the amount (if any) withheld by the Company or the Employer. The Participant further
acknowledges that the Company and the Employer (a) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related ltems
and (b) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the terms of the grant or any aspect of the PBRSUs to reduce or eliminate the
Participant’s liability for Tax-Related ltems or achieve any particular tax result. Further, if the Participant is subject to Tax-Related Items in more than
one jurisdiction, the Participant acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold
or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.

Prior to any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant shall pay or make arrangements satisfactory to the Company to
enable the Company and the Employer to fulfill any withholding obligation for Tax-Related Items. In this regard, the Participant authorizes the
Company and/or the Employer, or their respective agents, to withhold all applicable Tax-Related Items by one or a combination of the following
methods:

i. withholding from the Participant's wages or other cash compensation otherwise payable to the Participant by the Company and/or the
Employer; and/or

ii. requiring the Participant to tender a payment in cash (or the cash equivalent) in an amount equal to the Tax-Related Items to the Company or
its designee; and/or

withholding from the proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired upon settlement of the PBRSUSs, either through a voluntary
sale or through a mandatory sale arranged by the Company (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this authorization without further consent);
and/or

iv. withholding in shares of Common Stock to be issued upon settlement of the PBRSUs.

The Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering applicable minimum statutory withholding rates or other applicable
withholding rates, including up to the maximum applicable rate in the Participant’s jurisdiction in which case the Participant may receive a refund of
any over-withheld amount in cash without interest, and will not be entitled to the equivalment amount in shares. If the obligation for Tax-Related Items
is satisfied by withholding in shares, for tax purposes, the Participant will be deemed to have been issued the full number of shares subject to the
vested PBRSUSs, notwithstanding that a number of shares that are held back solely for the purpose of paying the Tax-Related Items.

The Company may refuse to issue shares of Common Stock in settlement of the PBRSUs or may refuse to deliver the proceeds of the sale of
such shares if the Participant fails to comply with his or her obligations in connection with the Tax-Related Items as described in this Section.

2. Nature of Grant. In accepting the grant of the PBRSUSs, the Participant acknowledges, understands and agrees that:
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(@) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, is discretionary in nature and may be modified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, unless otherwise provided in the Plan and the Agreement;

(b)  the grant of the PBRSUs is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive future Awards,
or benefits in lieu of Awards, even if Awards have been granted in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to any such future Awards, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(d) the Participant’s participation in the Plan does not provide the Participant with benefits outside of the Plan;

(e) the Participant’s participation in the Plan is voluntary;

® the PBRSUs and the shares of Common Stock subject to the PBRSUs, and the income from and value of same, are an
extraordinary item of compensation which is outside the scope of the Participant’'s employment contract, if any;

(g) the PBRSUs and the shares of Common Stock subject to the PBRSUs, and the income from and value of same, are not part of
normal or expected compensation or salary for any purposes, including, but not limited to, calculating any severance, resignation, redundancy, holiday
pay, dismissal, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments, and in no event
should be considered as compensation for, or relating in any way to, past services for the Company or any Affiliate;

(h)  the PBRSUs and the shares of Common Stock subject to the PBRSUs, and the income from and value of same, are not intended
to replace any pension rights or be granted as compensation or as a bonus for past service;

0] unless otherwise agreed with the Company, the PBRSUs and the shares of Common Stock subject to the PBRSUs, and the
income from and value of same, are not granted as consideration for, or in connection with, any service the Participant may provide as a director of an
Affiliate;

) the future value of the shares of Common Stock subject to the PBRSUs is unknown, indeterminable and cannot be predicted with
certainty;

(k) no claim or entitement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the PBRSUs resulting from the Participant’s
termination of employment by the Company (for any reason whatsoever and whether or not in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the
Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any);

0} for purposes of the PBRSUs, the Participant’s status as an Eligible Person will be considered terminated as of the date the
Participant is no longer actively providing services to the Company or one of its Affiliates (regardless of the reason for such termination and whether or
not later to be found invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant's
employment agreement, if any) and, unless expressly provided in the Agreement or determined by the Company, the Participant’s right to vest in the
PBRSUs under the Plan, if any, will terminate as of such date and will not be extended by any notice period (e.g., the Participant’s period of service
would not include any contractual notice period or any period of “garden leave” or similar period mandated under employment laws in the jurisdiction
where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any); the Committee shall have the exclusive discretion
to determine when the Participant is no longer actively providing services for purposes of the PBRSUs; and

(m) neither the Company, the Employer nor any Affiliate shall be liable for any exchange rate fluctuation between the Participant’s
local currency and the United States Dollar that may affect the value of the PBRSUs or of any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the vesting
and settlement of the PBRSUs or the subsequent sale of any shares of Stock acquired upon settlement.

3. Data Privacy. Certain personal information about the Participant, including, but not limited to, the Participant's name, home address and
telephone number, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title, any shares of stock or
directorships held in the Company, details of all Restricted Stock Units or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, settled,
exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the Participant's favor (“Personal Data”) will be collected, processed and transferred by and
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among, as applicable, the Employer and the Company and its other Affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and
managing participation in the Plan, in furtherance of their legitimate business interests, and where necessary to comply with their legal
obligations. The Participant hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the
Participant's personal data as described in this document and any other

PBRSU materials by and among, as applicable, the Employer and the Company and its other Affiliates for the above purposes.

Personal Data will also be transferred to certain independent service providers engaged in connection with the implementation, administration and
management of the Plan, including Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC (trading as E*Trade), and Computershare Limited. Further information on the
Company's basis for the processing, transfer and safeguarding of Personal Data, is detailed in the Company’s Stock Plan Privacy Notice. The
Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Personal Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of
implementing, administering and managing participation in the Plan.

The Participant understands that he or she is providing the consents herein on a purely voluntary basis. If the Participant does not consent, or later
seeks to revoke consent, the Participant's employment status or service with the Employer will not be affected; the only consequence of refusing or
withdrawing consent is that the Company would not be able to grant PBRSUs or other equity awards to the Participant or administer or maintain such
awards. Therefore, the Participant understands that withdrawal of consent may affect the Participant's ability to participate in the Plan or to realize
benefits from the PBRSUs.

Finally, if applicable and upon request of the Company, the Participant agrees to provide any other executed acknowledgement or data privacy
consent form (or any other acknowledgements, agreements or consents) that the Company and/or the Employer may deem necessary to obtain under
the data privacy laws in the Participant’s country, either now or in the future. The Participant understands that he or she will not be able to participate
in the Plan if he or she fails to execute any such acknowledgement, agreement or consent requested by the Company and/or the Employer.

4. Dispute Resolution. The following provisions replace Section 13 of the Agreement:

The provisions of this Section shall be the exclusive means of resolving disputes arising out of or relating to the PBRSUs, the Notice of Grant, the
Plan, and this Agreement. The Company, the Participant, and his or her assignees (the “parties”) shall attempt in good faith to resolve any disputes
arising out of or relating to the PBRSUSs, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement by negotiation between individuals who have authority to
settle the controversy. Negotiations shall be commenced by either party by notice of a written statement of the party’s position and the name and title
of the individual who will represent the party. Within thirty (30) days of the written notification, the parties shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and
place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to resolve the dispute.

Any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be resolved by binding and non-appealable arbitration under the rules of the International Centre for
Dispute Resolution (“ICDR”). The arbitration shall be conducted by a single arbitrator chosen by the parties or, if the parties cannot agree upon a
single arbitrator within thirty (30) days, then by a single arbitrator appointed by the ICDR. The arbitration shall take place Austin, Texas, U.S.A., and
shall be conducted in the English language. The arbitration costs shall be divided such that each party shall pay its own attorney’s fees and any other
costs shall be borne equally by the parties.
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5. Language. If the Participant has received the Agreement or any other document related to the Plan translated into a language other than
English and if the translated version is different than the English version, the English version will control.

6. Imposition of Other Requirements.The Company reserves the right to impose other requirements on the Participant’s participation in the
Plan, on the PBRSUs and on any shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan, to the extent the Company determines it is necessary or
advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require the Participant to sign any additional agreements or undertakings that may be
necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

7. Foreign Asset/Account Reporting_Requirements. The Participant acknowledges that there may be certain foreign asset and/or account
reporting requirements which may affect the Participant’s ability to acquire or hold shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan or cash
received from participating in the Plan (including from any dividends paid on shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) in a brokerage
or bank account outside the Participant’s country. The Participant may be required to report such accounts, assets or transactions to the tax or
other authorities in the Participant’s country. The Participant also may be required to repatriate sale proceeds or other funds received as a result
of participating in the Plan to the Participant’s country through a designated bank or broker within a certain time after receipt. The Participant
acknowledges that it is his or her responsibility to be compliant with such regulations, and the Participant is advised to speak to his or her
personal advisor on this matter.

8. Insider Trading Restrictions/Market Abuse Laws. The Participant may be subject to insider trading restrictions and/or market abuse laws in
applicable jurisdictions including, but not limited to, the United States and Participant's country, which may affect his or her ability to acquire or
sell shares of Common Stock or rights to shares of Common Stock under the Plan during such times as the Participant is considered to have
“inside information” regarding the Company (as defined by the laws in the applicable jurisdictions). Any restrictions under these laws or
regulations are separate from and in addition to any restrictions that may be imposed under any applicable Company insider trading policy. The
Participant acknowledges that it is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with any applicable restrictions, and that the Participant should
speak to his or her personal advisor on this matter.

B. JURISDICTION-SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

1. EUROPEAN UNION /| EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA /| UNITED KINGDOM AND U.S. BASED EMPLOYEES OF A U.K. AFFILIATE

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Data Privacy. The following provisions replace the Data Privacy section (A.3) of this Exhibit A:

Certain personal information about the Participant, including, but not limited to, the Participant's name, home address and telephone number, date of
birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title, any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company,
details of all PBRSUs or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, settled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the
Participant's favor (“Personal Data”) will be collected, processed and transferred by and among, as applicable, the Employer and the Company and
its other Affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing participation in the Plan, in furtherance of their legitimate
business interests, and where necessary to comply with their legal obligations. Personal Data will also be transferred to certain independent service
providers engaged in connection with the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, including Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC
(trading as “E*Trade”), and Computershare Limited. Further information on the Company's basis for the processing, transfer and safeguarding of
Personal Data, is detailed in the Company’s Stock Plan Privacy Notice which Participants should read prior to accepting any Award. This Stock Plan
Privacy Notice is available to Participants via their E*Trade accounts, or can otherwise be viewed, together with applicable Employer Data Protection
Policies and employee Privacy Notices, on the Company intranet (ICE). Copies of all such policies or notices can also be obtained, on request, from
the Company'’s Legal Department.
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2. UNITED KINGDOM
Responsibility for Taxes. The following provisions supplement the Responsibility for Taxes section of this Exhibit A:

Without limitation to the foregoing provisions, the Participant hereby agrees that the Participant is liable for all Tax-Related Items and hereby
covenants to pay all such Tax-Related Items, as and when requested by the Company or if different, the Employer or by Her Majesty’s Revenue &
Customs (“HMRC”) (or any other tax authority or any other relevant authority). The Participant also hereby agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified
the Company and, if different, the Employer against any Tax-Related Items that they are required to pay or withhold or have paid or will pay to HMRC
(or any other tax authority or any other relevant authority) on the Participant’s behalf.

However, if the Participant is a director or executive officer of the Company (within the meaning of Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act), the terms of the
immediately foregoing provision will not apply. In the event that the Participant is a director or executive officer of the Company and the income tax is
not collected from or paid by the Participant within ninety (90) days of the end of the U.K. tax year in which an event giving rise to the indemnification
described above occurs, the amount of any uncollected income tax may constitute a benefit to the Participant on which additional income tax and
National Insurance contributions (“NICs”) may be payable. The Participant will be responsible for reporting and paying any income tax due on this
additional benefit directly to HMRC under the self-assessment regime and for paying to the Company and/or the Employer (as appropriate) the
amount of any employee NICs due on this additional benefit.

CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
2018 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This Stock Option Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the Date of Grant set forth in the related Notice of Grant of
Stock Option (“Notice of Grant’) by and between Cirrus Logic, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and you as the Participant named in
the Notice of Grant (“Participant”):

WHEREAS, the Company, in order to induce you to materially contribute to the success of the Company, agrees to grant you an option to
acquire an interest in the Company through the purchase of shares of common stock of the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long Term Incentive Plan, as it may be amended from time to time (the “Plan”),
under which the Company is authorized to grant stock options to Eligible Persons providing services to the Company and its Affiliates (“Service”);

WHEREAS, a copy of the Plan has been furnished to you and shall be deemed a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth herein and terms
capitalized but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Plan; and

WHEREAS, you desire to accept the option created pursuant to this Agreement.
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NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and for other valuable consideration hereinafter set forth, the
parties agree as follows:

1. The Grant. Subject to the conditions set forth below, the Company hereby grants to you, effective as of the Date of Grant set forth in the
Notice of Grant, as a matter of separate inducement and not in lieu of any salary or other compensation for your services to the Company or an
Affiliate, the right and option to purchase (the “Option”), in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Plan, an aggregate of
the number of shares of Common Stock set forth in the Notice of Grant (the “Option Shares”), at the Exercise Price set forth in the Notice of Grant
(the “Exercise Price”).

2. Exercise.

(®) Subject to the relevant provisions and limitations contained herein and in the Plan, you may exercise the Option to purchase all or
a portion of the applicable number of Vested Shares at any time prior to the termination of the Option pursuant to this Agreement. Option Shares shall
be deemed “Nonvested Shares” unless and until they have become “Vested Shares” in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in the Notice
of Grant, provided that you remain in the Service of the Company or its Affiliates until the applicable dates set forth therein. In no event shall you be
entitled to exercise the Option for any Nonvested Shares or for

a fraction of a Vested Share. For administrative or other reasons, the Company may from time to time suspend the ability to exercise options for
limited periods of time, and the Committee may provide for reasonable limitations on the number of requested exercises during any monthly or weekly
period.

(b) Any exercise of the Option by you shall be made by delivery to the Company’s stock plan administrator of (i) a completed notice of
exercise in such form as may be prescribed by the Committee, which shall specify the number of Option Shares in respect of which the Option is
being exercised and such other information and/or representations as may be required by the Committee, and (ii) payment of the aggregate Exercise
Price for the Option Shares purchased pursuant to the exercise.

(c) Payment of the Exercise Price may be made, at your election, with the approval of the Company, (i) in cash, by certified or official
bank check or by wire transfer of immediately available funds, (ii) by delivery to the Company of a number of shares of Common Stock having a Fair
Market Value as of the date of exercise equal to the Exercise Price (provided that such Common Stock used for this purpose must have been held by
you for such minimum period of time as may be established from time to time by the Committee), (iii) through a “cashless exercise” in accordance with
a Company established policy or program for the same, or (iv) any combination of the foregoing.

(d) If you are on leave of absence for any reason, the Company may, in its sole discretion, determine that you will be considered to
still be in the Service of the Company, provided that, except as otherwise determined by the Committee, rights to the Option will be limited to the
extent to which those rights were earned or vested when the leave of absence began.

(e) The Option shall in all events terminate at the close of business on the Expiration Date set forth in the Notice of Grant (the
“Expiration Date").

3. Effect of Termination of Service on Exercisability. To the extent that this Option is exercisable for Vested shares as of the date your
Service terminates for any reason, this Option may be exercised by you (or your estate or the person who acquires this Option by will or the laws of
descent and distribution or otherwise by reason of your death) as follows:

(@) Termination on Account of Disability. If your Service with the Company or any Affiliate terminates by reason of disability (within
the meaning of section 22(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States (the “Code”)), this Option may be exercised by you (or your estate
or the person who acquires this Option by will or the laws of descent and distribution or otherwise by reason of your death) at any time during the
period ending on the earlier to occur of (i) the date that is twelve (12) months following such termination, or (ii) the Expiration Date. You will not be
considered to have terminated your Service by reason of disability unless you furnish proof of such impairment sufficient to satisfy the Committee in its
discretion.
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(b) Termination on Account of Death. If your Service with the Company or any Affiliate terminates by reason of your death, your
estate, or the person who acquires this Option by will or the laws of descent and distribution or otherwise by reason of your death, may exercise this
Option at any time during the period ending on the earlier to occur of (i) the date that is twelve (12) months following your death, or (ii) the Expiration
Date.

(c) Termination for any Other Reason. If your Service with the Company or any Affiliate terminates for any reason other than as
described in Sections 3(a) or (b), this Option may be exercised by you at any time during the period ending on the earlier to occur of (i) the date that is
three (3) months following your termination, or (ii) the Expiration Date, or by your estate (or the person who acquires this Option by will or the laws of
descent and distribution or otherwise by reason of your death) during a period of twelve (12) months following your death if you die during such three-
month period.

4. Non-Transferability. The Option, and any rights or interests therein, may not be transferred in any manner except by will or the laws of
descent and distribution or to the extent approved by the Committee in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

5. Compliance with Law. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the grant of the Option and the issuance of
Common Stock will be subject to compliance with all applicable requirements of United States federal, state, and foreign securities laws and with the
requirements of any stock exchange or market system upon which the Common Stock may then be listed. The Option may not be exercised if the
issuance of shares of Common Stock upon exercise would constitute a violation of any applicable United States federal, state, or foreign securities
laws or other law or regulations or the requirements of any stock exchange or market system upon which the Common Stock may then be listed. In
addition, the Option may not be exercised unless (1) a registration statement under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act’), is at the
time of exercise of the Option in effect with respect to the shares issuable upon exercise of the Option or (2) in the opinion of legal counsel to the
Company, the shares issuable upon exercise of the Option may be issued in accordance with the terms of an applicable exemption from the
registration requirements of the Act. YOU ARE CAUTIONED THAT THE OPTION MAY NOT BE EXERCISED UNLESS THE FOREGOING
CONDITIONS ARE SATISFIED. ACCORDINGLY, YOU MAY NOT BE ABLE TO EXERCISE THE OPTION WHEN DESIRED EVEN THOUGH THE
OPTION IS VESTED. The inability of the Company to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction the authority, if any, deemed by the
Company’s legal counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any shares subject to the Option will relieve the Company of any liability
in respect of the failure to issue or sell such shares as to which such requisite authority has not been obtained. As a condition to the exercise of the
Option, the Company may require you to satisfy any qualifications that may be necessary or appropriate to evidence compliance with any applicable
law or regulation and to make any representation or warranty with respect to such compliance as may be requested by the Company.

6. Extension if Exercise Prevented by Law. Notwithstanding Section 3, if the exercise of the Option within the applicable time periods set
forth in Section 3 is prevented by

the provisions of Section 5, the Option will remain exercisable until 30 days after the date you are notified by the Company that the Option is
exercisable, but in any event no later than the Expiration Date. The Company makes no representation as to the tax consequences of any such
delayed exercise. You should consult with your own tax advisor as to the tax consequences of any such delayed exercise.
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7. Extension if You are Subject to Section 16(b). Notwithstanding Section 3, if a sale within the applicable time periods set forth in
Section 3 of shares acquired upon the exercise of the Option would subject you to suit under Section 16(b) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, the Option will remain exercisable until the earliest to occur of (1) the 10th day following the date on which a sale of such shares
by you would no longer be subject to such suit, (2) the 190th day after your termination of Service with the Company and any Affiliate, or (3) the
Expiration Date. The Company makes no representation as to the tax consequences of any such delayed exercise. You should consult with your own
tax advisor as to the tax consequences of any such delayed exercise.

8. Withholding Taxes. The Committee may, in its discretion, require you to pay to the Company at the time of the exercise of an Option or
thereafter, the amount that the Committee deems necessary to satisfy the Company’s current or future obligation to withhold United States federal,
state, local, foreign income or other taxes that you incur by exercising an Option. In connection with such an event requiring tax withholding, you may
(a) direct the Company to withhold from the shares of Common Stock to be issued to you the number of shares necessary to satisfy the Company’s
obligation to withhold taxes, that determination to be based on the shares’ Fair Market Value as of the date of exercise; (b) deliver to the Company
sufficient shares of Common Stock (based upon the Fair Market Value as of the date of such delivery) to satisfy the Company’s tax withholding
obligation; or (c) deliver sufficient cash to the Company to satisfy its tax withholding obligations. If you elect to use a Common Stock withholding
feature you must make the election at the time and in the manner that the Committee prescribes. The Committee may, at its sole option, deny your
request to satisfy withholding obligations through shares of Common Stock instead of cash. In the event the Committee subsequently determines that
the aggregate Fair Market Value (as determined above) of any shares of Common Stock withheld or delivered as payment of any tax withholding
obligation is insufficient to discharge that tax withholding obligation, then you shall pay to the Company, immediately upon the Committee’s request,
the amount of that deficiency in the form of payment requested by the Committee.

9. Status of Common Stock. With respect to the status of the Common Stock, at the time of execution of this Agreement you understand
and agree to all of the following:

(®) You agree that the shares of Common Stock that you may acquire by exercising this Option will not be sold or otherwise disposed
of in any manner that would constitute a violation of any applicable securities laws, whether federal, state, local or foreign. You also agree that the
certificates representing the shares of Common Stock purchased under this Option may bear such legend or legends as the Committee deems
appropriate to assure compliance with applicable securities laws.

(b) You agree that (1) the Company may refuse to register the transfer of the shares of Common Stock purchased under this Option
on the stock transfer records of the Company if such proposed transfer would in the opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Company constitute a
violation of any applicable securities law and (2) the Company may give related instructions to its transfer agent, if any, to stop registration of the
transfer of the shares of Common Stock purchased under this Option.

10. Notice of Sales Upon Disqualifying_Disposition of ISO. If the Option is designated as an Incentive Stock Option in the Notice of
Grant, you must comply with the provisions of this Section. You must promptly notify the Company in writing if you dispose of any of the shares
acquired pursuant to the Option within one year after the date you exercise all or part of the Option or within two years after the Date of Grant. Until
such time as you dispose of such shares in a manner consistent with the provisions of this Agreement, unless otherwise expressly authorized by the
Company, you must hold all shares acquired pursuant to the Option in your name (and not in the name of any nominee) for the one-year period
immediately after the exercise of the Option and the two-year period immediately after the Date of Grant. At any time during the one-year or two-year
periods set forth above, the Company may place a legend on any certificate representing shares acquired pursuant to the Option requesting the
transfer agent for the Company’s stock to notify the Company of any such transfers. Your obligation to notify the Company of any such transfer will
continue notwithstanding that a legend has been placed on the certificate pursuant to the preceding sentence.

11. Right to Terminate Services. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall confer upon you the right to continue in the employ of or
performing services for the Company or any Affiliate, or interfere in any way with the rights of the Company or any Affiliate to terminate your
employment or service relationship at any time.
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12. Furnish Information. You agree to furnish to the Company all information requested by the Company to enable it to comply with any
reporting or other requirement imposed upon the Company by or under any applicable statute or regulation. You further agree to notify the Company
upon any change in the residence address indicated on the Notice of Grant.

13. Dispute Resolution. The provisions of this Section shall be the exclusive means of resolving disputes arising out of or relating to the
Notice of Grant, the Plan, the Option and this Agreement. The Company, you, and your assignees pursuant to Sections 3 and 4 (the “parties”) shall
attempt in good faith to resolve any disputes arising out of or relating to the Notice of Grant, the Plan, the Option and this Agreement by negotiation
between individuals who have authority to settle the controversy. Negotiations shall be commenced by either party by notice of a written statement of
the party’s position and the name and title of the individual who will represent the party. Within thirty (30) days of the written notification, the parties
shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to resolve the dispute.

Any controversy, dispute or claim that has not been settled by negotiation within thirty (30) days of the written notification as set forth above
shall be finally settled by arbitration under

the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) by three arbitrators. In such event, the claimant will deliver a written
notice to the respondent(s) and the AAA initiating arbitration and naming an arbitrator. Within twenty (20) days after receipt of such arbitration notice,
the respondent(s) shall name an arbitrator. Within twenty (20) days from the naming of the two arbitrators, the two arbitrators shall name a third
arbitrator. If there are multiple claimants and/or multiple respondents, all claimants and/or all respondents shall attempt to agree upon naming their
respective arbitrator. If the claimants or respondents, as the case may be, fail to name their respective arbitrator, or if the two arbitrators fail to name a
third arbitrator, or if within twenty (20) days after any arbitrator shall resign or otherwise cease to serve as such a replacement arbitrator is not named
by the party that originally named such arbitrator, such arbitrator as to which agreement cannot be reached or as to which a timely appointment is not
made shall be named by the AAA. The place of arbitration shall be Austin, Texas. The award of the arbitrators may be entered in any court of
competent jurisdiction. The costs of the arbitration shall be shared by the disputing parties equally. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the
arbitrators shall not award nor shall the Company have any liability for any consequential, punitive, special, incidental, indirect or similar damages.

14. Notices. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effectively given upon personal
delivery or upon deposit in the United States mail by certified mail (if the parties are in the United States) or upon deposit for delivery by an
internationally recognized express mail courier service (for international delivery of notice), with postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the other
party at its address as such party may designate in writing from time to time to the other party.

15. No Advice Regarding_Option. The Company is not providing any tax, legal, or financial advice with respect to the Option, your
participation in the Plan, or the acquisition or sale of any Common Stock attributable to the Option. You are hereby advised to consult with your own
personal tax, legal, and financial advisors regarding participation in the Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.

16. No Liability for Good Faith Determinations. The Company and the members of the Committee and the Board shall not be liable for
any act, omission or determination taken or made in good faith with respect to this Agreement or the Option granted hereunder.

17. Execution of Receipts and Releases. Any payment of cash or any issuance or transfer of shares of Common Stock or other property
to you, or to your legal representative, heir, legatee or distributee, in accordance with the provisions hereof, shall, to the extent thereof, be in full
satisfaction of all claims of such persons hereunder. The Company may require you or your legal representative, heir, legatee or distributee, as a
condition precedent to such payment or issuance, to execute a release and receipt therefor in such form as it shall determine.

18. No Guarantee of Interests. The Board and the Company do not guarantee the Common Stock of the Company from loss or
depreciation.
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19. Company Records. Records of the Company regarding your Service and other matters shall be conclusive for all purposes hereunder,
unless determined by the Company to be incorrect.

20. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon you, your legal representatives, heirs, legatees and distributees, and upon the
Company, its successors and assigns.

21.  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the
remaining provisions hereof, but such provision shall be fully severable and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid
provision had never been included herein.

22. Headings. The titles and headings of paragraphs are included for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered in
construction of the provisions hereof.

23. Governing Law. All questions arising with respect to the provisions of this Agreement shall be determined by application of the laws of
the State of Delaware, without giving any effect to any conflict of law provisions thereof, except to the extent Delaware law is preempted by United
States federal law. The obligation of the Company to sell and deliver Common Stock hereunder is subject to applicable laws and to the approval of
any governmental authority required in connection with the authorization, issuance, sale, or delivery of such Common Stock.

24. Electronic Delivery and Participation. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related to the Option
granted under the Plan or future options that may be granted under the Plan by electronic means or to request your consent to participate in the Plan
by electronic means. You hereby consent to receive such documents by electronic delivery and agree to participate in the Plan through an on-line or
electronic system established and maintained by the Company or a third party designated by the Company.

25. Word Usage. Words used in the masculine shall apply to the feminine where applicable, and wherever the context of this Agreement
dictates, the plural shall be read as the singular and the singular as the plural.

26. Non-U.S. Participants and U.S. Participants Employed by a U.K. Affiliate. To the extent that you are a citizen or resident of a country
other than the United States, this Agreement is deemed to include and, as applicable, be revised and supplemented by the provisions of Exhibit A that
apply to Participants outside the United States generally and to Participants located in the jurisdictions set forth therein. If you are a U.S citizen or
resident but are employed by a U.K. Affiliate, this Agreement is deemed to include and, as applicable, be revised and supplemented by the provisions
of Section B.1 of Exhibit A.

27. Miscellaneous.

(®) This Agreement is subject to all the terms, conditions, limitations and restrictions contained in the Plan. In the event of any conflict
or inconsistency between the terms hereof and the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall be controlling.

(b) The Option may be amended by the Board or by the Committee at any time (i) if the Board or the Committee determines, in its
sole discretion, that amendment is necessary or advisable in light of any addition to or change in any United States federal, state, local, or foreign, tax
or securities law or other law or regulation, which change occurs after the Date of Grant and by its terms applies to the Option; or (ii) other than in the
circumstances described in clause (i) or provided in the Plan, with your consent.

(c) If this Option is designated as an Incentive Stock Option in the Notice of Grant, then in the event the Option Shares (and all other
options granted to you by the Company or any parent of the Company or subsidiary that are designated as incentive stock options within the meaning
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of section 422 of the Code) that first become exercisable in any calendar year have an aggregate fair market value (determined for each Option Share
as of the Date of Grant) that exceeds $100,000, the Option Shares in excess of $100,000 shall be treated as subject to a Nonstatutory Stock Option.

By your signature below, or by your electronic acceptance of this Agreement, you agree to all the terms and conditions of the Option, the Plan,
and this Agreement. You acknowledge that you have had the opportunity to review the Plan and this Agreement in their entirety and to obtain the
advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement. You agree to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the
Committee upon any questions relating to the Option, the Plan, or this Agreement.

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

Signature of Participant

Printed Name of Participant

Date:

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR
PARTICIPANTS OUTSIDE THE U.S. AND U.S. PARTICIPANTS EMPLOYED BY A U.K. AFFILIATE

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Parts A and B of this Exhibit A, which are part of the Cirrus Logic, Inc. Stock Option Agreement (the “Agreement”), include special terms and
conditions that govern the Option granted to Participants based outside of the United States and in the particular jurisdictions mentioned herein.
Further, Section B.1 of this Exhibit A includes special terms and conditions that apply to you if you are a U.S citizen or U.S. resident but are employed
by a U.K. Affiliate. Unless otherwise defined in this Exhibit A, any capitalized terms used but not defined in this Exhibit A shall have the same
meanings given to them in the Agreement and/or the Plan, as applicable.

NOTIFICATIONS

This Exhibit A also includes information regarding securities, exchange control, tax and certain other issues of which the Participant should be
aware with respect to his or her participation in the Plan. The information is based on the securities, exchange control, tax and other laws in effect in
the respective jurisdictions as of July 2018. Such laws are complex and subject to change. As a result, the Company strongly recommends that the
Participant not rely on the information in this Exhibit A as the only source of information relating to the consequences of his or her participation in the
Plan because such information may be outdated at the time the Option vests or is exercised or the Participant sells any shares of Common Stock
issued pursuant to the Option.

In addition, the information contained in this Exhibit A is general in nature and may not apply to the Participant's particular situation. The
Company is not in a position to assure the Participant of any particular result. Accordingly, the Participant should seek appropriate professional advice
as to how the relevant laws apply to the Participant’s situation.

If the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which he or she is currently residing and/or working (or is considered
as such for local law purposes), or if the Participant transfers employment and/or residency after the Date of Grant, the terms and conditions and
information contained herein may not be applicable to the Participant in the same manner. The Company shall, in its sole discretion, determine to what
extent the terms and conditions contained herein shall apply to the Participant in such a case.
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A. TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL NON-U.S. JURISDICTIONS

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. Responsibility for Taxes. The following provisions replace Section 8 of the Agreement:

The Participant acknowledges that, regardless of any action taken by the Company, or, if different, the Participant’'s employer (the “Employer”),
the ultimate liability for all income tax, social insurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to the
Participant’s participation in the Plan and legally applicable to the Participant as a result of participation in the Plan (“Tax-Related Items”) is and
remains the Participant's responsibility and may exceed the amount (if any) withheld by the Company or the Employer. The Participant further
acknowledges that the Company and the Employer (a) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related ltems
and (b) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the terms of the grant or any aspect of the Option to reduce or eliminate the
Participant’s liability for Tax-Related ltems or achieve any particular tax result. Further, if the Participant is subject to Tax-Related Items in more than
one jurisdiction, the Participant acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold
or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.

Prior to any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant shall pay or make arrangements satisfactory to the
Company to enable the Company and the Employer to fulfill any withholding obligation for Tax-Related Items. In this regard, the Participant authorizes
the Company and/or the Employer, or their respective agents, to withhold all applicable Tax-Related Items by one or a combination of the following
methods:

i. withholding from the Participant's wages or other cash compensation otherwise payable to the Participant by the Company and/or the
Employer; and/or

ii. requiring the Participant to tender a payment in cash (or the cash equivalent) in an amount equal to the Tax-Related Items to the Company or
its designee; and/or

withholding from the proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired upon exercise of the Option either through a voluntary sale or
through a mandatory sale arranged by the Company (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this authorization without further consent).

The Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering applicable minimum statutory withholding rates or other applicable
withholding rates, including up to the maximum applicable rate in the Participant’s jurisdiction in which case the Participant may receive a refund of
any over-withheld amount in cash without interest, and will not be entitled to the equivalment amount in shares.

The Company may refuse to issue shares of Common Stock upon exercise of the Option or may refuse to deliver the proceeds of the sale of such
shares if the Participant fails to comply with his or her obligations in connection with the Tax-Related Items as described in this Section.

2. Nature of Grant. In accepting the grant of the Option, the Participant acknowledges, understands and agrees that:

(@) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, is discretionary in nature and may be modified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, unless otherwise provided in the Plan and the Agreement;

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 116/141

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

(b) the grant of the Option is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive future Options, or
benefits in lieu of Options, even if Options have been granted in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to any such future Options, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(d) the Participant’s participation in the Plan does not provide the Participant with benefits outside of the Plan;

(e) the Participant’s participation in the Plan is voluntary;

® the Option and the shares of Common Stock subject to the Option, and the income from and value of same, are an extraordinary
item of compensation which is outside the scope of the Participant’'s employment contract, if any;

(g) the Option and the shares of Common Stock subject to the Option and the income from and value of same are not part of normal
or expected compensation or salary for any purposes, including, but not limited to, calculating any severance, resignation, redundancy, holiday pay,
dismissal, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments, and in no event
should be considered as compensation for, or relating in any way to, past services for the Company or any Affiliate;

(h)  the Option the shares of Common Stock subject to the Option and the income from and value of same, are not intended to
replace any pension rights or be granted as compensation or as a bonus for past service;

0] unless otherwise agreed with the Company, the Option and the shares of Common Stock subject to the Option, and the income
from and value of same, are not granted as consideration for, or in connection with, any service the Participant may provide as a director of an
Affiliate;

) the future value of the shares of Common Stock subject to the Option is unknown, indeterminable and cannot be predicted with
certainty; if the Participant exercises the Option and obtains shares, the value of those shares may increase or decrease, even below the Exercise
Price; if the underlying shares do not increase in value, the Option will have no value;

(k) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Option resulting from the Participant’s
termination of employment by the Company (for any reason whatsoever and whether or not in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the
Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any).

0} for purposes of the Option, the Participant’'s status as an Eligible Person will be considered terminated as of the date the
Participant is no longer actively providing services to the Company or one of its Affiliates (regardless of the reason for such termination and whether or
not later to be found invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant's
employment agreement, if any) and, unless expressly provided in the Agreement or determined by the Company, the Participant’s right to vest in the
Option under the Plan, if any, will terminate as of such date and will not be extended by any notice period (e.g., the Participant’s period of service
would not include any contractual notice period or any period of “garden leave” or similar period mandated under employment laws in the jurisdiction
where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any); the Committee shall have the exclusive discretion
to determine when the Participant is no longer actively providing services for purposes of the Option; and

(m) neither the Company, the Employer nor any Affiliate shall be liable for any exchange rate fluctuation between the Participant’s
local currency and the United States Dollar that may affect the value of the Option or of any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the vesting and
settlement of the Option or the subsequent sale of any shares of Stock acquired upon exercise.

3. Data Privacy.Certain personal information about the Participant, including, but not limited to, the Participant's name, home address and
telephone number, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title, any shares of stock or
directorships held in the Company, details of all Restricted Stock Units or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, settled,
exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the Participant's favor (“Personal Data”) will be collected, processed and transferred by and
among, as applicable, the Employer and the Company and its other Affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and
managing participation in the Plan, in furtherance of their legitimate business interests, and where necessary to comply with their legal
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obligations. The Participant hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the
Participant's personal data as described in this document and any other Option materials by and among, as applicable, the Employer and the
Company and its other Affiliates for the above purposes.

Personal Data will also be transferred to certain independent service providers engaged in connection with the implementation, administration and
management of the Plan, including Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC (trading as E*Trade), and Computershare Limited. Further information on the
Company's basis for the processing, transfer and safeguarding of Personal

Data, is detailed in the Company’s Stock Plan Privacy Notice. The Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer
the Personal Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing participation in the Plan. The Stock Plan
Privacy Notice, which Participants should read prior to accepting any Option, is available to Participants via their E¥Trade accounts, or can otherwise
be viewed, together with applicable Employer Data Protection Policies and employee Privacy Notices, on the Company intranet. Copies of all such
policies or notices can also be obtained, on request, from the Company’s Legal Department.

The Participant understands that he or she is providing the consents herein on a purely voluntary basis. If the Participant does not consent, or later
seeks to revoke consent, the Participant's employment status or service with the Employer will not be affected; the only consequence of refusing or
withdrawing consent is that the Company would not be able to grant the Option or other equity awards to the Participant or administer or maintain
such awards. Therefore, the Participant understands that withdrawal of consent may affect the Participant's ability to participate in the Plan or to
realize benefits from the Option.

Finally, if applicable and upon request of the Company, the Participant agrees to provide any other executed acknowledgement or data privacy
consent form (or any other acknowledgements, agreements or consents) that the Company and/or the Employer may deem necessary to obtain under
the data privacy laws in the Participant’s country, either now or in the future. The Participant understands that he or she will not be able to participate
in the Plan if he or she fails to execute any such acknowledgement, agreement or consent requested by the Company and/or the Employer.

4. Dispute Resolution. The following provisions replace Section 13 of the Agreement:

The provisions of this Section shall be the exclusive means of resolving disputes arising out of or relating to the Option, the Notice of Grant, the Plan,
and this Agreement. The Company, the Participant, and his or her assignees (the “parties”) shall attempt in good faith to resolve any disputes arising
out of or relating to the Option, the Notice of Grant, the Plan, and this Agreement by negotiation between individuals who have authority to settle the
controversy. Negotiations shall be commenced by either party by notice of a written statement of the party’s position and the name and title of the
individual who will represent the party. Within thirty (30) days of the written notification, the parties shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place,
and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to resolve the dispute.

Any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be resolved by binding and non-appealable arbitration under the rules of the International Centre for
Dispute Resolution (“ICDR”). The arbitration shall be conducted by a single arbitrator chosen by the parties or, if the parties cannot agree upon a
single arbitrator within thirty (30) days, then by a single arbitrator appointed by the ICDR. The arbitration shall take place Austin, Texas, U.S.A., and
shall be conducted in the English language. The arbitration costs shall be divided such that each party shall pay its own attorney’s fees and any other
costs shall be borne equally by the parties.
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5. Language. If the Participant has received this Agreement or any other document related to the Plan translated into a language other than
English and if the translated version is different than the English version, the English version will control.

6. Imposition of Other Requirements.The Company reserves the right to impose other requirements on the Participant’s participation in the
Plan, on the Option and on any shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan, to the extent the Company determines it is necessary or
advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require the Participant to sign any additional agreements or undertakings that may be
necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

2 Foreign Asset/Account Reporting_Requirements. The Participant acknowledges that there may be certain foreign asset and/or account
reporting requirements which may affect the Participant’s ability to acquire or hold shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan or cash
received from participating in the Plan (including from any dividends paid on shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) in a brokerage
or bank account outside the Participant’s country. The Participant may be required to report such accounts, assets or transactions to the tax or
other authorities in the Participant’s country. The Participant also may be required to repatriate sale proceeds or other funds received as a result
of participating in the Plan to the Participant’s country through a designated bank or broker within a certain time after receipt. The Participant
acknowledges that it is his or her responsibility to be compliant with such regulations, and the Participant is advised to speak to his or her
personal advisor on this matter.

8. Insider Trading Restrictions/Market Abuse Laws. The Participant may be subject to insider trading restrictions and/or market abuse laws in
applicable jurisdictions including, but not limited to, the United States and Participant's country, which may affect his or her ability to acquire or
sell shares of Common Stock or rights to shares of Common Stock under the Plan during such times as the Participant is considered to have
“inside information” regarding the Company (as defined by the laws in the applicable jurisdictions). Any restrictions under these laws or
regulations are separate from and in addition to any restrictions that may be imposed under any applicable Company insider trading policy. The
Participant acknowledges that it is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with any applicable restrictions, and that the Participant should
speak to his or her personal advisor on this matter.

B. JURISDICTION-SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

1. EUROPEAN UNION/EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA/UNITED KINGDOM AND U.S. BASED EMPLOYEES OF A U.K. AFFILIATE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Data Privacy. The following provisions replace the Data Privacy section (A.3) of this Exhibit A:

Certain personal information about the Participant, including, but not limited to, the Participant's name, home address and telephone number, date of
birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title, any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company,
details of all Options or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, settled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the
Participant's favor (“Personal Data”) will be collected, processed and transferred by and among, as applicable, the Employer and the Company and
its other Affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing participation in the Plan, in furtherance of their legitimate
business interests, and where necessary to comply with their legal obligations. Personal Data will also be transferred to certain independent service
providers engaged in connection with the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, including Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC
(trading as “E*Trade”), and Computershare Limited. Further information on the Company's basis for the processing, transfer and safeguarding of
Personal Data, is detailed in the Company’s Stock Plan Privacy Notice which Participants should read prior to accepting any Option. This Stock Plan
Privacy Notice is available to Participants via their E*Trade accounts, or can otherwise be viewed, together with applicable Employer Data Protection
Policies and employee Privacy Notices, on the Company intranet. Copies of all such policies or notices can also be obtained, on request, from the
Company’s Legal Department.

Fkk
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2. AUSTRALIA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Nature of Plan. The Plan is a plan to which Subdivision 83A-C of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (Cth) applies (subject to the conditions in that
Act).

NOTIFICATIONS

Securities Law Information. If the Participant acquires shares of Common Stock under the Plan and offers the Shares for sale to a person or entity
resident in Australia, the offer may be subject to disclosure requirements under Australian law. The Participant should obtain legal advice regarding
any applicable disclosure obligations before making any such offer in Australia.

*kk

3. FINLAND
There are no country-specific provisions.
sk
4. HONG KONG
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Exercise. The following provision supplements Section 2 of the Agreement:

If, for any reason, the Option is exercised and shares of Common Stock are issued to the Participant within six (6) months of the Date of Grant, the
Participant agrees that the Participant will not dispose of the shares of Common Stock prior to the six-month anniversary of the Date of Grant.

NOTIFICATIONS

Securities Law Information. This offer of the Option and the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon exercise of the Option are available only to
Participants (as defined in the Plan) and are not a public offer of securities. The Agreement (including thisExhibit A), the Plan and other
communication materials associated with the offer have not beenprepared in accordance with and are not intended to constitute a “prospectus” for a
publicoffering of securities under the applicable securities legislation in Hong Kong, nor have thedocuments been reviewed by any regulatory authority
in Hong Kong. The Agreement and anyrelated documentation are intended only for the personal use of each Participant and may not be distributed to
anyother person. The Participant is advised to exercise caution in relation to the offer. If the Participant is in anydoubt about any of the contents of the
offer documents, the Participant should obtain independent professional advice.

5. PHILIPPINES
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Exercise. The following provisions supplement Section 2 of the Agreement:

No shares of Common Stock will be issued upon exercise of the Option unless the issuance of shares complies with all applicable laws and
regulations as determined by the Company. The risks of participating in the Plan include (without limitation) the risk of fluctuation in the price of
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the shares of Common Stock on the Nasdag Stock Exchange and the risk of currency fluctuations between the U.S. Dollar and the Participant's local
currency. The value of any shares of Common Stock that may be acquired under the Plan may decrease below the value of the shares of Common
Stock at exercise or below the Exercise Price and fluctuations in foreign exchange rates between the Participant's local currency and the U.S. Dollar
may affect the value of any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the subsequent sale of any shares of Common Stock acquired upon exercise.
The Company is not making any representations, projections or assurances about the value of the shares of Common Stock now or in the future.

For further information on risk factors impacting the Company’s business that may affect the value of the shares of Common Stock, the Participant
may refer to the risk factors discussion in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, which are filed with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and are available online at www.sec.gov as well as on the Company’s “Investor Relations” website at

https://investor.cirrus.com/home/default.aspx.

The Participant is permitted to sell shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan through the Plan broker appointed by the Company (currently,
E*Trade) or such other broker to whom the Participant may transfer the shares of Common Stock, provided that such sale takes place outside of the
Philippines through the facilities of the Nasdaq Stock Exchange on which the shares of Common Stock are listed.

6. SOUTH KOREA
NOTIFICATIONS

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting_Information. Korean residents must declare all foreign financial accounts (e.g., brokerage accounts, bank
accounts) to the Korean tax authorities and file a report with respect to such accounts if the value of such accounts exceeds KRW 1 billion on any
month-end date during the calendar year. The Participant should consult with his or her personal tax advisor to ensure compliance with applicable
reporting obligations.

*k%k

7. SPAIN
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Nature of Grant.The following provisions supplement the Nature of Grant section of this Exhibit A:
By accepting the Option, the Participant consents to participate in the Plan and acknowledges having received a copy of the Plan.

The Participant understands that, as a condition of the grant of the Option, the termination of the Participant’s employment for any reason will
automatically result in the forfeiture of any and all portions of the Option that have not vested as of the date of termination and in the commencement
of the post-termination exercise period of any vested portion of the Option. In particular, the Participant understands and agrees that any unvested
portion of the Option (and any unexercised portion of the Option after the end of the post-termination exercise period) will be forfeited without
entittement to the underlying shares of Common Stock or to any amount as indemnification in the event of a termination of the Participant’'s
employment by reason of, including, but not limited to: death, disability, resignation, retirement, disciplinary dismissal adjudged to be with cause,
disciplinary dismissal adjudged or recognized to be without cause, individual or collective layoff on objective grounds, whether adjudged to be with
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cause or adjudged or recognized to be without cause, material modification of the terms of employment under Article 41 of the Workers’ Statute,
relocation under Article 40 of the Workers’ Statute, Article 50 of the Workers’ Statute, unilateral withdrawal by the Employer, and under Article 10.3 of
Royal Decree 1382/1985.

Furthermore, the Participant understands that the Company has unilaterally, gratuitously and discretionally decided to grant the Option under the Plan
to individuals who may be Eligible Persons throughout the world. The decision is a limited decision that is entered into upon the express assumption
and condition that any grant will not economically or otherwise bind the Company or any Affiliate on an ongoing basis (other than as set forth in this
Agreement and the Plan). Consequently, the Participant understands that the Option is granted on the assumption and condition that the Option and
the related shares of Common Stock shall not become a part of any employment or contract (either with the Company or any Affiliate) and shall not be
considered a mandatory benefit, salary for any purposes (including severance compensation) or any other right whatsoever. In addition, the
Participant understands that the grant of the Option would not be made to the Participant but for the assumptions and conditions referred to above;
thus, the Participant acknowledges and freely accepts that should any or all of the assumptions be mistaken or should any of the conditions not be
met for any reason, then the grant of the Option shall be null and void.

NOTIFICATIONS

Securities Law Information.No “offer of securities to the public,” as defined under Spanish law, has taken place or will take place in the Spanish
territory in connection with the grant of the Option under the Plan. This Agreement and the Plan have not been nor will they be registered with the
Comisién Nacional del Mercado de Valores, and do not constitute a public offering prospectus.

Exchange Control Information.The Participant must declare the acquisition, ownership and disposition of stock in a foreign company (including
shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) to the Spanish Direccion General de Comercio e Inversiones (the “DGCI"), the Bureau for
Commerce and Investments, which is a department of the Ministry of Economy and Competitiveness, for statistical purposes. Generally, the
declaration must be filed in January for Shares acquired or sold during (or owned as of December 31) the prior year; however, if the value of the
shares acquired under the Plan or the amount of the sale proceeds exceeds €1,502,530, the declaration must be filed within one month of the
acquisition or sale, as applicable.

The Participant may be required to declare electronically to the Bank of Spain any foreign accounts (including brokerage accounts held abroad), any
foreign instruments (including shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan), and any transactions with non-Spanish residents (including any
payment of cash or shares of Common Stock made by the Company) depending on the value of the transactions during the relevant year or the
balances in such accounts and the value of such instruments as of December 31 of the relevant year. The Participant should consult with his or her
personal legal advisor regarding the applicable thresholds and corresponding reporting requirements.

Foreign Asset/ Account Reporting_Information. The Participant is required to report assets or rights deposited or held outside of Spain (including
the shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan or cash proceeds from the sale of the shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) if the
value per type of asset or right exceeds a certain threshold. This obligation applies to assets and rights held as of December 31 and requires that
information on such assets and rights be included in the Participant’s tax return filed with the Spanish tax authorities for such year. After such assets
or rights are initially reported, the reporting obligation will apply for subsequent years only if the value of any previously reported asset or right
increases by more than a certain threshold or if ownership of such asset or right is transferred or relinquished during the year. The Participant should
consult with his or her personal tax advisor regarding the applicable thresholds and corresponding reporting requirements.
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8. SWEDEN
There are no country-specific provisions.
ok

9. TAIWAN
NOTIFICATIONS

Securities Law Information. The grant of the Option (and the issuance, if any, of the underlying shares) is available only to Eligible Persons. It is not
a public offer of securities by a Taiwanese company. Therefore, it is exempt from registration in Taiwan.

Exchange Control Information. The Participant may remit foreign currency (including proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock and the
receipt of any dividends) into Taiwan with a transaction amount of up to US$5,000,000 per year. If the transaction amount is TWD500,000 or more in a
single transaction, the Participant must submit a foreign exchange transaction form and also provide supporting documentation to the satisfaction of
the handling bank.

If the transaction amount is US$500,000 or more, the Participant may be required to provide additional supporting documentation to the satisfaction of
the bank. The Participant should consult with his or her personal advisor to ensure compliance with applicable exchange control laws in Taiwan.

10. UNITED KINGDOM
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Responsibility for Taxes. The following provisions supplement the Responsibility for Taxes section of this Exhibit A:

Without limitation to the foregoing provisions, the Participant hereby agrees that the Participant is liable for all Tax-Related Items and hereby
covenants to pay all such Tax-Related Items, as and when requested by the Company or if different, the Employer or by Her Majesty’s Revenue &
Customs (“HMRC”) (or any other tax authority or any other relevant authority). The Participant also hereby agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified
the Company and, if different, the Employer against any Tax-Related Items that they are required to pay or withhold or have paid or will pay to HMRC
(or any other tax authority or any other relevant authority) on the Participant’s behalf.

However, if the Participant is a director or executive officer of the Company (within the meaning of Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act), the terms of the
immediately foregoing provision will not

apply. In the event that the Participant is a director or executive officer of the Company and the income tax is not collected from or paid by the
Participant within ninety (90) days of the end of the U.K. tax year in which an event giving rise to the indemnification described above occurs, the
amount of any uncollected income tax may constitute a benefit to the Participant on which additional income tax and National Insurance contributions
(“NICs”) may be payable. The Participant will be responsible for reporting and paying any income tax due on this additional benefit directly to HMRC
under the self-assessment regime and for paying to the Company and/or the Employer (as appropriate) the amount of any employee NICs due on this
additional benefit.
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June 3, 2004
(as amended and restated on February 27, 2023 February 26, 2024)
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Version

02.27.20231. -i- Ethics and Compliance 1
Il Confidential Information 2
Il. Conflicts of Interest and Corporate Opportunities 3
V. Fair Dealing 4

. 2. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Information on the Com\{)'any’s activitie%,ogggpe®gg,t !‘:\Ql\ée%%%ggsn sEiata is proprietary. Confidential ir51formation includes all non-public
information that might be of use to the Company’s competitors, or harmful to the Company or the Company’s customers, if disclosed. We believe
that our confidential information'dnd data are iMISOHERI BEAFBIAEOR sets in the operation of our business and prohibit the use or disclosure of this
information, except when disclosure is authorized or legally mandated. You must be careful not to disclose confidential information to unauthorized
persons, either inside or outside\fhe Company, GhusjomensSeneptice and Oqnopetitoe Belédemiality of inform&ion received from any other party.

To protect this mformatlorqnlhl.s CompanyEp)?FI)l%)ht (t):ntrols 9

« Confidential information of the Company should be disclosed within the Company only on a need-to-know basis.

IX. Public Company Reportinq1 9
« Confidential information of the Company should be disclosed outside the Company only when required by law or when necessary to further

the Company’s business_activities and II?( acco(rjdﬁ)ﬁce with the Company’s disclosure guidelines. Any diaclosure of confidential information
. o ecor argﬁgerqfnt
outside the Company must'be pursuant to an approved Non-Disclosure Agreement.

Concerns with respect toxdonfidential infR@ugiatingayranmsaiotibasecurities area as well. For informatio® on what to do in these situations,
see the Company’s Policy on Insider Trading and Confidentiality that is accessible on the Company’s intranet. If you believe you have a legal

obligation to disclose confidentia}jpformation, yppsghqulg %@I&fmg@mwmsg%to doing so. 10
Patents, Copyrights, Trademarks and Proprietary Information
XIII. Delegation of Authority 11
Protection of the Company’s intellectual property, including its trade secrets, pending patent information, scientific and technical knowledge,

know-how, and the experience Xjpyeloped in tmom'm'mgfah@j Coifpanraastivities, is essential to maintainingjour competitive advantage. This
information should be protected by all Company personnel and should not be disclosed to outsiders.

] XV _ Reporting Violations ] ] 11 ) o
Much of the information we develop in research, production, marketing, sales, legal, and finance is original in nature and its protection is

essential to our continued success. This information should be safeguarded. Trade secrets may consist of all forms and types of financial, business,
scientific, technical, economic, é\élngineering &8“%%%%@%@9&0@& to reasonable measures to keep such lt]r%ormation secret and that derives
economic value from not being generally known to another person who could benefit from the disclosure or use of the information. This information

is confidential and should be proteétkd by all cAvpaRdBAGIbydbadifieationsMdaien dntiderairatentiabugh inadvertent or improper disclosure
could be harmful to the Company. Provisions of Code 13

Version 02.26.2024 2

Version 02.27.2023 '2'

CORPORATE CODE OF CONDUCT

L1 No 1 RN SRR NCE
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Cirrus Logic, Inc. and its affiliates (“we” or the “Company”) isare committed to promoting integrity, honesty, and professionalism and
maintalnifgehming s e Balyaeisyou stsitalreaniiadt tin signodnhag Cemeat \conistivitie 3/ onh @ laigatinmyist dasilisclo ssudte SSom prRimEadHtfidansat
refouinagtanidpatteyhite ¥ad dstressgloyadranstafteriyasieamathhLampayhdsiedeyalbrdsteddynanct sampiotgspmadfithegagmpanysavyioyeas
bothawtsamaodf byedabdirectssential éonibieyaseteativnovir tbissiofaeratioeditors, stockholders, suppliers, governmental officials, fellow employees, and
members of the general public. In this regard, we have established this written set of policies dealing with the rules and policies of conduct to be

used in conducting the business affairs of the Company.
You should be especially mindful in your use of phones, email, and other electronic means of storing and transmitting information.

This document does not cover all Company policies or all laws. Please refer to the Company'’s intranet for additional policies adopted by the
Company. In addition, if a local law conflicts with a policy in this Code, then you must comply with the law; if a local custom or practice conflicts with

this ColiR" tABAYHIHELBMMATIIAARIE S16Re!rRGIEHE it SRR S SqBfidemtial IBIRSmEiSvaChos BXATEBlRicetRRAHIL EBkdiruss, Brtaal
EHRTBA AR, i eRiersy YIRS of SRILRRIES ofSUBIIRRSs BBRANES: [AKEADS: BlPioRIRSH VRSP KRN DR QURHERFinBRt Jaab RSN D)
FARPRENERIP: PHRLS PIRFR3.%K AlfeRrtibem BRSO FRRBE"e3rSuRA PN thiRoEIsAY S confiteniipkdos umemtii AR Rds Ao R Anshogt
laa), RBTEABIRL ISR RRNSL WA G UG HaaMiE R 8l s AR YRY SRR b PR R LU, HRRD CORUHRG somMEERRSREE e
P KRS ISR RES AU B R LP ik K RV S BRI S USSR BREMSHRSh M RRGRGS and other unsecured mean's of communication.

No set of policy guidelines can anticipate all situations that the Company’s employees or directors may encounter. When faced with a
businéfs%r%%ris%ﬂpv(/%e&mggr%ﬁggtions, you as an employee or director should ask yourself the following questions:

The Company gipastroNeurnspirshectand safeguard the intellectual property of others. During your employment with the Company, you must
not use or disclose any confidential information or trade secrets you learned or obtained prior to your employment. For example, you must not use or
disclost® confidRrianrAstipasideoel adrgsb aeedhvndlrouetpiesid Uy e mylapde safadr pngd Mere sloNRIRTAFRSBAEH information or trade secrets onto

the premises of the Company, physically or on electronic systems.

oo Can.l defend this action with a clear conscience before my supervisor, fellow employees, and the general public?
Exceptions
oo Would my supervisor act this way? Would it be helpful to ask my supervisor about this matter before | act?

Nothing in this Code, or any Company policy, prohibits or restricts you from

(i) providing information to any governmental or regulatory agency to initiate or otherwise cooperate with a complaint or investigation regarding a
possible vidlatishl e¥datmy aetjolsioepddedyauhpidy2 complaint or investigation with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the National
Labor Relations Board, the Occupational Safety and Health Administration, the Securities and Exchange Commission, Department of Justice, HM
Revenue and Customs, etc.), (i) making any other disclosure that is required by applicable law, regulation, or ﬁyotected under an applicable
g Wpen in doubt oyOY Aresencoura ed to seed( %Jld%\ce and eXpress any coneens vou.ma have r{e&grdlﬂg h is Code, uestlon(f {]egfardlag
whistleblower” provisioh, or (n# rece_lvm% an award from the governmentar or regulatory agency irv connection with’the informati ntprow_ ed.*You

ISR & PAGCASIRS AIRE BR AL S BRADAR S ShsAHARsh, URRTBNS0L NS TS A B AISRS L CBASARPHHIIR L Mhiarads

W\I/I ers%lsguéttii{)‘ nc}gfgse%\é% %%tg)er}tgg etﬂ_a\nd including termination of employment.

hhhhhhhh
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A conflict of interest occurs when an individual's private interest interferes, or even appears to interfere, in any way with the interests of the
Company as a whole. As a result, you as
Version 02.26.2024 3

an employee or director must avoid any action that may involve, or may appear to involve, a conflict of interest with the Company. If you consider
undertaking any transaction or relationship that reasonably could be expected to give rise to an actual or apparent conflict or disparity of interest
between you and the Company, or in your personal or professional relationship, you
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must promptly disclose this activity for review by the Legal Department. Immediate disclosure of any potential conflict is the key to remaining in full
compliance with this Code.

Examples of Potential Conflicts:

* You take actions or have interests that may make it difficult to perform your work at the Company objectively and effectively.
* You, or a member of your family, receive improper personal benefits as a result of your position in the Company.

* You perform services for, serve as a director, employee, or consultant of, or have a substantial interest in, any competitor, customer, supplier,
or business partner of the Company.

* You engage in a transaction with the Company, or work for or own a substantial interest in any organization, doing or seeking to do business
with the Company.

* You intend to acquire ownership of, or an interest in, any type of property (such as real estate, patent rights, securities, or software) in which
the Company has or might reasonably be thought to have an interest.

* You or a family member accept a personal loan from the Company or allow the Company to guarantee any of your or a family member’s
personal obligations.

In addition, you are prohibited from engaging in the following corporate opportunities:
» Taking for yourself personally opportunities that are discovered through the use of Company property, information, or position.
« Using Company property, information, or position for personal gain.
» Competing with the Company.
You owe a duty to the Company to advance the Company’s legitimate interests when the opportunity to do so arises.
Iv. 4. FAIR DEALING

You should endeavor to deal fairly with the Company’s customers, suppliers, competitors, and employees. You must not take unfair
advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged information, misrepresentation of material facts, or any other unfair-
dealing practice.

Version 02.26.2024 4
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V. 5. GOVERNMENT INVESTIGATIONS

It is Company policy to fully cooperate with any appropriate government investigation. If you learn about a possible government investigation
or inquiry, inform the Legal Department immediately.

The Company prohibits any employee, officer, or director from altering, destroying, mutilating, or concealing a record, document, or other
object, or attempting to do so, with the intent to impair the object’s integrity or availability for use in an official preceding. Furthermore, the Company
prohibits any employee or director from otherwise obstructing, influencing, or impeding any official proceeding or any attempts to do so.

VI. 6. INSIDER INFORMATION

In the normal course of business, directors, officers, and employees of the Company may come into possession of significant, nonpublic
information. This kind of information, often referred to as “material, nonpublic” information in the securities laws, is considered the property of the
Company that you have been entrusted with. Accordingly, you may not seek to profit from it by buying or selling securities yourself or by passing on
the information to others to enable them to profit. This rule applies to trading in Cirrus Logic’'s own securities, but it also applies to trading in the
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securities of other companies if you learn something in the course of your employment or relationship with Cirrus Logic that might affect the value of
the other stock. The insider trading rules apply both to buying stock (to make a profit based on good news) and selling stock (to avoid a loss based
on bad news).

Besides your obligation to refrain from trading while in possession of material, nonpublic information, you are also prohibited from “tipping”
others. The concept of unlawful tipping includes passing on information to friends, family members, or others under circumstances that suggest that
you were trying to help them make a profit or avoid a loss. When tipping occurs, both the “tipper” and the “tippee” may be held liable, and this liability
may extend to all those to whom the tippee, in turn, gives the information.

The basic Company policy in the insider trading area is that no trading under any circumstances is permitted by Company personnel while
such personnel or members of their households possess material, nonpublic information, as described above. In addition, certain individuals are
restricted from trading during restricted trading periods, generally in connection with the Company’s earnings announcements. The policy also
includes other prohibitions on trading, including prohibitions against short selling, use of margin accounts, hedging transactions, and trading in
options in the Company’s securities. These prohibitions are specifically designed to encourage investment in the Company'’s stock for the long term,
on a buy and hold basis, and to discourage active trading or short-term speculation. For additional information regarding the complete policy, see the
Company’s Policy on Insider Trading and Confidentiality, which can be accessed on the Company'’s intranet.
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VIil. 7. CUSTOMER, SUPPLIER, AND COMPETITOR RELATIONS

The Company, its employees, and representatives must treat customers, business allies, and suppliers fairly and may not engage in
anticompetitive practices that unlawfully restrict the free market economy. In addition, the Company and employees and directors must comply with
all U.S. and non-U.S. laws, rules, and regulations applicable in the country, state, and local jurisdiction where the Company conducts business.

Permissible Payments

The payment of normal discounts and allowances, commissions, fees, sales promotion activity, entertainment, and the extension of services
and other customary courtesies in the ordinary course of business is permissible so long as they have been authorized and properly recorded. If a
customer, supplier, vendor, or government agency has adopted a more stringent policy than the Company’s regarding gifts and gratuities, then you
must comply with that more stringent policy when dealing with that person or entity. (See below for a discussion of gifts to government
representatives.)

Anti-Bribery

The Company’s objective is to compete in the marketplace on the basis of superior products, services, and competitive prices. No payment in
any form (whether funds or assets) shall be made directly or indirectly to anyone for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business or to obtain any
other favorable action. It is imperative that each and every person who does business with the Company understands that we will not, under any
circumstances, give or accept bribes or kickbacks. A violation of this policy will subject you to corrective action as well as potential criminal
prosecution.

Gifts

No gift should be accepted from a supplier, vendor, or customer unless the gift has insubstantial value and a refusal to accept it would be
discourteous or otherwise harmful to the Company. This applies equally to gifts to suppliers or vendors or non-governmental customers. (See below
for a discussion of gifts to government representatives.)

Entertainment

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 128/141
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Appropriate business entertainment of non-government employees occurring in connection with business discussions or the development of
business relationships is generally deemed appropriate in the conduct of official business. This may include business-related meals and trips,
refreshments before or after a business meeting, and occasional athletic, theatrical, or cultural events. Entertainment in any form that would likely
result in a feeling or expectation of personal obligation should not be extended or accepted. This applies equally to giving or receiving entertainment.
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Government Representatives

What is acceptable practice in the commercial business environment may be illegal or against the policies of federal, state, or local
governments. Therefore, no gifts or business entertainment of any kind may be given to any government employee without the prior approval of the
Legal Department, except for items of nominal value having the Cirrus Logic logo (i.e., pens, coffee mugs, etc.).

In addition, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA") prohibits giving anything of value to officials or political parties of foreign governments
in order to obtain or retain business or to gain any improper advantage. Any proposed incentive to be given to government personnel to secure an
improper advantage is not permitted. In your relations with governmental agencies or customers, the Company and you may not directly or indirectly
engage in bribery, kickbacks, payoffs, or other corrupt business practices. If you suspect that any payment is being used for improper purposes, you
must immediately report the situation to the Legal Department for investigation.

In certain instances, the FCPA does allow what are referred to as “facilitating payments.” Typically, these are nominal payments given to
relatively low-ranking government personnel to hasten the inspection of goods or the performance of other basic administrative tasks. Nonetheless,
the Company strongly discourages these payments, and in any case, the payment must also be consistent with applicable laws of the countries in
which we operate. For example, “facilitation payments” are prohibited under the U.K Bribery Act (2010) and any such payment is considered illegal
in the United Kingdom. If you are faced with or anticipate a situation that may involve a facilitating payment, contact the Legal Department before
taking any action.

The FCPA also prohibits knowingly falsifying the Company’s books and records or knowingly circumventing or failing to implement accounting
controls.

Third-Party Agents

The Company’s business may involve the use of agents, consultants, brokers, or representatives in connection with its dealings with
governmental entities, departments, officials, and employees. These arrangements may not be employed to do anything prohibited by this Code. The
commissions or fees payable to a third party must be reasonable in amount for the services rendered in accordance with local business practices.

Antitrust Matters

Antitrust laws are intended to protect and promote free and fair competition. These laws apply to all U.S. and some non-U.S. transactions by
businesses in the United States. Therefore, you should not exchange information with competitors regarding prices or market share and should
refrain from exchanging other information that could be construed as anticompetitive or a violation of antitrust laws.
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A violation of antitrust laws is a serious offense. In the United States, it is not uncommon for individuals to be criminally prosecuted. You
should report to the Legal Department any instance in which anticompetitive or otherwise concerning discussions are initiated by other companies or
if you believe any antitrust matter has arisen.

Agreements with Competitors

Formal or informal agreements with competitors that seek to limit or restrict competition in some way are often illegal. Unlawful agreements
include those that seek to fix or control prices or wages; allocate products, markets, or territories; or boycott certain customers or suppliers. To
ensure compliance with antitrust law, discussions with competitors regarding any of these potential agreements is a violation of Company policy and
will subject you to corrective action, as well as the potential for criminal prosecution.

Agreements with Customers

Certain understandings between the Company and a customer are also considered anticompetitive and illegal. These include agreements
that fix resale prices or that result in discriminatory pricing among customers for the same product. These types of restrictive understandings must
not be discussed or agreed to with a customer.

Trade Association Activity

Contact with competitors at trade shows or trade association meetings is unavoidable. However, these contacts are not immune from antitrust
law. Consequently, contact with competitors necessitated by these meetings should be as limited as possible and kept strictly to the subjects on the
agenda for the meeting. In addition, employee participants in trade associations should consult with the Legal Department regarding any proposed
association activity that would have a potential effect on competition, such as the development of product standards or an industry code of practice.

Boycotts

It is illegal under U.S. anti-boycott regulations to enter into an agreement to refuse to deal with potential or actual customers or suppliers, or
otherwise to engage in or support restrictive international trade practices or boycotts. The Company will not agree to a contract, document, or oral
request containing language that could be interpreted as an attempt by any country to enforce a boycott. Even providing information may constitute
a violation of U.S. law, which requires that boycott requests be immediately reported to the government even when a response is not provided, and
calls for the imposition of fines and other penalties on U.S. parent companies in cases where their non-U.S. subsidiaries violate U.S. anti-boycott
regulations. Therefore, any request for information or receipt of boycott-related documentation must be immediately reported to the Legal
Department.
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Vil. 8. EXPORT CONTROLS

It is our policy to fully comply with all applicable U.S. export, customs and trade control laws and regulations, licensing requirements, relevant
non-U.S. laws, and international sanctions. The Company is responsible for customs, export, and trade control compliance and will establish
licensing and compliance programs. To the extent feasible, the Company is expected to perform due diligence and know its customer in any
business transaction. Any investigation or inquiry by a U.S. governmental organization regarding alleged trade control violations or irregularities
should be immediately reported to the Legal Department prior to taking any action. The Legal Department is available to answer any questions
regarding customers, export licensing, and trade controls and should be consulted as the need arises.

IX. 9. PUBLIC COMPANY REPORTING
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As a public company, it is of critical importance that our filings and submissions with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Commission”) be accurate and timely. Depending on your position with the Company, you may be called upon to provide necessary information to
assure that the Company’s public reports and documents filed with the Commission and in other public communications by the Company are full,
fair, and understandable. The Company expects you to provide prompt, accurate answers to inquiries related to the Company’s public disclosure
requirements.

X. 10. RECORD MANAGEMENT

The Legal Department has company-wide responsibility for developing, administering, and coordinating the record management program,
and issuing retention guidelines for specific types of documents. Records should be maintained to comply with applicable statutory, regulatory, or
contractual requirements, as well as pursuant to prudent business practices. The Company prohibits any employee or director from altering,
destroying, mutilating, or concealing a record, document, or other object, or attempt to do so, with the intent to impair the object’s integrity or
availability for use in an official proceeding. You can contact the Legal Department for specific information on the Company’s Record Retention
Policy.

Xl. 11. RECORDING TRANSACTIONS

We have established and maintain a high standard of accuracy and completeness in our financial records. These records serve as the basis
for managing our business, for measuring and fulfilling its obligations to employees, customers, suppliers, and others, and for compliance with tax
and financial reporting requirements.

In the preparation and maintenance of records, employees must make and keep books, invoices, records, and accounts that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the financial transactions of the Company. These records must comply with generally accepted accounting
practices and principles. Accounting entries must be promptly and accurately recorded and properly documented. No accounting entry may
intentionally distort or disguise the true nature of any transaction. The Company prohibits the establishment of any undisclosed or unrecorded funds
or assets for any purpose.
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Each employee must maintain accurate records of transactions, time reports, expense accounts, and other company records. You are
prohibited from making a representation, either in a document or in oral communication, which is other than fully accurate. The Company has
devised, implemented, and maintained a system of internal accounting controls that is sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that financial
transactions are properly authorized, executed, and recorded. You must comply with this system and report any incident that you believe is in
violation of the requirements of this system.

See “Reporting Violations” in Section XV below for specific information on reporting violations of this Code, as well as issues regarding
accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, harassment or discrimination, or any other issue.

Xll. 12. USE AND PROTECTION OF COMPANY ASSETS

Company assets are to be used only for the legitimate business purposes of the Company and its subsidiaries and only by authorized
employees or their designees. Company.
This includes both tangible and intangible assets.

Some examples of tangible assets include office equipment, such as telephones, copy machines, computers, furniture, supplies and
production equipment. Some examples of intangible assets include intellectual property, such as pending patent information, trade secrets, or other
confidential information (whether in printed or electronic form).

You are responsible for ensuring that appropriate measures are taken to assure that Company assets are properly protected. In addition, you
should take appropriate measures to ensure the efficient use of Company assets, since theft, carelessness, and waste have a direct impact on the
Company'’s profitability.
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Use of Email and the Internet

The use of the Company’s email system and connection to the Internet should are also to be used primarily only for Company business. the
legitimate business purposes of the Company. All employees, officers, and directors should use the same care, caution, and etiquette in sending
email messages and in making social media posts or posts in messaging applications as in all other written or oral business communications. The
Company will not tolerate discriminatory, offensive, defamatory, pornographic, or other similar type of messages or materials sent or accessed
through the Internet. Since information systems and computer networks are Company resources, the Company reserves the right at any time to
monitor and inspect without notice all electronic communications using these Company resources.

Limited Personal Use

Notwithstanding the provisions above, individuals may make limited personal use of Company systems such as the Company’s network,
email system, and Company-issued phones and computers, provided that such use is subject to and consistent with the policies of this Code and all
other applicable Company policies.

Version 02.26.2024 10

Computer Software

Most computer software is protected by copyrights. The Company’s policy is to respect copyrights and to strictly adhere to all relevant laws
and regulations regarding the use and copying of computer software. Therefore, the unauthorized duplication of software, whether or not owned by
the Company, is prohibited, even if the duplication is for business purposes, is of limited duration, or is otherwise accepted local practice.

-10-

Version 02.27.2023

Xll. 13. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

See the Company’s Contract Review and Signature Authority Policy that is accessible on the Company’s intranet.

XIV. 14. MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT

You should take steps to ensure compliance with the standards set forth in this Code in the operations of the Company. If there are instances
of noncompliance, employees and directors shall ensure timely and reasonable remediation of any noncompliance, whether found by internal or
external monitors, and ensure that adequate steps are taken to prevent the recurrence and/or occurrence in the Company. In instances where the
proper and ethical course of action is unclear, you should seek counsel from the Legal Department.

All managerial personnel are responsible for the necessary distribution of this Code to ensure employee knowledge and compliance on a
worldwide basis.

XV.15. REPORTING VIOLATIONS

You are encouraged to report any concerns or complaints regarding violations of this Code; accounting, internal accounting controls, or
auditing matters; harassment; discrimination; or any other policy violation or inappropriate conduct by submitting an anonymous and confidential
report with Ethicspoint, an independent reporting system provider, through its website at http://cirruslogic.ethicspoint.com, or by dialing the
applicable phone number below:

+o  China Northern 10-800-712-1239
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s=  China Southern 10-800-120-1239
+=  France 0800-90-2500
««  Germany 0800-101-6582
+=  Hong Kong 800-96-4214
+=Japan (using Japan Telecom) 0066-33-112505
+=Japan (using KDD) 00531-121520
+- Malaysia 1-800-80-8641
+=  Philippines 1-800-1-114-0165
+=  Singapore 800-12-04201
+=  South Korea 00798-14-800-6599
+o  South Korea (using DACOM) 00308-110-480
s=  South Korea (using KT) 00798-1-1-009-8084
+-  Taiwan 844-978-1230
+o  United Kingdom 0800-032-8483
= Version 02.26.2024 11

- United States 866-384-4277 (1-866-ETHICSP)

All EthicsPoint submissions go directly to the Company’s Audit Committee, who reviews the report and determines, in conjunction with the
Company’s Legal Department, whether the report requires further investigation. The Audit Committee may designate the matter to be investigated
internally by the Company’s Internal Audit group, HR group, or the Legal Department. Alternatively, the Audit Committee may engage outside
counsel to consider the matter. Employees in the United Kingdom can also choose to report issues directly to management or the HR group in
accordance with the “whistleblower” policy applicable there.
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The values and responsibilities outlined in this Code are important to the Company and must be taken seriously by all employees. As a result,
violations of these values and responsibilities will not be tolerated.

You are encouraged to speak to your supervisor, manager, or other appropriate personnel when in doubt about the best course of action in a
particular situation. You are also encouraged to promptly report information or knowledge about anything you believe to be unethical or any violation
of laws, rules, regulations, or this Code.

In no event will any action be taken against you for making a complaint or reporting, in good faith, known or suspected violations of Company
policy. You will not lose your job for refusing an order you reasonably believe would violate the provisions of this Code, and any retaliation against
you is prohibited.

Any report by an employee or director will be kept confidential to the extent permitted by law and regulation and the Company’s ability to
address these concerns. In certain instances, the identity of the reporting employee, officer, or director may be provided to those persons involved in
the investigation.

Immunity for Disclosure of a Trade Secret

An individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal or State trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that is
made (a) in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government official or to an attorney solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a
suspected violation of law or (b) in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. An
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individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose the trade secret to the attorney of
the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the individual files any document containing the trade secret under seal
and does not disclose the trade secret except pursuant to court order.

XVI. 16. CORRECTIVE ACTION

Violations of the rules and policies of conduct set forth in this Code may result in one or more of the following corrective actions, as
appropriate:

so awarning;
*Version 02.26.2024 12

o areprimand (noted in the employee’s personnel record);
¢ probation;

so demotion;

*o temporary suspension;

¢o required reimbursement of losses or damages;

*o termination of employment; and/or

«o referral for criminal prosecution or civil action.

Corrective actions may apply to any supervisor who directs or approves any prohibited actions, or has knowledge of them and does not
promptly correct them.
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As stated above, reporting possible violations of this Code will not result in retaliation against the employee for making this report.

Conduct that violates this Code may also violate federal or state laws or laws outside the United States. These violations may subject you to
prosecution, imprisonment, and fines. The Company may also be subject to prosecution and fines for your conduct.

XVIl. 17. AMENDMENT, MODIFICATION, WAIVER AND TERMINATION OF PROVISIONS OF THE CODE
We reserve the right to amend, modify, waive, or terminate these rules and policies at any time for any reason.

We will disclose any waivers of this Code made to executive officers or directors of the Company, subject to the provisions of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules thereunder, and all applicable listing rules. Waivers of this Code can only be granted by the Board
of Directors or the Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors.
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EXHIBIT 21.1
Significant Subsidiaries of the Registrant
The following are significant subsidiaries of Cirrus Logic, Inc. as of March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024 and the jurisdictions in which they are organized. Indentation indicates the

principal parent of each subsidiary. The names of particular subsidiaries have been omitted because, considered in the aggregate as a single subsidiary, they would not constitute,
as of the end of the year covered by this report, a “significant subsidiary” as that term is defined in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Name Jurisdiction of Entity
Cirrus Logic UK International Holding Co., Ltd. United Kingdom
Cirrus Logic International Semiconductor Ltd. United Kingdom
Cirrus Logic International Holdings Ltd. United Kingdom
Cirrus Logic International (UK) Ltd. United Kingdom

Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-136219, 333-200968, 333-208577, 333-226578, and 333-245021, and 333-
266519) pertaining to the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan and the Cirrus Logic, Inc. 2018 Long Term Incentive Plan of our reports dated May 19, 2023 May 24, 2024,
with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Cirrus Logic, Inc., and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Cirrus Logic, Inc., included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the fiscal year ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Austin, Texas
May 19, 2023 24, 2024

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
1, John M. Forsyth certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Cirrus Logic, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have;
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 135/141

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’'s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
Date: May 19, 2023 May 24, 2024 Signature: /s/ John M. Forsyth

John M. Forsyth
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
1, Venk Nathamuni, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Cirrus Logic, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have;
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that

material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;
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(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’'s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
Date: May 19, 2023 May 24, 2024 Signature: /s/ Venk Nathamuni

Venk Nathamuni
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of Cirrus Logic, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, John M. Forsyth, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certify as of the date hereof, solely for purposes of Title
18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the United States Code, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form
within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the

Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

This Certification has not been, and shall not be deemed, “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Date: May 19, 2023 May 24, 2024 Signature: /s/ John M. Forsyth
John M. Forsyth
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of Cirrus Logic, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended March 25, 2023 March 30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Venk Nathamuni, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify as of the date hereof, solely for purposes of Title
18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the United States Code, that to my knowledge:
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1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form
within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the

Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

This Certification has not been, and shall not be deemed, “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Date: May 19, 2023 May 24, 2024 Signature: /s/ Venk Nathamuni
Venk Nathamuni

Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

CIRRUS LOGIC, INC.
RECOVERY OF ERRONEOUSLY AWARDED INCENTIVE COMPENSATION POLICY

Adopted August 24, 2023
1. INTRODUCTION

Cirrus Logic, Inc. (the “Company”) is adopting this policy (this “Policy”) to provide for the Company’s criteria and process of recovering certain Incentive
Compensation (as defined below) erroneously received by Affected Officers (as defined below) under certain circumstances. This Policy becomes effective October
2, 2023, and at that time this Policy supersedes and replaces the Company’s “Policy Regarding Recoupment of Certain Incentive Compensation.” If provisions of
any Company plans or policies contradict the Company’s ability to recover Incentive Compensation under this Policy, those provisions shall be deemed amended to
the minimum extent necessary to ensure compliance with this Policy.

This Policy is administered by the Compensation and Human Resources Committee (the “Committee”) of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”).
The Committee shall have full and final authority to make any and all determinations required under this Policy. Any determination by the Committee with respect to
this Policy shall be final, conclusive, and binding on all parties. The Committee may amend or terminate this Policy at any time.

This Policy is intended to comply with Section 10D of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), Rule 10D-1 thereunder,
and the applicable rules of any national securities exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed (the “Exchange”) and will be interpreted and administered
consistent with that intent.

2. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Policy shall apply to all Incentive Compensation received on or after the effective date of this Policy, and to the extent permitted or required by
applicable law.

3. DEFINITIONS
For purposes of this Policy, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

“Affected Officer’ means any current or former “officer” as defined in Exchange Act Rule 16a-1, and other senior executives, if any, who are identified and
designated at the discretion of the Committee.

“Erroneously Awarded Compensation” means the amount of Incentive Compensation received that exceeds the amount of Incentive Compensation that
otherwise would have been received had it been determined based on the Restatement, computed without regard to any taxes paid. In the case of Incentive
Compensation based on stock price or total shareholder return, where the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not subject to mathematical
recalculation directly from the information in the Restatement, the amount shall reflect a reasonable estimate of the effect of the Restatement on the stock price or
total shareholder return upon which the Incentive Compensation was received, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.

“Financial Reporting Measure” means any measure that is determined and presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the
Company'’s financial statements, and any measures that are derived wholly or in part from such measures, whether or not such measure is presented
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within the financial statements or included in a filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Stock price and total shareholder return are Financial Reporting
Measures.

“Incentive Compensation” means any compensation that is awarded, earned, or vested based in whole or in part on the attainment of a Financial Reporting
Measure. For purposes of clarity: (a) base salaries, bonuses, or equity awards paid solely upon satisfying one or more subjective standards, strategic or operational
measures, or continued employment are not considered Incentive Compensation, unless such awards were granted, paid, or vested based in part on a Financial
Reporting Measure, and (b) strictly time-based equity awards such as stock options or restricted stock units (RSUs), for which the grant is not contingent on
achieving any Financial Reporting Measure and vesting is contingent solely upon completion of a specified employment period, are not considered Incentive
Compensation.

“Restatement” means an accounting restatement due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the
securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial statements that is material to the previously issued
financial statements (i.e., a “Big R” restatement), or that would result in a material misstatement if the error was corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in
the current period (i.e., a “little r” restatement).

4. RECOVERY

If the Company is required to prepare a Restatement, the Company shall seek to recover and claw back reasonably promptly all Erroneously Awarded
Compensation that is received by an Affected Officer:

(1) after beginning service as an Affected Officer;
2) who serves as an Affected Officer at any time during the performance period for that Incentive Compensation;
3) while the Company has a class of securities listed on the Exchange; and

4) during the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding the date on which the Company was required to prepare the Restatement (including
any transition period within or immediately following those years that results from a change in the Company’s fiscal year, provided that a transition
period of nine to 12 months will be deemed to be a completed fiscal year).

If, after the release of earnings for any period for which a Restatement subsequently occurs and prior to the announcement of the Restatement for such
period, the Affected Officer sold any securities constituting (or any securities issuable on exercise, settlement, or exchange of any equity award constituting)
Incentive Compensation, the excess of (a) the actual aggregate sales proceeds from the Affected Officer’'s sale of those shares, over (b) the aggregate sales
proceeds the Affected Officer would have received from the sale of those shares at a price per share determined appropriate by the Committee in its discretion to
reflect what the Company’s common stock price would have been if the Restatement had occurred prior to such sales shall be deemed Erroneously Awarded
Compensation; provided, however, that for purposes of determining the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation, the aggregate sales proceeds determined
by the Committee under clause (b) with respect to shares acquired upon exercise of an option shall not be less than the aggregate exercise price paid for those
shares.

For purposes of this Policy:

. Erroneously Awarded Compensation is deemed to be received in the Company’s fiscal year during which the Financial Reporting Measure specified
in the Incentive Compensation is attained, even if the payment or grant of the Incentive Compensation occurs after the end of that period; and

. the date the Company is required to prepare a Restatement is the earlier of (x) the date the Board, the Committee, or any officer of the Company
authorized to take such action concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the Company is required to prepare the Restatement, or (y) the
date a court, regulator, or other legally authorized body directs the Company to prepare the Restatement.

For purposes of clarity, in no event shall the Company be required to award any Affected Officers an additional payment or other compensation if the
Restatement would have resulted in the grant, payment, or vesting of Incentive Compensation that is greater than the Incentive Compensation actually received by
the Affected Officer. The recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not dependent on if or when the Restatement is filed.

5.SOURCES OF RECOVERY
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To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Committee may, in its discretion, seek recovery from the Affected Officer(s) through any means it determines,
which may include any of the following sources: (i) prior Incentive Compensation payments; (ii) future payments of Incentive Compensation; (iii) cancellation of
outstanding Incentive Compensation; (iv) direct repayment; and (v) cancellation or forfeiture of other securities held by the Affected Officer. To the extent permitted
by applicable law, the Company may offset such amount against any compensation or other amounts owed by the Company to the Affected Officer.

6.LIMITEDEXCEPTIONS TO RECOVERY

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee, in its discretion, may choose to forgo recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation under the following
circumstances, provided that the Committee has made a determination that recovery would be impracticable because:

(i) The direct expense paid to a third party to assist in enforcing this Policy would exceed the recoverable amounts; provided that the Company has made a
reasonable attempt to recover such Erroneously Awarded Compensation, has documented such attempt, and has (to the extent required) provided
that documentation to the Exchange;

(i)  Recovery would violate home country law where the law was adopted prior to November 28, 2022, and the Company provides an opinion of home
country counsel to that effect to the Exchange that is acceptable to the Exchange; or

(i)  Recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan to fail to meet the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.

7. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

The Company is not permitted to indemnify or reimburse any Affected Officer against the recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation. In addition, the
Company is prohibited from paying the premiums on an insurance policy that would cover an Affected Officer’s potential clawback obligations.

8. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Policy or the application of any such provision to any Affected Officer shall be adjudicated to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this Policy, and the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provisions shall be
deemed amended to the minimum extent necessary to render any such provision or application enforceable.

9.NO IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER REMEDIES

This Policy does not preclude the Company from taking any other action to enforce an Affected Officer’s obligations to the Company, including termination of
employment, institution of civil proceedings, or reporting of any misconduct to appropriate government authorities. The Company will comply with the disclosure
requirements related to this Policy under Section 10D of the Exchange Act and applicable listing rules of the Exchange. This Policy is in addition to the requirements
of Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that are applicable to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A COMPARISON OF TWO
FINANCIALS PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING
THE TEXT AND THE COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS
REPORT. USERS ARE ADVISED TO REVIEW THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT
OR OTHER DECISIONS.

©2024, Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Patents Pending.
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